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GLOSSARY

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalizedterms B XE S B AEIN RAEH MBEHE T F R

used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights,
Chairlady’s Statement, Management Discussion and

==4
==t

CEREENWEAST EFEWRS LEEAR
CRE HELERRE EFLSAETEEZE

Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, R &#lE M BHELMEHEFBAZEAEGUT
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical P # &) & 18 & 2 -

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial
Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2019 AGM”

[TZE-hFRREFKE]

“AGM(s)”
(REBAFRZ

“ASPY!
[FHEE]
“Audit Committee”
(BZZE g
“Board”

[E£g]

“business day”
(&% H]

“Bye-Laws”
[ 4 Al

“Chairlady” or “Ms. Chan”
=R AR gl

“Chief Executive Officer”
(1T %

“close associate(s)”

(REBEAL]

AGM to be held on Friday, 16 August 2019

BR-ZZE-AFNATARBERADBETHORRBEFAS

annual general meeting(s) of the Company

AREBERBFRE

average selling price

FHHEEER

audit committee of the Board
EEeERZEY

board of Directors

=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AALEMRAFAETOEE

bye-laws of the Company
/NS R

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the NED and chairlady of the Board
MLt RFENTESTREZTSTER

the chief executive officer of the Company
N BT IRAEE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

AALEMRAFAETOEE

“Company” or “Sino Harbour’

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in

Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed
and traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code:

1663)

[~ A]] sk &% & i B EEERREEARAR —HRAREIMRIZARAF
HERTRONBRMER LM RSB K% 1663)

“Company Secretary”

company secretary of the Company

[ B WE] ¥ ARBZRAWE

“Consolidated Financial Statement”

(4R & B 5 K

2 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

audited consolidated financial statement of the Group for the Year

B AEBEAFENREZGAMBRR




“controlling shareholder(s)”

[ B B R

“Corporate Governance Code”

[ X EET A

“Davi”

[ K&

“Deputy Chairman”
R=EEE

“Director(s)”

[E %]

“EIT
[ P15 5

“ESG Report”
[ESG 3R % |

“Executive Director(s)”

[ITEE

“Extra Good”
[ Extra Good |

“Final Dividend”
[REARR B

“FVTPL”

[ 2R ERIEREK]

“Fy2018”
[ — N\ &

“FY2019” or “Year”

[—E-hMFIHEFE]

“GFA”
[ZEEmEE]

“Group”
[ B

“Guangxi Gangrun”

(BB

GLOSSARY
Sk

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
EEELTARAMETOHRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules
FAR RIS+ M E 2 X E R ST A

Zhejiang Davi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
MIAREZERRA

deputy chairman of the Board
EEgRERE

director(s) of the Company
RKRABIES

enterprise income tax
EMMEH

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g kEiwms

executive Director(s)

HITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

payment of a final dividend for FY2019
ZE-NABERNREARE

fair value through profit and loss
BRARERERIER

year ended 31 March 2018
HE-_ZT—N\F=-A=+—HLFE

year ended 31 March 2019
HE-_ZT—NF=-A=+—HLFE

gross floor area
BEEE

Company and its subsidiaries
RRARRHEWER A

Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology Limited (& 78 7% 8 & %) & 1lf & R
‘A @]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and
an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
BEREEBEDEMAERAR RPREFTMERKLZBERLIA B
RAARKWHEEREZEME R A

| meemsmaRam | 3
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GLOSSARY

“HKS$”
[ 7t

“Hong Kong”
(&8

“Independent Auditor”
[ Y8 37 %% Bam

“INED(s)”
[ IERMITESE]

“JX Asia City”

[T 78 =5 M 35
“LAT”
[+ 4t 3B (B 7

“Listing Rules”

[ 743 Al

“LongYu”

“Model Code”

[45 % <7 Al

i

“Mr. Wong”
[ 5 4

“NED”
[EHTEE

“Nomination Committee”

[fR2ZE g

“Pan Hong Holdings”

[N 78 12 A

:4 | Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited \
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BERBEETEH

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REFBFNTERRRE

independent auditor of the Company
ZNYNESTR RV S g

independent non-executive Director(s)
BYFEMITES

Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (T 78 g8 M
¥ B M = B % A B A &), a company incorporated in the PRC
with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

IRENBEEEREERAR  RPEEFMKI2ER AR -
BEARATNHEZENRE QR

land appreciation tax

TR ER

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B XX AT 5 £ R B

Jiangxi LongYu Medicine Co., Ltd. (TFAREF E &R D BR A 7)),
a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, the issued
shares of which are traded on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations in the PRC (stock code: 837836)
IHREFRBEROGARAR RPBEIMAZIZER QA H
EBETROPRPEZEFRNEERMEZERG EHRG KK
837836)

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

FHRAMSE TS FTETAZEFETEFRINEE
=t Al

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the husband of Ms. Chan
EMRKEE S BRE T2 XX

non-executive Director

FBTES

nomination committee of the Board

EFEgR2%ES

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability whose issued shares are listed on the
main board of Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
NEEREEERAR REREZMAINARAA EB
BIIRORIAMEZFLSRSGABERARER LT




“PRC” or “China”

[ B

“Register of Members”

[ B 3R 4 it

“Remuneration Committee”

Ed =

“RMB”
(AR

“SFO”

(7 &5 Kk & 5Bl
“Share(s)”

[P 17

“Shareholder(s)”
[ R 3R

usq.m.u

[ 7 K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 32 FAT

“subsidiary(ies)”
[Ff B8 2 =1l

“US$”
i
“Zhejiang IPS”

[347 )T 52 81

“Zhejiang Sino Harbour’

[47 1% & |

wop
(%] [E > ]

GLOSSARY
Sk

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative
Region and Taiwan

REAREMNME RAFEHEME TEREES  BRFEIITK

N
E A /=

register of members of the Company

NN & 2R i

remuneration committee of the Board
EEgFMNEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
AR HFEEEEEE

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
BHERHEKRN(BEABEMNENE)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company
AKRABIRAFRFROONE L 2 L@R

holder(s) of the Share(s)
A A

square metre(s)
F 75 K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERBERIMBERRDA

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
EEETAAME TOHHERRE

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of United States of
America
ETL ENBERBIEEE®

Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical Technology Co. Ltd. (3 /T 3 Bl B8 %
Bl & & R A 7)), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MIERBERMEERAA RPRFMEKLZBRAR A
ARARWHEEFZEMEBE QA

Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio Technology Limited (3# iT /& 76 4 %) £ 17
B R A d]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
HTEBEYMBEMBERAR RARGEMKLCBERRAR A
KAAMEEEZENE A A

per cent. or percentage
Elild
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REEH

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. SHI Feng

(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Chairlady)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. Zhang Juan (Resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointed on 1 August 2018)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Sir KWOK Siu Man KR

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Sir KWOK Siu Man KR

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. LEE Man To (Chairman)

Mr. XIE Gang

Ms. Zhang Juan (Resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointed on 1 August 2018)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling

Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. Zhang Juan (Resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointed on 1 August 2018)
Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)

Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. Zhang Juan (Resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointed on 1 August 2018)
Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

6 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

&M LEm
EEBAERSMBRAAER
% 7 4K 5% : 01663

SRR

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
HERHREFETEEE I

# [

IFEEmE™

KA EFLE LA KB 15685
HE LAYk

BB EF L2526 E

ERTEEXEME

5B

JLBE AT

55 58 [E 8 37-39 9%

AR R
BEE1215 %

B i% ¢ (852) 2363 1300
8 & : (852) 2764 2160

AR ER

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

TERODBFERLE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual report
of the Company for FY2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND PROPOSED FINAL
DIVIDEND

In FY2019, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB384.3 million. Gross profit margin decreased to 17.9%
in FY2019. Meanwhile, profit attributable to the owners of
the Company amounted to approximately RMB20.7 million
in FY2019. The Board did not recommend the payment of
any Final Dividend for FY2019.

ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

According to the economic data published by the National
Bureau of Statistics on 21 January 2019, gross domestic
product for 2018 amounted to RMBOO trillion, up by 6.6%
year-on-year in terms of comparable price. From January
to December 2018, investments in real estate development
in the PRC amounted to RMB12,026.4 billion, up by 9.5%
year-on-year. Among which, residential investment was
RMB8,519.2 billion (representing a growth rate of 13.4%)
and increased by 4% from 2017. Residential investment
accounted for 70.8% of the investment in real estate
development.

On 3 April 2018, the State Council issued the “Opinions on
Reforming and Improving the Policy for Supply Guarantee
and Use of Generic Drugs” amongst others to accelerate
and push ahead the consistency evaluation on the quality
and efficacy of generic drugs and those already passed the
consistency evaluation must be included in the merchandise
catalogue in a timely manner. Currently, each region has
basically responded and carried out online purchase for
those drugs already passed the consistency evaluation. In
addition, according to the “Centralised Drug Procurement
File in 4+7 Cities” {4+7¥ M &R/ EPHEIE) published
on 17 December 2018, the overall purchase amount of the
drug categories awarded in 11 cities in the PRC amounted
to approximately RMB1,895 million. Through the savings
of medical health insurance, the PRC government hopes
to maintain the quality of drugs while greatly reducing the
drug price and facilitating the substitution of originator
drugs with generic drugs. With the reduced drug price
and secured usage, the selling costs of pharmaceutical
enterprises are greatly reduced. It is believed that it will
have a far reaching impact on the pharmaceutical industry
particularly the future industry layout of generic drugs.

CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

BURKRER:

AARREFE EUREARA_ZFT-NAUFZ
F R o

MBEEEARESZRHERE

R-ZF-AME AEEZERANDAREIB43H
BT T NWAMEENEXTREITI% - FAE =
T-NMEFERARAEEAREEZNOARK20.78
BT BEF@TEZR _FT-AMFRAEMRK
HR B -

REREZE

RAE BB R Luﬂ% E-NF-—AZ+—HBHA

o 488 B *)\Eiilﬂif?‘t%@qﬂ%%
BET- Bz—JttﬁT%%‘JriﬁttiiiEGB%o —E -
NE—Z2+-F 2BEFEHEREIRE120,26487T

th FFEREIS% - Hh  FEHRESS 1B L K
184% ' Lk FFRE4%  MEEREGE MW ER %
KEMNLLEA70.8% °

R-ZZE—NFNA=H BERNEEANRETE

HRERERERFRARENE L) EFREHM®R
HEMREREMBEN —BETEIE EBBE—
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl‘]gﬁuut&ﬁm}\%,ﬁaﬁ H Hl %iﬂ%
REETTOE HEBB " BMHETEERETH
AERB - BSHIRE-—NF+ A+ EHRERD
G+ T EREFPREE) PEREL2H11HE
WM ARRERNISBETL - FERNAZ2E B
HEBERES TREZSSMEHN R KR KXIERK K
B REMREZSRRF BEREENRAZE K

EREECEERA AR EBETEER RS
BRRMTERBERREN Y E -
EEEREEERAT | 9
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CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
EEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

To ensure diversified development of the Group and
enhance its competitiveness, the Group will continue to
actively expand the pharmaceutical inspection and other
medical related businesses.

On 26 November 2015, Jiangxi Asia City, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the subscription
agreement (the “Davi Subscription Agreement”)
to subscribe for a 30% equity interest in Davi from an
independent third party, Smartway Trading Limited
(“Smartway”), at a consideration of RMB11.3 million.

In addition, on 30 June 2018, the Group, via Zhejiang IPS,
an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a
strategic cooperation agreement with Agilent Technologies
China Holding Co. Ltd. (“Agilent”) which is the world’s
leading measurement company and researcher and
manufacturer of biological science measuring instruments.
Such cooperation enables Zhejiang IPS to share the
customer resources of Agilent, and also focus on the drug
packaging materials compatibility research project, which is
a key element in the generic drug consistency evaluation.
The Group will spare no effort in seizing the market
opportunities brought by the generic drug consistency
evaluation in the PRC.

X O E
AEBRERAEBEEZ T CBERARITEZES N
BASHERGERESRALEGCERMBEBER -

RZE—RAF+—AZ+AR"B TIHEIMB(ER
AE2EMBRARDITYRERZ((ABRBHRD U
REBEIE=FTEBEZERAFAIERREKXRAE
0% zE REAAREKI1IEERL -

AEBER-_ZT-NFAA=1TH BBEEF2
EMBARMIXZAELERABZ(FE)ER QA
(TZERDITLBEBAFEHE REZTZRALN
MERRAUAREYHMBRAERSOABEREERN -
FRAEBNIXAGURZTZRA/NETEFPER
Y RERARYERBEMHBERERETERE TS
MHE-ZUEFEFEEN R RMABGTERD
EEFEMRE-FEFETKOPIHE -

Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical Technology Company Limited
WMIZBBERBEBERAR A

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking into year 2019, with the objective of achieving
“steady growth with progress” of the PRC economy, in
terms of real estate investment, the investment scale
for 2018 was approximately RMB12 trillion, up by
approximately 10% year-on-year.

We believe that “One City One Policy” will be the major
direction of the China government which puts forward the
setting of a city’s primary responsibility for the promotion
of a stable and healthy development of the market. The
nature of this policy mainly refers to “acting according to
circumstances and giving different guidance to different
categories of cities” to genuinely stabilize land price and
property price. We expect that the overall sales amount of
the real estate market across China will decrease. The sales
amount of residential properties in the first-tier to fourth-tier
cities has showed mixed performance: Despite the gross
domestic product of China has revealed a slowdown, the
Company believes that this is normal and the impact is
minimal.

Besides, the PRC government hopes to facilitate the
substitution of originator drugs with generic drugs to
achieve savings of medical health insurance fund and
ensures that the generic drugs have most of the efficacy
of the originator drugs. As a pharmaceutical inspection
service provider engaging in consistency evaluation, the
Board believes that our pharmaceutical inspection business
will benefit from this national policy. The Group will also
continue to seek new opportunities and explore potential
investment opportunities as appropriate to generate
synergies from our existing healthcare business.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to thank all Shareholders, business
partners and customers of the Group for their support and
trust over the past year and express my sincere gratitude
to the Directors, management team and all employees for
their hard work and contribution to the Group.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 26 June 2019

CHAIRLADY’S STATEMENT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2019
COMPARED TO FY2018

Revenue

In FY2019, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB384.3 million, representing an increase of 186.6%
from approximately RMB134.1 million in FY2018.

Revenue in FY2019 was primarily derived from the delivery
of residential units of townhouse in Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City (f 828 | hEH) Zone 2 and residential units
of Yichun Royal Lake City (H & f/#14%) Phase 2. In FY2018,

TE-NWMEE-ZE-N\PEFE2HBEXELRE
-]

PN

RZZE—NAMFE AEBHEEFSUKALDHAREKE384.3
BEL R-_ZE—N\FFHAREI4ABELIEMN
186.6% °

FE-NAHEFEZRATEREXNESREEINREM
*%ﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ“”14&”5?%1@53)1% HiExE
fL-R—ZFT—N\FF WAZTERAIMEMERR
ER —_HEEEURBAFTELLEFH AN —HE

revenue was mainly attributable to the delivery of residential E £ o Lt pr A B X E -
units and commercial units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan
()1 2E XL REBT) Phase 2 and residential units of Yichun
Royal Lake City Phase 2. All the above units are located
in the PRC.
The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for TR T - NAMFROVEEWE - A EDE
(i) residential properties, (i) commercial properties, and (i) A (iii) % & {iz Z WA 7 #
car parking spaces during FY2019:
Percentage
2019 2018 change
“E-hE ZE-N\F Z2HEHL
()  Residential F=E
- GFA sold (in sq.m.) -EEREEBEUATEF XKD 30,419 18,384 65.5%
- ASP (RMB per sg.m.) -FHEBEFHIAKARE) 12,465 5,284 135.9%
— Revenue (approximately RMB’000) -WAARET ) 379,162 97,145 290.3%
(i)  Commercial mE
- GFA sold (in sq.m.) -EEREEBEUAFE KD 268 2,698 (90.1%)
- ASP (RMB per sg.m.) -FHEBEEFRARE) 10,220 11,915 (14.2%)
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) -IWAWARE T T 2,739 32,146 (91.5%)
(i)  Car parking spaces FEM
- Revenue (approximately RMB’000) -WABWARE T L) 2,381 4,791 (50.3%)
Total revenue (approximately RMB’000) WA EE (5 ARET L) 384,282 134,082 186.6%

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

12
i _ ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2019
COMPARED TO FY2018 (CONTINUED)

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB89.3
million in FY2018 to approximately RMB315.4 million in
FY2019. As a higher portion of the revenue of the Group
was attributable to the delivery of residential units of town
houses in FY2019 as compared with FY2018, which had
lower gross profit margin compared with residential units
delivered in FY2018, gross profit margin decreased from
33.4% in FY2018 to 17.9% in FY2019.

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses

Other income and other gains and losses increased from
approximately RMB63.0 million in FY2018 to approximately
RMB63.7 million in FY2019 mainly attributable to the net
effect of the increase of the net fair value gain on investment
properties and the net fair value gain on financial assets at
FVTPL with a decrease of government grants.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB10.8 million in FY2018 to approximately
RMB15.0 million in FY2019. The higher selling and
distribution expenses in FY2019 were mainly due to an
increase in the marketing expenses incurred for the launch
of Sino Harbour ® Wu Lin Hui (£/8 e E#[&) and Sino
Harbour e Guanlan (&7 e E) located in Hangzhou City
in Zhejiang Province and Yichun City in Jiangxi Province,
the PRC, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to approximately
RMB43.5 million in FY2019 from approximately RMB48.8
million in FY2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to
a decrease in staff cost as well as rental expenses.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB5.3 million
non-capitalised finance costs in FY2019, increased from
approximately RMB5.1 million in FY2018. The increase was
mainly attributable to the increase of bank and other loans
and the effective interest rate during FY2019.

Profit for the Year

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB67.9 million in FY2019, compared to approximately
RMB41.3 million in FY2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2019
COMPARED TO FY2018 (CONTINUED)

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased to approximately RMB35.3
million in FY2019 from approximately RMB40.1 million
in FY2018. The decrease was mainly attributable to the
decrease in deferred income tax for the deferred tax assets
recognised in respect of tax losses.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of
approximately RMB32.6 million in FY2019, compared to
approximately RMB1.2 million in FY2018.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2019

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB70.8 million, compared
to approximately RMB67.7 million as at 31 March 2018.
The increase was mainly attributable to the acquisition of
equipment during FY2019.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB547.4 million, compared
to approximately RMB553.0 million as at 31 March
2018. The decrease comprised mainly the net effect of
the disposal and the net fair value gain of the Group’s
investment properties.

Intangibles

Intangible assets represented copyright and customer
relationships arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary.

Interest in an Associate

The Group had interest in an associate of approximately
RMB4.8 million as at 31 March 2019, compared to
approximately RMB4.4 million as at 31 March 2018, which
represented a 30% equity interest in Davi as at 31 March
2019 and the share of results of an associate in FY2019.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

14

TE-NWMEE-ZE-N\PEFE2HBEXELRE
& (%)

FrE®mExX

FEHEBEIXE - N\HEHARBLI01EH B LH
LPE NP EHDAREIBIEET - HLPETE
THRAMRBEEMBERECHIEE EUNFEELERN
BB -

At REEBR-_ZT— NV EFEHEBRBEBEANOA
R#peaE T M E—NPFHNAEARKE1I2H
BT

R-ZB-AF=ZAZ+-HZUBRRERE

ME BERRRE
RZFB-NF=ZA=Z1t-"H AKEEEDVE &K

ERXEHOARBIOSEE T MR_ZE—N\F=
B=+—BAHNARE7T7TAEB T - %SHEBEITE
SRR _Z—NHFERERXRE -

BREWME

RZE—NFEF=ZA=Z+—"H x5EHEREME
ARBEBHOAREATAEE T MR- N\FE=A
=+ —HAHNARKS30EE T ZERPEER
REERFANEEREMEMELEN AR BERE FHE
ZEEEMN -

BRLEE
BRNEERZFRERAKRE -—RWBRAMITEN
EFPB@®&-

3 T ECET E
R-E—AE=ZA=+—0 AEEEARBER
AZBENARBLBEBT MR -F— \E= A
S+ -RBNARMIAEEL - NBE AR 2%

BR-ZZ—AF=A=+—BRARNH0BKER
RoFE-NHEDBHE AR ZEME




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2019 (CONTINUED)

Other Financial Assets and Financial Assets at Fair
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income

It represented equity interests in a number of entities
incorporated in the PRC and 1,170,000 ordinary shares
of LongYu, on which the Group does not have control
nor significant influence. It increased from approximately
RMB28.4 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
RMB33.4 million as at 31 March 2019 mainly attributable
to the fair value gain on equity interests.

Financial Assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL increased from approximately
RMB7.7 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
RMB12.7 million as at 31 March 2019, mainly due to the
increases in the fair values of the profit guarantees in Davi
and LongYu as well as the put option in relation to the
equity interest in Davi.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits decreased
from approximately RMB230.4 million as at 31 March 2018
to approximately RMB216.4 million as at 31 March 2019.
The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in deposits
pledged for bank loans and banking facilities granted to
the mortgages.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB2,183.1
million from approximately RMB1,664.4 million as at 31
March 2018. The increase was in tandem with the Group’s
joint venture partner which has designated all the rights
and responsibility in relation to the undeveloped project in
Yichun, the PRC, to the Group pursuant to the designated
operating agreement (“Agreement”) entered on 30 March
2018 and the construction progress of “Sino Harbour e
Guanlan” and “Sino Harbour ® Wu Lin Hui”.

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale increased from approximately
RMB243.8 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
RMB248.6 million as at 31 March 2019, mainly due to the
transfer of completed property units from properties held
under development for Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan
City Zone 2.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2019 (CONTINUED)

Accounts Receivable

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no accounts receivable
(FY2018: RMBO0.3 million). The decrease was mainly due to
the recovery of accounts receivable in FY2019.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB180.5 million as at 31 March 2019,
compared to approximately RMB268.3 million as at 31
March 2018.

Prepayments and other receivables decreased mainly due
to the transfer of deposit paid in relation to the Agreement
to properties held under development as well as the
prepayments paid to the contractors for the construction
of the Group’s projects.

Tax Recoverable

Tax recoverable increased to approximately RMB20.3
million as at 31 March 2019 from approximately RMB17.6
million as at 31 March 2018, mainly attributable to an
increase in prepayments of income tax during FY2019.

Accounts Payable, Accruals, Receipts in Advance and
Other Payables and Contract Liabilities

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB38.5
million as at 31 March 2019 from approximately RMB52.1
million as at 31 March 2018 due to a decrease in amounts
payable to the contractors for construction costs incurred
in respect of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan and Sino Harbour
e \Wu Lin Hui.

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that were
based on the progress of project development but were
not due for payment.

Accruals and other payables increased to approximately
RMB384.1 million as at 31 March 2019 from approximately
RMB175.1 million as at 31 March 2018. The increase was
due to an increase of the accrued construction cost for
Sino Harbour © Wu Lin Hui and Sino Harbour e Guanlan in
FY2019. Upon adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”) 15, an opening adjustment was
made on 1 April 2018 to reclassify sales deposits and
installments received from customers in relation to property
sales from “receipts in advance” to “contract liabilities”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT
31 MARCH 2019 (CONTINUED)

Accounts Payable, Accruals, Receipts in Advance and
Other Payables and Contract Liabilities (Continued)

Sales deposits and installments received from customers
increased from approximately RMB335.5 million as at 31
March 2018 to approximately RMB424.5 million as at 31
March 2019. The increase was mainly due to an increase
of pre-sale proceeds from the launch of Sino Harbour e
Wu Lin Hui and Sino Harbour e Guanlan.

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities increased from approximately
RMB83.6 million as at 31 March 2018 to approximately
RMB84.8 million as at 31 March 2019, mainly attributable
to the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair
value gain on investment properties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2019, the Group had recorded a net cash inflow of
approximately RMB46.2 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to an increase in accruals, receipts in
advance and other payables.

Net cash inflow from investing activities in FY2019 was
approximately RMB30.2 million, which was mainly due
to the disposal of investment properties and decrease in
pledged deposits.

Net cash outflow from financing activities in FY2019 was
approximately RMB83.9 million, mainly attributable to the
repayments of loan principals and interests, which were
partially offset by the receipts from new bank loans.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB279.8 million (31 March
2018: RMB222.1 million), of which consisted of cash
and cash equivalents of approximately RMB215.3 million
(31 March 2018: RMB222.1 million) and bank balances
restricted for construction work of approximately RMB64.5
million (31 March 2018: nil), and mostly were denominated
in RMB and HK$.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD T

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank and Other Loans

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB1,165.2 million (31 March 2018:
approximately RMB1,143.1 million).

EREEFEL R

BITREMER

RZZE—NEFEZA=Z+—H AEEHNEEEDHA
R¥E1 165288 T (ZE—NF=A=+—"H & A
RE¥114318E T) °

2019 2018

—E-hF —EF-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARB T

Within one year or on demand —FRHFEEK 688,733 458,884
In the second year RE_FR 103,675 408,292
In the third to fifth year REZZFRFA 372,825 103,675
More than five years AFMNUE - 172,200
476,500 684,167

Total borrowings BEE 1,165,233 1,143,051

As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s bank and other loans
were denominated in RMB and HK$ and bore interest at
floating rates ranging from 2.20% to 10.556% (FY2018:
1.92% to 6.99%).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity.
As at 31 March 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 61.7%
(31 March 2018: 59.9%). The Group has implemented
certain loan management policies which include close
monitoring of the gearing ratio and any changes in interest
rates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set
out in note 31 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Details of the financial guarantee of the Group are set out
in notes 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital and
other liquidity requirements principally from cash generated
from our operations and bank and other borrowings.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with
a combination of various sources, including but not limited
to cash generated from our operations, bank and other
borrowings as well as other external equity and debt
financing. The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent
financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits
and to maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure
that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances, financial assets at FVTPL, other receivables,
other payables and bank loans, which are denominated in
HK$ and US$. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

PLEDGE OF ASSET

As at 31 March 2019, the Group pledged its property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, properties
held under development, properties held for sale, and bank
deposits of approximately RMB1,554.4 million (31 March
2018: approximately RMB1,922.0 million) to various banks
to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have any
material acquisition or disposal of assets, subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during FY2019 (FY2018: nil).

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2019

No important events affecting the Group have occurred
since 31 March 2019.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in
FY2019 (FY2018: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2018: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 275 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2019 (31 March 2018: 318). Staff remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions, the
Group’s results as well as the experience and performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from
time to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits,
including medical insurance, and grants discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group. Employee
costs, including Directors’ emoluments, amounted to
approximately RMB29.9 million in FY2019 (FY2018:
approximately RMB31.7 million).

STATUS OF PROFIT GUARANTEE

(@) Davi
On 26 November 2015, JX Asia City, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Davi
Subscription Agreement to subscribe for a 30%
equity interest in Davi from an independent third
party, Smartway, at a consideration of RMB11.3
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STATUS OF PROFIT GUARANTEE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Davi (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the Davi Subscription
Agreement, Smartway had irrevocably guaranteed JX
Asia City that the audited net profit after income tax
expense per annum of Davi should not be less than
RMB7.0 million, RMB9.0 million, and RMB11.0 million
for each of the three years ending 31 December
2016, 2017 and 2018 (collectively the “Guaranteed
Periods”), respectively; or the aggregate audited net
profit after income tax expense should not be less
than RMB27.0 million for the Guaranteed Periods
(collectively the “Profit Guarantee”). If Davi failed
to meet the Profit Guarantee, Smartway was obliged
to make the shortfall compensation (the “Shortfall
Compensation”) to JX Asia City before 31 December
2019. Also, JX Asia City was granted the right, up to
31 December 2019, to resell its entire equity interest
in Davi to Smartway at a consideration equivalent to
the net investment cost paid by the Group plus a 13%
premium amount per annum and net of any dividend
and the Shortfall Compensation received during the
Guaranteed Periods.

Davirecorded net loss of approximately RMB2.7 million
and approximately RMB3.4 million and net profit of
approximately RMBO.5 million for the years ended 31
December 2016, 2017 and 2018, respectively, and
failed to meet the Profit Guarantee. Pursuant to the
Davi Subscription Agreement and discussions with
Smartway, the Shortfall Compensation was agreed as
approximately RMB8.8 million on 10 June 2019 and
to be due on 31 December 2019, and JX Asia City
reserves its rights to execute the exiting arrangement
until 31 December 2019. The Company will keep
its Shareholders and potential investors informed
of any further significant development as and when
appropriate.

LongYu

On 28 September 2017, Zhejiang Sino Harbour,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement to subscribe
for 1,170,000 ordinary shares of LongYu at a
consideration of RMB19.9 million (the “LongYu
Subscription Agreement”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmED

STATUS OF PROFIT GUARANTEE (CONTINUED)

(b)

22

LongYu (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the LongYu Subscription
Agreement, the guarantor has irrevocably and
unconditionally guaranteed Zhejiang Sino Harbour
that the audited net profit of LongYu for the financial
year ended 31 December 2018 shall be at least
RMB25.0 million and in which the non-recurring profit
or loss shall not exceed RMB5.0 million. In the event
that the audited profit is less than the guaranteed
profit (the “Shortfall”), the guarantor shall return
the premium portion of the valuation of LongYu (the
“Premium Portion”) to Zhejiang Sino Harbour. The
Premium Portion shall be calculated as follows:

RMB19.9 million x (1 — (16 x audited net profit) +
RMB400 million)

In the event that the Shortfall is caused by force
majeure, the guarantor shall return the Premium
Portion to Zhejiang Sino Harbour at a 25% discount,
subject to mutual agreement between Zhejiang Sino
Harbour and the guarantor. The Premium Portion at
a 25% discount shall be calculated as follows:

RMB19.9 million x (1 — (16 x audited net profit) +
RMB400 million) x 75%

According to the audited financial statements of
LongYu published on 30 April 2019, the audited net
profit of LongYu for the year ended 31 December 2018
was approximately RMB23.2 million and therefore,
failed to meet the profit guarantee of RMB25.0 million
to Zhejiang Sino Harbour. Based on the explanation
and several discussions with LongYu’s management,
Zhejiang Sino Harbour and the guarantor mutually
agreed that the Shortfall was caused by force
majeure. As of the date of this report, the guarantor
has made compensation in relation to the Premium
Portion at a 25% discount of approximately RMB1.1
million to Zhejiang Sino Harbour in accordance with
the abovementioned formula.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED N

COMPANY UPDATE

Property Pre-sales

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of
properties under each project up to 19 June 2019 are

summarised as follows:

DREBRHEE
NEEE

HZE—

X2 REBERABARMT

E-NFRNRATNLB ZEBZYVERER

Hangzhou
Sino Harbour e
Wu Lin Hui - Yichun
Building No. 3 Sino Harbour *
(Service Guanlan -
Residential Units Apartment) Phase 1
TMNES
M E 35 12 EREB.
FTEEN (BEXAE) BR-—8
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 20,049 sq.m. 68,169 sq.m.
(399 units) (560 units)
hEtHEL A HEE T EREMB(EEMCHE) 20,049 F 7 oK 68,169 F 77 oK
(399 f& & {7 ) (560 & % i)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 10,209 sg.m. 58,465 sq.m.
(213 units) (488 units)
LEERECAEEER(REMLEE) 10,209 F 75 oK 58,465 F 77 K
(2131 % fiz) (488 & & fi)
Percentage of pre-sale 51% 86%
SR K S
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed over to 10,209 sg.m. 58,465 sq.m.
buyers as at 31 March 20192 (213 units) (488 units)
HE-_Z—AF=ZA=Z1+—"BHARNERZ 10,209 F 75 K 58,465 F 77 K
PHEEFREEEB(EEESELHA)A (21318 % fiz ) (488 & & fi)

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers as at
31 March 2019/

BE_ZT-AF=A=+—HHRK
BiEERFTELEA

ASP per sq.m.*

BFHKRTHE @

Expected completion date

FE A5 A A BA

RNERZ

over to buyers.

N Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as
follows: Beginning of FY2019 pre-sales plus new pre-sales
during FY2019 less those handed over to buyers during FY2019,

which was recognised as sales during FY2019.

ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not
handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed

RMB328.27 million
ANRME3282THE T

RMB32,156
AR #32,156 7T
CY2019Q2
—NFE_ZFE

ZEBRBZTFHEEBHES

RMB370.73 million

AR¥370.73B & T

RMB6,341

AR #6,341 7T
CY2021Q2
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWED

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING
PROJECT

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order
to offer enough GFA available for sale and for delivery to
support our growth in future.

LAND BANK

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had land bank with total
planned saleable GFA of approximately 2,507,948 sqg.m.
in five cities in the PRC.

BREEERFERER

AREEEERRERBENRETHREETET
HHERRM A BEATER

T it
RZE-NANF=ZA=+—HB AEERFTE @K
MEBRMREIATEREMMBELN H2,507,948F 75 Kz
TR

Planned

Saleable GFA

BRETE

EEEE

Completed properties held for sale ERT2RHEWME 81,928

Properties under development il B R 4 % 499,849

Properties held for further development HIERKMAZ ZYE 1,926,171

Total #Et 2,507,948
FUTURE OUTLOOK AREE

Looking forward into 2019, the global economy is expected
to continue to grow slowly. However, the global trade
tensions will pose challenges to the recovery of the global
economy. Currently, the Chinese economy undergoes
a period of structural adjustment, transformation and
upgrading. It is anticipated that China’s macroeconomy will
maintain its steady growth as a whole. “One City One Policy”
will be the major direction of the China government which
puts forward the setting of a city’s primary responsibility for
the promotion of a stable and healthy development of the
market. The nature of this policy mainly refers to “acting
according to circumstances and giving different guidance
to different categories of cities” to genuinely stabilize land
price and property price. With the deepened regulation and
active development of long-term regulatory mechanism,
it is expected that the overall sales amount of the real
estate market across China will decrease. During the first
quarter of 2019, the cumulative growth of residential price
index of 100 cities across China continued to shrink as
compared with the last four quarters, but the overall price
was relatively stable. In terms of a single month, the price
in the previous two months continued to shrink on a month-
on-month basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

The sales amount of residential properties in the first-tier
to fourth-tier cities showed mixed performance: In the
first-tier cities, the regulatory guidelines have shifted from
managing the demand to increasing the supply. In the first
quarter of 2019, commodity housing in the first-tier cities
recorded a monthly average area sold of approximately
440,000 sg.m., up by 29% year-on-year. The market has
picked up significantly. Single month transactions rose
by approximately 50% year-on-year. In the second-tier
cities, regulation will continue to tighten and there are still
slight opportunities that annual sales amount will make
new breakthrough. In the first quarter of 2019, commodity
housing in the representative second-tier cities recorded a
monthly average area sold of approximately 640,000 sg.m.,
down by 4.8% year-on-year, among which, Hangzhou and
Nanjing both saw a year-on-year decrease but with signs of
recovery. The area sold in March 2019 increased steadily
year-on-year. In the third-tier and fourth-tier cities, the
de-inventory effect is prominent and the actual market
demand will decrease accordingly. In the first quarter of
2019, commodity housing in the representative third-tier
and fourth-tier cities recorded a monthly average area
sold of approximately 270,000 sg.m., down by 10.6%
year-on-year, among which, more than 50% of the cities
showed a decline in the area sold for such quarter year-
on-year. The cooling of the market is increasingly evident.
Benefiting from the increases in the overall supply and
market demand, selling price is expected to remain stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD T

FUTURE OUTLOOK (CONTINUED)

The Group will continue to actively expand the
pharmaceutical inspection and stem cell businesses. On 30
June 2018, Zhejiang IPS, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Agilent which is the world’s leading
measurement company and researcher and manufacturer
of biological science measuring instruments. Such
cooperation enables Zhejiang IPS to share the customer
resources of Agilent, and also focus on the drug packaging
materials compatibility research project, which is a key
element in the generic drug consistency evaluation. The
Group will spare no effort in its top priority of making Zhejiang
IPS become a leading contract research organization in the
PRC, while targeting the market opportunities brought
by the generic drug consistency evaluation in the PRC.
The Board is of the view that the stem cell storage and
consultation business will remain stable. The Group will
constantly seek new opportunities and explore appropriate
potential investment opportunities to create synergies with
our current healthcare businesses. With a strong financial
position of property development, the Group will continue
to assess new opportunities in healthcare sector to achieve
sustainable growth and to enhance Shareholders’ value.
However, the Board will remain cautious in the rapidly
changing environment.
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The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 95 and 96 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a Final
Dividend (FY2018: a final dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2019 AGM will be held at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong at 10:00
a.m. on Friday, 16 August 2019. The notice of the 2019
AGM will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2019 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Tuesday,
13 August 2019 to Friday, 16 August 2019, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote
at the AGM to be held on Friday, 16 August 2019, non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 12 August 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities
of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9
to 11 and pages 12 to 26 of this annual report respectively.
The above sections form part of this report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of
the Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we are
unable to acquire suitable land for property development at
prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies.
Our Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 35 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 241 and 242 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group
has complied with the applicable laws and regulations
regarding environmental protection. The Group has
submitted environmental impact assessment report for
each of the Group’s projects before the commencement
of construction and obtained approval from the relevant
environmental protection bureau after completion of each
of the projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on pages 241 and 242 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group
for the Year and the financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2019 are set out on pages 95 to 240 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the Shareholders for FY2019, before
dividends, of RMB20,730,000 (FY2018: RMB4,883,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in
reserves are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 99 and 100 of this annual
report.

At 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB19,525,000 (FY2018:
RMB22,077,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2019, the Company did not redeem any of
its listed securities; nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue
of new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by the
municipal government of the PRC for its employees in the
PRC. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out
in note 3.19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 27
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers amounted to approximately
1.1% and approximately 5.2%, respectively of the Group’s
revenue for the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 24.1% and 55.9% of total payment under
construction contracts for the Year, respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates
or any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of the
Company’s issued shares) had any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Ms. CHAN Heung Ling (Chairlady)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang

Mr. LEE Man To

Ms. ZHANG Juan (Resigned on 1 August 2018)
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointed on 1 August 2018)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 83(2) and 84(1) of the Bye-
laws, Mr. WONG Lui (an Executive Director), Mr. LEE Man
To (an INED) as well as Mr. HE Dingding (an INED) will
retire from office and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the 2019 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. LEE Man To and Mr. HE Dingding an
annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations
and not aware of any unfavourably reported incidents, as
at the date of this report, the Company considers that all
of them are independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 80 to 86
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors and NED has a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 10 June 2017 and each of these service
contracts is subject to termination by either party giving
not less than six months’ written notice to the other and
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of one year and
thereafter shall continue year to year subject to termination
by either party giving not less than one month’s written
notice to the other and retirement by rotation and re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2019 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account the Group’s operations, earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability
and other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of
dividends will be subject to the Company’s Bye-laws and
the Companies Act of Bermuda, including the approval of
the Shareholders. Future declarations of dividends may
or may not be reflected from the Company’s historical
declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute
discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the
recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and the
Board’s approval. The emoluments are determined by the
Board by reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

() Long Position in the Shares

EERTETBRAEZESR

E-NEF=ZA=+—HB BEFREAQRAFEN
ERAAAEREEBEZE(EERBSREE
XWMW&@ HEROKEEITHEENQ
BHrRBEGRDEXVEEETRE8D 8 A B8 A
@T&W“%%E ERRB(BRERERZ S B
SR EBGRXREFRRRBEENERLIKE)
()ﬁﬁézﬁ&%fﬂ1J%%ﬂ AERANZIGHR
B CHBEZREST R ABHARA ME R
%W%m ERAWMT

i) RBROZHFER

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors/  Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
Chief executive Nature of interest interested Total issued Shares*
L NN

EE TETHRAE 546/ i HAERER ERTRGOZ
i BamiE ZRHEE st BB
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
R+ EREBA

Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120

(Note (@)
T B R (H i (a)

Interest of spouse (Note (a)) 111,028,643 1,173,655,153 47.63%

e {8 % & (M it (a)
Mr. SHI Feng Beneficial owner 1,665,042 1,665,042 0.06%
Al % ERBEBA
Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b)) 5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%
e BB # s (Mt b))
Notes: Bt st -

(a) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
issue share capital of which is owned as to 48% and 52%
by Ms. Chan and her husband, Mr. Wong respectively.
Therefore, Ms. Chan is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares held by Extra Good and Mr. Wong
(whether by himself or through his controlled corporation)
under the SFO.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

() Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun, who
is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE Gang is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the SFO.

The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares, if any, interested divided by
the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at 31
March 2019.

(i) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporation
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EERFETHRABZESZ(A)

) RE®OzZHFRGE
Wit < (48)

(b) 5,902,663/ % 17 £ Wong Man Bun% =+ (#Z ) 5% £
ZE)FH AU RIEFFRBEKG - R E
A8 AR Wong Man BunX +# A .2 [A — # Bk 15
HEH e

- BAHEREEZNROREBER G (W0E)EH

BU —FE—NF=ZA=+—HEETRHEA
2,464,000,000 /% g 17 °

(i) REBEZIZIBEROZER

Number, class and
percentage of issued

Name of shares in associated

Name of associated Capacity/Nature of corporation held/
Director/Chief executive corporation interest interested Total

i/ HEREN

EX TETHAR HHZENESRTRG
%A HELE AR B/ EEMHE ¥EB FHiRBSW @t
Ms. Chan Extra Good Beneficial owner 48 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares
(48%) (100%)
B+ Extra Good ExBEBA 48R LB AR (48%) 100 8% I 38 i (100%)

Interest of spouse 52 ordinary shares

(Note) (52%)

e Bz (M it) 52 f& & 3 1% (52%)

Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as to
48% and 52% by Ms. Chan and her husband, Mr. Wong
respectively. Under the SFO, Ms. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Mr. Wong in Extra Good.
Mr. Wong is a sole director of Extra Good.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Bt i# :Extra Good 89 B 7T IR K f R 20 + R H LK F 5 £
5B HE B 48% K 52% - IRIK T 5 R EIKH] - F X
T+ /B AR & £ RExtra Good#F B HI R 17 B HEH
HE 75 o )T 55 4 A Extra Good My — & % o
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2019, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entity or person other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares

BEROZH

ZNNETIE e SO N S e DRGNS
AEEREMBSRARETIEMNLEMBAEEE K
HBBEA(EER LTARAATEEBEARARAXNE
MEMEBORNAEEEMRP RS =S -

FERRzZES
RZE-NF=A=+—R BEZHMH UATE
BIAT(BEFRARATETHRAERINREKND
EHEBEROTFEBELCERACAREZZ R ERK
HIE3BHATHFENBTTMHOERL AR :

RERGz2HR

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
Shareholders  Capacity/Nature of interest held/interested Total issued Shares*
s HEAERR HARDEE BT

RREHBE 54/ EutE 2R EE Bt ROZBOBEI >
Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good EmBEAA
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 111,023,643
FRAE ERBEBA

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note) 1,011,885,120

Ry EEER ()

Interest of spouse (Note) 50,746,390 1,173,655,153 47.63%

A BEzm( )

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the husband of
Ms. Chan, and 48% by Ms. Chan. By virtue of SFO, Mr. Wong
is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held
by Extra Good and Ms. Chan (whether by herself or through
her controlled corporation).

* The percentage represents the number of the Shares interested
divided by the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at
31 March 2019.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

Long Position in the Shares (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
entity or person (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as required to be recorded
in the register to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transaction as disclosed in note 34 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements also fell under
the definition of “continuing connected transaction” in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the annual amount
involved in this continuing connected transaction is
less than HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected
transaction qualifies as a de minimis transaction under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULES 13.18 AND 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

On 5 August 2016, Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate
Company Limited (M &8 E % BRE A7) (‘Hangzhou
Ganglian”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as borrower, entered into a loan agreement (the “Loan
Agreement”) with Hang Seng Bank (China) Limited,
Hangzhou Branch (BARIT(FBE)BR A FTINHD1T)
(the “Bank”), as lender, pursuant to which the Bank had
agreed to grant to Hangzhou Ganglian a loan of up to
RMB450 million (the “Loan”). The final maturity date of all
outstanding amounts under the Loan Agreement will be the
date falling 36 months after the first day of draw down of
the Loan by Hangzhou Ganglian or the date of termination
of the Loan Agreement for breach of the terms therein,
whichever is the earlier.

The Loan Agreement requires, among others, that Mr.
Wong and Ms. Chan retain their effective control over the
Company at any time, any failure to comply with which will
constitute an event of default under the Loan Agreement.

As at 31 March 2019, approximately RMB310.9 million of
the Loan had been drawn and utilized.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No arrangements, transactions or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company
or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
any entity connected with a Director has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 March 2018, the Company and Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan
and Extra Good entered into a non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Group and Mr.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good that it had
complied with the terms of the Non-compete Undertaking
during the period from 30 March 2018 to 31 March 2019.
The INEDs have also reviewed the said confirmation and are
of the view that Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good had
complied with the terms of the Non-compete Undertaking.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred
in or omitted in or about the execution of their duties.
In addition, the Company has taken out appropriate and
sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising
out of corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the
Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the
Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e.
at least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during
the Year and as at the date of this report.
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DONATION

During the Year, the Group did not make charitable
donation (FY2018: RMBO0.2 million).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment
as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2019
AGM. There has been no change in the Independent
Auditor since the listing of the Shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

SHI Feng

Deputy Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has applied the principles and complied with all of the code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code during the
Year except as disclosed in this report.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that
the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Currently, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three Executive Directors, Mr. SHI Feng (the
Deputy Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED Ms. Chan
(the Chairlady) and three INEDs, Mr. XIE Gang, Mr.
LEE Man To and Mr. HE Dingding. Mr. WONG Lui is
the son of Ms. Chan. Save as disclosed above, there
is no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 80 to 86 of this
annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
merits while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, such as gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merits and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

All Executive Directors and the NED have entered
into service contracts with the Company for a specific
term of three years. All INEDs have entered into letters
of appointment with the Company for a specific term
of one year.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three INEDs, one of
whom has appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting and financial management. Each of
the INEDs has confirmed his independence of the
Company and the Company considers each of them
to be independent in accordance with the guidelines
for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal vacancy
or, subject to authorisation by the Shareholders in
general meeting, as an additional Director. Where
vacancies exist, the Board shall carry out selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience,
qualification, integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each
AGM provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given
sufficient time and effort to the affairs of the Group.
The INEDs have provided the Board with their
diversified expertise, experience and professional
advice. The Board believes that the ratio between the
Executive Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and
adequate to provide sufficient checks and balances
that safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and
the Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the
issues relating to strategy, performance, conflict of
interest and management process to ensure that
the interests of all Shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses
and affairs as well as unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with
Board papers and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with
code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code. All Directors have participated in continuous
professional development and provided a record
of training they had received for the Year to the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A)
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3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The individual training record of each Director
received for the Year is set out below:

(A)

EEE(H)
REBEEAFE FZEFEIEIZBAZESH
T

Reading materials and/

or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,

operations and corporate
governance matters
HMERBER EER
TCEEARBEERFENRS

Name of Directors EEpns RHEEBEEE HR
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman Vel

and Chief Executive Officer) (BIEEFEREHNTE) 4
Mr. WONG Lui T& T v
Ms. GAO Lan BRKZT 4
NED HITES
Ms. Chan (Chairladly) Rz £ (F/E) v
INEDs BIYFHTES
Mr. XIE Gang fi7 W % £ v
Mr. LEE Man To OB R4 v
Ms. ZHANG Juan (Resigned on KBEZER=ZF—NFNA—HEE)

1 August 2018) 4
Mr. HE Dingding (Appointedon ~ BT T R4 (R=_F—N&FNA—H

1 August 2018) HEZ(F) v

During the Year, the Board held four meetings and
a meeting on 26 June 2019 and, amongst other
matters, approved the Consolidated Financial
Statements. At these Board meetings, the Directors
discussed and exchanged their views on significant
issues and general operations of the Group, reviewed
the financial performance and reviewed and approved
the quarterly, interim and final results.

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company Secretary assists the Chairlady in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. He also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Chan is the Chairlady and Mr. SHI Feng is the
Chief Executive Officer. The division of responsibilities
between the Chairlady and the Chief Executive Officer
are clearly divided to ensure a balance of power and
authority.

Ms. Chan, being the Chairlady, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. She would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information
being provided to the Directors and encourage the
Directors to actively participate in the Board to act
in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. SHI Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board
and leading the management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to
the Company or its securities). After having made
a specific enquiry by the Company with each of
the Directors, all of them confirmed that they had
complied with the required dealing standards set
out in the Model Code and the Company’s code of
conduct throughout the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(D)
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3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2019
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the Year
then ended and are properly prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their
reporting responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s
report of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
The Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Terms of
Reference”). As the amended code provision C.3.2
was effective from 1 January 2019, the Company has
adopted the change to the Terms of Reference to the
effect that the cooling-off period for former partners
of the Company’s external auditor before they can be
members of the Audit Committee has been extended
from the previously 1-year period to a 2-year period.
The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely
Mr. LEE Man To (the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and
Mr. HE Dingding. The Audit Committee reports to
the Board and is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements. Under its
terms of reference, the Audit Committee is required
to perform, amongst others, the following duties:

° monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

o reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during
the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2019 and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved (i)
for presentation to the Board for consideration and
approval the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and (ii) audit-related matters. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the Year,
amongst others, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong (the “Independent
Auditor”), in respect of the Year amounted to
HK$1,000,000. No non-audit service was provided
by the Independent Auditor for the Year.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed to
recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as
the Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the
2019 AGM.
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(G)

(H)

48

3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man To and Mr. HE
Dingding, one NED, Ms. Chan and one Executive
Director, Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings
during the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2019 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration certain remuneration-
related matters of the Directors and senior
management. All minutes are kept by the Company
Secretary. During the Year, amongst others, the
Remuneration Committee (i) evaluated and reviewed
the performance of individual Executive Directors
and senior management of the Company in respect
of FY2018; and (i) recommended to the Board for
consideration on the discretionary bonus for FY2018
of each of the Directors and senior management of
the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(H NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. LEE Man
To and Mr. HE Dingding and two Executive Directors
Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings
during the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2019
and , amongst other matters, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2019 AGM. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the
Year, amongst others, the Nomination Committee
(i) assessed the independence of the INEDs;
(i) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of
the Board and the board diversity policy; and (iii)
reviewed the performance of the retiring Directors
and recommended to the Board the re-election of the
retiring Directors at the AGM held on 30 July 2018
(the “2018 AGM”).

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship(s) to the Board by giving
due consideration to the criteria, including but not
limited to Board diversity, qualifications, experience,
independence, reputation for integrity and potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the
Board before making recommendation to the Board.
The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the
candidate(s) by interviews, background checks etc.
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3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures
and process:

50

The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with
due consideration given to the criteria which
include but are not limited to the following
(collectively the “Criteria”):

(@) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others,
of gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b)  Commitment for responsibilities of the
Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(c)  Qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries
in which the Group’s business is involved;

(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(9) Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession
of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Vi.

vii.

viii.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a
broad range of candidates who are in and
outside of the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for
the directorship, the Nomination Committee
will hold a meeting and/or by way of written
resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment, and where a NED is
considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected
candidate to be interviewed by the members
of the Board, who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board
will thereafter deliberate and decide the
appointment as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as Director of
the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge
or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.

Vi,

Vii.

viii.
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3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June
2016 delegated such responsibilities to the Audit
Committee and the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee were revised and adopted on 17 June
2016 to include the responsibilities on reviewing the
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general
meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:

=g M\Aﬁﬂ:

EERZEERENERHFERTR

Ti’%%&ﬁ‘Jﬁzﬁ%ﬁ}* AEEBRTZESZS
2 EFREERRNARARRAENRLE:

. I

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held

EEERENY ERETRY
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Espgs Exg ENEES FHEES REZES BRRAE
Executive Directors #H{TEE
Mr. SHI Feng BI&%E 3/4 N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1
T @A TEA
Mr. WONG Lui Tank 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1
TEH iR
Ms. GAO Lan BEXT 4/4 N/A N/A 2/2 1/
T H TR
NED FUTES
Ms. Chan B+ 2/4 N/A 1/2 N/A 1/1
i F TER
INEDs UHHITES
Mr. XIE Gang A7 W 5 & 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. LEE Man To FTHELE 3/4 3/3 2/2 2/2 1/1
Ms. ZHANG Juan R/ LT 0/3 0/2 0/2 0/2 0/1
Mr. HE Dingding ETT44 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A
TEHR TER TER
Code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance EEATATAKRNEASTIERTE B

Code provides that independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders. One
INED was not able to attend the 2018 AGM due to her
business engagements. Other Board members who
attended the 2018 AGM were already of sufficient
calibre and number for answering questions raised
by the Shareholders at the 2018 AGM.

HITEFREMIFQTETREERRRNE
TEHRENEREAENTHR ARSEEL -
—EBBUFHNTEERELFE T NFRR
BEAG - HMHE-_Z-NFRREFKE
MEFEXNECRARALNRAZEERR
RZFE-NFERRBEFAEGLHRER-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control framework. The controls are
to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
The systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting
the tone of the organisation and influencing the
control consciousness of its staff. A weak control
environment foundation hampers the effectiveness
of even the best designed internal control procedure.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with
the risk management and internal control code
provisions set out in code provision C.2 of the
Corporate Governance Code by having adopted a
three-tier risk management approach to identify,
assess, mitigate and handle risks. The Group has
developed and adopted a strategic planning and risk
management policy, which is designed to enhance risk
management of the Group by identifying, analyzing
and evaluating the possible material risks which
shall have adverse impact on the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, including strategic risks, financial
risks, market risks, operational risks and legal and
regulatory risks. Divisions and department heads are
responsible for the first line of defence. They oversee
the daily operations of their own business units and
are accountable for the conduct and performance of
their own operations. Any incidents regarding non-
compliance of their operations with regulations and
laws, failure to identify or properly manage the risks
associated with their business units, which might lead
to financial or non-financial losses to the Group, shall
be reported to the legal and compliance department
and the internal audit department of the Group (the
“Internal Audit Function”). As the second line of
defence, the Internal Audit Function defines rule
sets and models, provides professional advices,
develops work plans of internal audit, as well as
monitor and review the processes, practices and
procedures of internal controls for all business units
on a regular basis. It annually prepares internal audit
report containing findings and recommendations for
improvements in respect of the risk management and
internal controls and submits such report to the Audit
Committee for review. It also ensures that risks are
within the acceptable range and that the first line of
defence is effective. As the final line of defence, the
Audit Committee, with the professional advices and
opinions from the Internal Audit Function, ensures
that the first and second lines of defence are effective
through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to the
Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable.

(K)
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3 ’M\Aﬁﬂ:

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that
any potential inside information is promptly
identified and escalated;

° establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

° restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession
of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

° disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(K) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

o develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;

° provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such

policy;

o document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation
up to date; and

o publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company.
The materiality of the relevant information will be
assessed and, if considered appropriate, such
information will be escalated for the attention of the
Board. Before the inside information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Company shall take reasonable
measures to preserve the confidentiality of the
information. In the opinion of the Board, where the
information has not been kept confidential or there
has been a leak, the Company must issue a public
announcement by way of the electronic publication
system operated by the Stock Exchange as soon as
reasonably practicable. If the Board needs time to
clarify details of, and the impact arising from, an event
or a set of circumstances before it is in a position
to issue a full announcement to properly inform the
public, the Board shall consider issuing a “holding
announcement”. There are circumstances where
confidentiality has not been maintained and the Board
is not able to make a full announcement or a holding
announcement, the Board shall consider applying
for a trading halt in its securities until disclosure can
be made. All announcements in relation to inside
information disclosure should be properly approved
by the Board and issued to the public without delay.

(K)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL (K) b= R A AR (H)

CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of BUZHMEREFEEZARRERREER
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant HENEAEERRUEAMBRERE B 2 NI
to the Group's preparation of the consolidated B - RAFEEFSECABRERZTESRT
financial statements within the scope of their audit. BEAAEERREIE RN EZE RS 2B EE
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit YERSNARBEG  AEBBEF R BEER
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness BeEFTEAMNER BINEERER UWEE
of the risk management and internal control systems EMEINEIREREHBERGRA - &
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of EeHERARAREERASEZEZRAARR
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the TR

Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial

reporting functions, and their training programmes

and budget. The Board believes that the existing

risk management and internal control systems are

adequate and effective.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND (L) EEREREEEFHMH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate BECEEATATAIRIEBALSE  F1EH
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members RAFRIZEZRRATEEBCEREFHE] — 8
of the senior management (other than the Directors) CEAFERRAEREE(TREES)KREH L
whose particulars are contained in the section EHMEFMOT

headed “Biographical Information of Directors and

Senior Management” in this annual report for the

Year by band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$) Number of individuals
FEMEE (s T) A"
Nil to 1,000,000

= £ 1,000,000 4
COMPANY SECRETARY (M) 2FRHE

The Company has appointed Sir Kwok Siu Man KR
(“Sir Seaman”) as the Company Secretary with effect
from 1 August 2018.

Sir Seaman was nominated by Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as
the Company Secretary and Boardroom has been
providing certain corporate secretarial services to
the Company pursuant to an engagement letter
entered into between the Company and Boardroom.
The primary person at the Company with whom Sir
Seaman has been contacting in respect of company
secretarial matters is Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Billy, the
Group’s financial controller.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(M) COMPANY SECRETARY (CONTINUED)

(N)

Sir Seaman delivered and attended over 15 hours’
relevant continuous professional development
training during the Year pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
has been/will be subject to the Board’s approval at
its meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
at least 20 clear business days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures
for demanding and conducting a poll) and other
relevant information. As at the beginning of the
meeting, the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll will be explained by the chairman
of the meeting. Vote results are released by way of
publication of an announcement.

(M)

(N)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the
right to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2153 1688

Facsimile: (852) 3020 5058

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

(P)

Procedures for Making Proposals at the
meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower
B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau
Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The
request will be verified by the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the
general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has posted its constitutional documents
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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HEREGRE

COMPANY PROFILE

The Group principally engaged in the property
development in the second and third tire cities in
China. The head office is located at Hong Kong.
The property project included residential properties,
detached housing, apartments, retails as well as
commercial properties.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of
Stock Exchange since 22 July 2011 (Stock Code:
1663).

The Group is committed to integrating environmental,
society and governance considerations in its daily
operations. Sustainability principles have been
established with four crucial areas: Environment,
People, Products and Communities.

Key material aspects ranging from occupational
health and safety, environmental protection, quality
assurance to harmonious communities were
pinpointed to illustrate the sustainable performance
of the Group. Regular meetings, workshops, and
feedback programmes have been conducted to
collect stakeholders’ views in order to retain a
bilateral communication channel.

ABOUT THIS REPORT
2.1 Reporting Scope

2.1.1The ESG report is published by the
Group for the Year. The scope of the
report covers the Group’s principal
business operating areas, including
completed properties, properties held
under development, properties held for
investment and the Group’s own property
unless otherwise specified.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
2.2 Reporting Standard

2.2.1This report was prepared in accordance
with Appendix 27 “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide”
(“Appendix 27”) of the Listing Rules.
In preparation of this ESG report, the
Group strictly adhered to the reporting
principles in the Appendix 27 to reveal all
the material aspects of the business in
a quantitative, balanced and consistent
manner.

2.2.2The corporate governance of the Group
was addressed in accordance with all
applicable code provisions set out in
Corporate Governance Code.

EMBRACING SUSTAINABLE PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT

3.1.1The sustainable development of the
Group consists not only of establishing an
environmental, health and safety stewardship,
but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The system provides the
Group with opportunities to prioritize and value
stakeholders’ engagement and expectations.

3.1.2The Group’s business sustainability strategy
is based on integrity, ethics, green innovation,
originality, quality and safety and shareholders’
value. With such strategy, green property for
sustainable future will be achieved. The Group
is therefore fully committed to resource-
efficiency innovations, environmental and social
friendly operations. Such engagement enables
the Group to operate its business with greater
transparency and effective risk management
framework.
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HEREGRE

ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
4.1 Minimizing Environmental Impacts
Air Emissions Control

4.1.1In accordance with the Group’s
environmental policy and green property
development vision, the Group has
developed preventive measures for
contractors to better manage the
emission on sites. Contractors are also
required to set up on-site preventive
measures for emissions control. For
property management, the Group has
installed a mechanical exhaust system
in underground parking lots. The
system measures the concentrations
of the gaseous emission to ensure the
concentrations are maintained within the
safety range stipulated in the relevant
standards.

4.1.2Moreover, Greenhouse Gas emissions
control relating to electricity efficiency and
saving across the property development
projects and office works.

4
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Overview of Sino Harbour’s Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG)*

EERERBHEREHRE

2019 2018
Scope 1 Direct Emission (tonnes of CO2 equivalent)(tCO2e) 49.59 4712
HE-HEEHFR (H_StHnEE
Scope 2 Indirect Emission (tCO2e) 410.63 375.22
SE-_BEFRM_FLtREE
Total GHG Emission (tCO2e) 460.21 422.34

RERAB(M_StREE)

/Jm::

The reported figures represent greenhouse gas emissions from
the major business units of the Group.

The GHG intensity is not significant during the operation.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

4.1

Minimizing Environmental Impacts
(Continued)

Noise Mitigation

4.1.3 At every stage of property development,
noise levels generated from construction
are regularly assessed and monitored.
The contractors are required to implement
noise control measures in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations.
The Group encourages contractors to
adopt low-noise construction machineries
to further minimize noise pollution. The
purpose is to reduce the environmental
impact in all aspects of the Group’s
operations.

Waste Management

4.1.4 The Group is committed to reduce waste
during its operation. To effectively monitor
wastes, the Group has begun to collect
data on its solid waste emission.

4.1.5Disposal records are regularly monitored
by the Group to identify areas of
improvements. A transparent and
verifiable waste recording system is set up
on each property to enable performance
monitoring.

4.1.6 During the reporting period, the operation
of the Group and its contractors have
complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations regarding waste
handling.

RE  #HERERESE

RELELE(E)

WO BREEE(H)

FE 16 1R &

AIBREERNYERENEEARREH
FERERMNEERESANRE R - &
BRARBHEBEIZEIAERRS
EHEE- ASEXBAREBHRAE
BRERZEKE UE-—TRKESZ /R
WA EHND TR D AREEEERR
BETHNREZE -

BRYEE

ATARKEEBR AR B EEROERY -
REMERERY AEECEHKEK
SERBERERYMHFROEE-

A15REBEHENEE LS UBHNE
EWREMHE - SENEHRRIE
BARENEYEERS UERR
e .

416N HMEHE AEBEREABFNHK
ECEBTHAEERMEERMD
RREABER -

Overview of Non-Hazardous Waste Data*

BREBREVBEHE

2019 2018

Paper consumption

MR OH 3

The reported figures represent non-hazardous waste from the
major business units of the Group.

0.44 tonnes 0.51 tonnes
0.44 M 0.51 g

& FEAEA LT ERXBENELNEEEEY -
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

4.2 Smart Use of Resource
Energy Saving

4.2.1 Efficiency in energy consumption in terms
of electricity, gas and fuel, is crucial
to the Group’s business sustainable
performance. The Group strives to
achieve energy reduction through a
variety of initiatives across the property
development projects. During designing
and planning phases of its properties,
preference is given to energy saving
building materials and equipment.

4

RELELE(E)

42 EREERER

BO A BE R

42ABBEE N - MR KB H) 8L TR H R X
SHAEEXTNARERRRR
EHEZ - AEBEBNEBRYWER
LEREBRSREERMERAE X
SERMERALAEEREBLTE
BETREZEM B RERE -

Overview of Energy Consumption*

REREERE

2019 2018
Electricity Consumption (kWh in ’000) 670.38 612.80
HEE(TTER)
Energy Produced from Fuel (kWh in ’000) 202.61 191.95
MEAEENRIR(T T RE)
Total Energy Consumption (kWh in ’000) 873.00 804.75
BEBE(TTER)
Energy Intensity (kWh in ’000/RMB’M revenue) 6.43 6.00

ERBE(TTRER BRAARYEART)

Water Preservation

4.2.2 Water efficiency is another important
aspect of resource conservation. The
Group has also incorporated various
water conservation apparatus in its
building designs, including central water
reuse facilities and water-saving toiletries
to efficiently manage water consumption.

The reported figures represent the energy consumption from
the major business units of the Group

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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ADVOCATING A GREEN OPERATION
(CONTINUED)

4.2 Smart Use of Resource (Continued)
Water Preservation (Continued)

4.2.3Proper water consumption monitoring
system is implemented to achieve
continual improvement of the efficiency
and consumption optimization.
Contractors are strongly encouraged to
implement appropriate measures and
prevent freshwater wastage on site.

BIE dE8REB®SE
218468 E ()

4.2 EREEER(E)
BO A 2k (&)
423X EEERASBEBNKEIRBERER
A NERHERERXLEAH
M- AEERNEZAERBEREE
) 15 i 0 FE BT 3R 15 K KB RE o

Overview of Water Consumption*

KEREEBRE
2019 2018
Total Water Consumption (m3) 5,456 11,196
KEREFELE (L FXK)
Water Intensity (m3/RMB’M revenue) 40.69 83.50

KERBE(LFRK BAARKEERT)

CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE

5.1.1 The employment policy ensures the selection
and promotion of staff are based on merit
without bias toward gender, religion, race or
other similar factors.

5.1.2 An attractive and competitive remuneration
packages are provided to the Group’s
employees to keep potential talents. The
packages comply with the relevant labour law
for developing an emolument management
system in regards to working hours, rest,
vacations and wages. Moreover, reasonable
allowance or annual leave for overtime work on
statutory holiday are provided to employees in
order to encourage work-life balance.

The reported figures represent the water consumption from the
major business units of Group.

5

RETREEE

SITEBBRRERENEHRBEERENES -
EMR FH BHRIEGEUERTE
BERR -

SBI2AKRERREBEREERINARBEF N
FHOABRBEEAT FHMTSHEES
BErR THEABIERHE KK K
BERIENFMERRS - B BER
EEMBANMATZERAEN R KF
R AxBTIERAEFE-
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CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE
(CONTINUED)

5.1.3 Child and forced labour are strictly prohibited in
the Group. Age confirmation and identification
check-up shall be carried out by Human
Resources Department before employment to
avoid child and forced labour which against
the relevant law. Furthermore, whistleblowing
mechanism was established to encourage
employees to address the above concerns
through confidential and comfortable reporting
channel.

5.1.4 No relevant complaint has been received during
the reporting year.

5.2 Employee Training and Education

5.2.1 Front-line staff needs to handle high-risk
activities during constructions and they
are offered adequate vocational trainings
regarding safety and environmental
protection to support their duties.
Moreover, the staff should be equipped
with job-related professional skills through
trainings to improve their capability. Be
a responsible developer, the Group has
been regularly monitored their contractors
to ensure if enough trainings are provided
to the staff to enhance their knowledge
and skills for discharging duties at work.

5.3 Providing Healthy and Safe Workplace

5.83.1The Group believes that it is its
responsibility to provide a safe workplace
for employees. The employees shall be
notified their working conditions by the
employer in accordance with the relevant
labour law. In addition, authorized permit
is needed to access the construction site
for the sake of safety enforcement.

5.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism

5.4.1The Group upholds integrity, fairness,
transparency, accountability and tolerates
no corruption and fraud. Additionally, the
Group is providing a level-playing field to
all contractors and suppliers.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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5 CREATING VALUES FOR OUR PEOPLE 5 AEBEIREE®EGE
(CONTINUED)
5.4 Anti-Corruption Mechanism (Continued)

5.4 RESH#S (E)

5.4.2 Internal control manual and project bidding
management system were established to
fight against bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering among the contractors
and suppliers. Whistle-blowing policies
were implemented to all stakeholders
to report suspected misconduct,
malpractices or fraudulent activities.
Reported cases shall be investigated
by the Group’s Audit Committee and
executive management.

5.4.3 During the reporting year, the Group did
not work with any contractors or suppliers
who failed to comply with the laws,
regulations and the Group’s policies.

PROVIDING THE BEST TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Supply Chain Management

6.1.1 Effective communication between the
Group and contractors and suppliers is
necessary for assuring quality, enhancing
efficiency and creating sustainable living
to the construction projects.

6.1.2A comprehensive, impartial and
transparent bidding procedure has
been developed for selecting building
materials, equipment and services from
contractors or suppliers. All contractors
and suppliers are expected to meet
environmental and occupational health
and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during the
tendering procedure. Moreover, Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

6.1.3 Regular assessments and monitoring on
procurement process, health and safety
performance shall be conducted to ensure
contractors and suppliers operating in a
sustainable manner and to uphold the
highest reliability commitments.

542K EEEH ERIBESFMEEE
BEERHE TEARARERERD
MR R MAERKEBEE- A&
EAMERMEERBREE  UR
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EREEBAE -

SABRBEFERN AKBE Y EEEMFAD
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HEEER
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bI2ASEE RN ABEAHERERE
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PROVIDING THE BEST TO OUR CUSTOMERS
(CONTINUED)

6.2 Quality Management System

6.2.1The Group is striving for excellence to

provide premium properties and services
to clients. With the view to achieving
high service quality, an independent
“Completed Construction Works
Examination Report”(F23& T 2% T &k
¥R &) was produced after the completion
of construction works. The construction
work shall be completely inspected by
professionals before being concealed
by subsequent work. Once the building
is completed, all relevant information
including but not limited to examination
result and improvement shall be included
in the report.

6.2.2 In order to achieve continuous improvement

of sustainability performance, the Group
strives to be accredited as certified
green buildings by complying with the
international new building standards.
By adopting an affordable range of best
practices during design and planning
stages, the environmental impacts were
minimized for constructing a new building
as well as improving the environmental
quality and user satisfaction.

Intellectual Property and Data Privacy

6.3.1In order to pursuit continuous

improvement in quality, the Group has
developed its own policy and code of
conduct as internal guide for quality
control. The guide includes the protection
of intellectual property rights and client
data. All contractors are expected to
follow the same practices.

6.3.2 The group has received no complaints

about the products with regards to health
and safety, advertising, labelling or any
privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress
during the reporting year.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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COMMUNITY OUTREACH

As the business continues to evolve and develop,
the Group has remained steadfast in its commitment
to make a positive change in the communities.
The Group firmly believes in its role in invigorating
the communities through sharing its prosperity.
Understanding that different segments of the
communities all have their own distinct challenges,
the outreach programs have been developed to
address the particular needs of each group.

LOOKING FORWARD

8.1.1 Looking ahead to the coming years, the Group
is fully engaged in promoting sustainability
culture into its business practice and daily
behaviour to its employees and contractors.
Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable
development management approach that
values stakeholders’ expectations.

8.1.2The Group expects to drive potential
opportunities for innovation from its sustainable
development ambition for adapting challenging
economic environment, and fully endorse its
social responsibility. This will increase the
corporate reputation, stakeholders’ satisfaction
and the market recognition.
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RE  HERERWE

9 THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX

9.1.1 This report has been prepared in accordance
with the ESG Guide of the Stock Exchange.
General disclosures are indicated in the table
below that directs readers to the relevant
sections.

9 BIXFRER HEREABEESIRS

IQINARFENRBRBIMRR LB RERE
SImE TREB —REE I EHFEH
EAEEES -

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BMXRE HERERMEESIRS

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
RBE HEREREM PRt 8 BR
A. Environment
BRIR
A1 Emission
HHY
General Disclosure The Group is not aware of any
noncompliance of laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to air and GHG emissions, noise
emission and waste during the reporting
period.
— MR E AEBUYTATHABUHAEEEEAXE
MEREBERMBEERBER BS
M REMRERERNEMABER-
A 1.1 The Type of emissions and respective 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 64 and 65
emissions data
PR R AR 2 A B R AR EREZE 64 % 65

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9

GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

BRXABRE HEREBHKREESI RS ()

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
A 1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 64 and 65
tonnes)
BERBESHREAMEE) AR EREZE 64 & 65
A 1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in The Group does not produce hazardous
tonnes) (if appropriate) waste in the operation during the Year
FEABREREDRASEUBHE) (N AFEAN XEEBRELFIRELES
#A) EREEY
A 1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 64 and 65
tonnes)
ELABREEZEVRE(AMEE) AI1BREREZE 64 & 65
A 1.5 Description of measures to mitigate 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 64 and 65
emissions and results achieved
MAUREBERENERRAMEKRR 41BRERRZE 64 } 65
A 1.6 Description of how non-hazardous 4.1 Minimising Environmental Impact 64 and 65
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives
and results achieved
HMILEEREEREEDN LA BRE 41BRERRETE 64 & 65
EXENREHEIAERR
EBREREEBRAR 73
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9

GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

BRXRBRE HER

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

EA®EESI R (&)

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
A2 Use of Resources
BEREH
General Disclosure 4.2 Smart Use of Resource
— MR E 428 RAEREA
A 2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
consumption by type and intensity
RERREEESNEER IR 428RE5EEH 66 & 67
B eeR B
A 2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
mRERKERETE 428 REEER 66 K& 67
A 2.3 Description of energy use efficiency 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
initiatives and result achieved
Mgt RER AR ERAFEHRR 428REEEH 66 [ 67
A 2.4 Description of water efficiency initiatives 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
and result achieved
K fE B AR AT 8 R PG RCR 428 RE B E A 66 K 67
A 2.5 Total packaging material used for The Group does not use packaging 66 and 67
finished products, if applicable material for finished products
B RAMAEEMHNEREWMER) AEENREXRLREHBEMH 66 & 67
A3 The Environment and Natural
Resources
RERAARER
General Disclosure 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
—REE 428 REBER 66 & 67
A 8.1 Description of the significant impacts 4.2 Smart Use of Resource 66 and 67
of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them
HAMEBIZHHRERAAERN 428 R6EB®HA 66 & 67

BEAXENERDNEEERTEDN
T8

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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9 THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

RE HERE

A E

9 BXFRER #HERERHEESIRS(E)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
B. Social
HeE
B1 Employment
12 18
General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People
—REE 5. REIRIEEBME
The Group is not aware of any non- 67 to 69
compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations concerning its employment
practices.
REBYATHEEBEERTRAOKR 67269
BTFHBEREROEBER -
B 1.1 Total workforce by gender employment The Group is in process of refining its data
type, age group and geographical collection system. The Group plans to
region disclose the information in the future.
ZHR - EREREE FRAMNKME AEBFEELEIBURERR K&
ZloHE BB B BARRBEEZEHR -
B 1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age The Group is in process of refining its data
group and geographical region collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
ZHR - FiRrANEkwRESPNE AEBEFEEBLEHBURERR K&
Bkt = B BARRBEEZEHR -
EBEREEERAR 75
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9 THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9 HBXFRE HEKERFEESIEI(H)

GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

76

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
B2 Health and Safety
BERLZE
B2 General Disclosure The Group has complied with all laws and 67 to 69
regulations relating to occupational health
and safety.
— R E AEBCETEHERERERTEHN 67%269
EEBRER -
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related The Group is in process of refining its data
fatalities collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
EITEMEME T A B KL X AEELTHEBCEBBKRERS - A&
Bt B RKIEEZER -
B 2.2 Lost days due to work injury The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
HIGEEXITHERR AEELTHEBCEBBKRERS - A&
Bt B RKIEEZER -
B 2.3 Description of occupational health and 5. Creating Values for Our People 67 to 69
safety measures adopted
MR B EERELS2ER b5 /REITAIEERE 67 =69
B3 Development and Training
BRRE
B3 General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People 67 to 69
— R 5 RETAEEE 67 £69

B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category

rUEFREERMNESHOXIEES
=i
B3.2 Average training hours completed by
employee by gender and employee
category
BRERREERNE 5
5E K X A Y 15 B B

THEE

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited

. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
AEBTFTEBILEHBRERS - K&
Bt B RRIFEEZEKR -

The Group is in process of refining its data
collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
AEBTFEEBILEHBRERS - K&
Bt B RRIEEZEKR -
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9

GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

BRXABRE HEREBHKREESI RS ()

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
B4 Labour Standard
& TREA
B4 General Disclosure 5. Creating Values for Our People 67 to 69
— BRI EE 5 RETAIEEE 67 £ 69
B4.1 Description of measures to review 5. Creating Values for Our People 67 to 69
employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour
MRS BREEMNERAEESE 5. RETAEERA 67 £ 69
T he&tls T
B 4.2 Description of steps to eliminate such 5.Creating Value for Our People 67 to 69
practices
O R B BB R PT ERER ) A B 5. RETRIEEE 67 £ 69
B5 Supply Chain Management
1 fE 2 &
B5 General Disclosure 6. Providing the Best to Our Customers 69 and 70
— R E BRAEFPIRHESRHFNRE 69 & 70
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical The Group is in process of refining its data
region collection system. The Group plans to
disclose the information in the future.
miEE DR ER A AEBEHEBLELEEBRERG K&
Bt B RRIEEZEKR -
B5.2 Description of practices relating 6. Providing the Best to Our Customers 69 and 70
to snagging supplier, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented and monitored
HMAEHEEAHERNEDN mME 6ATEFPRERHKTFNRY 69 & 70
MITREREMENNHEREA
EREREEERAT 77
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THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9

GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

BRXRBRE HEREAHKREESI RS ()

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIERS

ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER
B6 Product Responsibility
EmEF
B6 General Disclosure Group is not involved any incidents of 69 and 70
non-compliance with laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
Group concerning product responsibility.
In cases where a complaint is received,
formal investigations are launched and
appropriate follow-up actions will be taken.
— MR E AEBUYBESAETEHIEREE 69K70
MZERER BB AEEREERTZEN
EAEMH M BRF - GETERH
LT UHEREENRETH -
B6.2 Number of service related complaints 6. Providing the best to our customers 69 and 70
received and solutions
EEEARBREORFBEEARBR REFPFEESFTFNRS 69 &% 70
GRS
No complaint was received during the
reporting Year.
WEFE AL ERKIIEF -
B6.3 Description of practices relating to 6. Providing the best to our customers 69 and 70
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights
MR EEERRENIERFEAN RTPREZKTNRE 69 &% 70
1& I
B6.4 Description of quality assurance 6. Providing the best to our customers 69 and 70
process and recall procedures
HAEERERAEREROKEF 6ATFPEEZKHFNRE 69 % 70
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection 6. Providing the best to our customers 69 and 70
and privacy policies, implementation
and monitoring
R EBEEEHRERLBEE: 6A/AEPRERESZRHFNRE 69 K& 70

HITRER
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. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R HBREBRS

9 THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING 9 HBXFRE HEKERFEESIES(H)
GUIDE INDEX (CONTINUED)

Stock Exchange ESG Reporting Guide Index
BRXARE HBERERBEESIES
ESG Aspect Statement/Section Page No.
BRI - HEREREE BR it 8 BER

B7 Anti-Corruption
RKEF
B7 General Disclosure The Group is not aware of any material 67 to 69
non-compliance with any relevant laws
and regulations.
— IR E AEBWANEBRERETHBAERE 67269
EREVIE R

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases During the reporting period, there was no
concluded legal case regarding corruption.
EEENEERRMHHE REBREHHE TEEBAESNEELED

EAEL

B7.2 Description of preventive measures, 5. Creating Values for Our People 67 to 69
implementation and monitoring
Ml @R BT RER 5 RETAIEERE 67 £ 69

B8 Community Investment

HERE
B8 General Disclosure 7. Community Outreach 71
— MR E 7.0 B BR % 71
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution 7. Community Outreach 71
EHERMAEE 7.4t 8@ AR 7% 71
B8.2 Resources contributed 7. Community Outreach 71
FrE R &R 7.0 B BR % 71
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEECEBEFE

CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

CHAN Heung Ling (BRI%), aged 60, is one of the
founders of the Group. She became the Chairlady and
the NED on 4 July 2011. She is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Ms. CHAN is mainly responsible
for the formulation of the overall strategy of the Group. She
has engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings, and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011. Ms. CHAN is
the wife of Mr. Wong, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui,
one of the Executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (A £), aged 61, became the Deputy Chairman,
the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director on
4 July 2011. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. SHI is responsible for the management of
project plans, quality control, coordination with contractors,
and the management of the Company’s subsidiaries. He
joined Pan Hong Holdings in September 2002 and was
an executive director of Pan Hong Holdings from January
2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC (% A R 3£ 1B &8 T 24 #f) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the
PRC in December 1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department
of Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under
the Ministry of Metallurgy (A& LEIE —_+ = a& E&X
N E(Me L EAITER)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an
engineer at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry
of Light Industry (88 T 2 &8 & &% 51 Ft) from 1983 to 1992,
where he specialised in the structural design of buildings.
Mr. SHI subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of
Huizhou City, Guangdong Province (B & EMMEEE
EHR AR in the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy
general manager, responsible for real estate development
and technical construction management. Between 1999
and 2002, he was the general manager of 3A Electronics
Co., Ltd. (I EMIN=BFE-FAHMRAF]) in Huzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. SHI is now a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing
director of the Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association.

WONG Lui (7£%), aged 36, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (5 & 4L 2 gl jE) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#E/JIZE#E§ZFT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of JX Asia City
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan Hong
Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou Pan
Hong”, #E N7 5= b 2 7 35 B BR /A 7)), Hangzhou Ganglian
FINAERBE 2B R AF]) and Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator
Limited (“Hanyun Incubator’ I ZF(LEZERA
7)) in 2009, 2014 and 2015 respectively and was mainly
responsible for the formulation of business strategy and
the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou
Ganglian and Hanyun Incubator.

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. Chan and Mr. Wong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEECEBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

GAO Lan (5/&), aged 53, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as
an Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(IPET 3 KE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (FA&AX2), in 1987 with a bachelor’s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 20083.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department of
Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development Co.,
Ltd. (A& MM LERZEARAR]) from 1987 to 1993.
She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (B8R
S (HE)E ) in 1993, acting as the director of the chief
executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (BEIRYEHEREBRATF]). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (E/B&ETHEIRE
AR A R]) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009,
she was the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di
Consultant Co., Ltd. (7 & & i EE G BR A 7). Afterwards,
she joined Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (L PE 385 & %
AR & T2 7]) as the general manager from 2009 to 2010
before joining the Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (M), aged 54, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office
from 1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

LEE Man To (Z#UH), aged 46, became an INED on 4
July 2011. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee. Mr. LEE is an executive
director, the financial controller, qualified accountant
and company secretary of Combest Holdings Limited, a
company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 8190). He is also currently an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee
and member of each of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of PacRay International Holdings
Limited (K& BB A IR A 7)), a company listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1010)
with effect from 15 April 2018. Mr. LEE has over 22
years of experience in auditing, accounting and finance
including acting as accountant, compliance officer and
financial manager for various private companies. Mr. LEE
graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with
a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1995. Mr. LEE is an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

EERGREEB2EBEFE

BYFHTES

B 54 R_F——FEtAMNAKRBILIEHR
TEE - BMALENTAFHZEGRREAZEEZE
FREZZBEGLKE - BEER - NAAEFEZ
TE_FHREEZEZREEREMNRKREEENR
X HEAERRMRFRZELERRILEBLRAES
BOoRAIZEREE - B_TZE=6ZFZ_ZTN\F
HE BREBRABSRRERAAPEERS R F
FEEKE-B BERFNBEER EBRILF QAN
BRARAE BIEFEE KHEZXR EREE ™
LEBEMHEESE - BEEAR-ANANNFLAEER
TEEMAXSE REEMMEE LB -

FEE 6 R _ZET——FLAWUBKABILIE
HTEF NTRECZEGZEIRAFHZESH
REZEGZHRE -FREERBIXMGEM L™ A A
FEEBRERAB(RMDAR 8100 ZHITESE
MBHRE AEREFMRAAWE - RITIB-F
—N\FOA+THEAEEEBIAEIRLHTRAAKRE
RERERAAUEOKI:E - 1010) 2 BIZ FEHRTT
Ex ERZEeIRAVHMZESRERZBE
RE - -ZEEREF S AMBITEHEEB22F
K BERZELEARNELSFdM R E
RUBEEBRE FTAER-NANAFEERETRE
BEIAZ RS B28+8U-FREAETES
FAMAESERABERTLARSAMAGTEREE -

EREREEARAF
A, 2018/19 F#k

183




BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEECEBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

HE Dingding (&7 T), aged 42, has more than 14 years of
extensive experiences in capital markets, corporate finance,
investment and finance, and corporate management
through working in investment banks, advisory firms and
listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since 2005.
Mr. He was an independent non-executive director of China
Kangda Food Company Limited, the issued shares of which
were listed on the Main Board of both the Stock Exchange
and Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (stock
codes: 834 and P74, respectively) between August 2012
and June 2015. Mr. He was a non-executive director of
Perfect Group International Holdings Limited, the issued
shares of which were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3326) between March 2017 and
February 2018.

Mr. He graduated from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.
He was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LI Ming Yuan (Z8jt), aged 56, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in 2004 as deputy general manager of JX Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (LB EE AR AR
in the same year.

Mr. LI was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University (LFAEZEERAZ) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in industrial and
civil construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (EmM MK LTIEFAZE AR A R).
Mr. LI was certified as an engineer in 1997.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

QIU Si Yuan (B8 2 R), aged 59, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over
25 years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (%
HE T ERED TEER AR A) (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (8 T %
BRI EETFT) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (# 7
KAk iEEE R = AR A A)) as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.

LIU Lin Yu (218 ), aged 67, is the Group’s director of
project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Holdings in 2000,
and had been responsible for costs management of the
development projects of Pan Hong Holdings. Since joining
Pan Hong Holdings, he has served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. (1§
5 7= % EHEABR/AF]) and on-site engineer of Huzhou
Liyang Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. (%
NS EHER AR A F]). He had also served as the
budget forecast manager and the deputy general manager
of JX Asia City.

Mr. LIU was certified as an assistant engineer by
Chaozhou City Science and Technology Committee (4
MARIERfTE E€) in the PRC in 1989. He graduated
from an intermediate level professional civil engineering
correspondence learning course (F&EREHTIER
¥ I from the Sichuan International Technical and
Economic Management Training Centre (79| B8 5 4y £ 4%
BB RZREEHIF L) in the PRC in 1990. In 1991, he was
qualified as a budget forecaster and worked for Chaozhou
City Qiao Dong Construction Company (FiM fEREE
‘A7A]). The said qualification was granted by Guangdong
Province Construction Standard Authority (&5 %& 2 %12
YEEREABUL) in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEECEBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LAU Ka Ho, Billy (2|Z%), aged 34, has been the Group’s
financial controller since 1 August 2018.

Mr. LAU joined Pan Hong Holdings as the group financial
controller and company secretary on 31 July 2017 and
was responsible for the finance and accounting functions,
statutory compliance and corporate governance.

Prior to joining Pan Hong, he worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to September
2012, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP (Beijing Branch,
China) from October 2012 to November 2014 and Deloitte
Touche Financial Advisory Service Limited (Shenzhen,
China) from December 2014 to June 2017. Mr. Lau is a
member of CPA Australia. He obtained a bachelor’s degree
in commence majoring in accounting, finance and financial
planning from the Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

B BETRE

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
5% © +852 2218 8288 EHTEER1115
{8K : +852 2815 2239 K258

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on
pages 95 to 240, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2019, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Refer to notes 3.7, 4.2 and 6 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale of approximately RMB384.3 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019. Revenue arising from the
sale of properties held for sale is recognised at a point in
time when customers accept the properties, unless at the
time of entering into the contract, the sales and purchase
agreement satisfied the criteria for recognising revenue
over time by containing an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and the performance of the
Group does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale is
recognised upon the transfer of control of these properties
held for sale to the customers. The revenue recognition is
dependent on the contractual arrangements for the sale
and the laws in the relevant jurisdiction and may require
significant audit effort and management judgement.

Other response

Our audit procedures included:

- Reviewing the legal advice provided by the
Group’s legal advisor, including the legal advisor’s
interpretation of the applicable laws and the
implication on the assessment of the enforceability
of the right to payment;

- Assessing the competency, experience and objectivity
of the legal advisor engaged by the Group;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)
Other response (Continued)

- Assessing the management’s control over the point
of time at which revenue from sales of properties held
for sale is recognised by obtaining an understanding
of the management’s control process and testing the
control on a sample basis; and

- Reading the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, on a sample basis, and obtaining
evidence regarding the completion and the delivery
of properties, on a sample basis, including checking
to completion certificates and delivery notices, to
assess whether the criteria for revenue recognition
set out in note 3.7 to the consolidated financial
statements have been met.

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.15, 3.16, 4.1, 21 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and together represent the
largest category of assets on the consolidated statement
of financial position at approximately RMB2,431.6 million
as at 31 March 2019.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and
their net realisable values.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs
to complete their projects.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Other response

Our audit procedures included:

= Assessing the calculations of net realisable values
of properties held for sale and properties held under
development, and challenging the reasonableness
and consistency of the assumptions used by
management;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sample basis, by
comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.10, 4.1 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 14.3% of the
total assets of the Group as at 31 March 2019.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied in deriving at the capitalisation,
discount and terminal yield rates i.e. a small change in the
assumptions can have a significant impact to the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of external valuer;

- Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions adopted
for the valuations;

- Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used; and

- Assessing the adequacy of related disclosures in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in
this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BETRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEeEEEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

2019 2018
—E-AF ZE—)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M &t AR F AR TF T
Revenue WA 6 384,282 134,082
Cost of sales 85 6 B AR (315,395) (89,321)
Gross profit E R 68,887 44,761
Other income and other gains and Hi A AR H Mtz &
losses E 18 6 63,682 62,996
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEER (15,030) (10,776)
Administrative expenses EBEEH (43,537) (48,750)
Operating profit £ R A 74,002 48,231
Finance costs B & KR 7 (5,320) (5,113)
Share of results of joint ventures FEEEEEEE (1,193) (501)
Share of result of an associate JEAGEEE N A EE 439 (1,315)
Profit before income tax BRATBHAER 8 67,928 41,302
Income tax expense Fris®im < 9 (35,292) (40,114)
Profit for the year FRRF 32,636 1,188
Other comprehensive income Huzmhz(EBNKRHEE)
(net of tax)
Item that will not be reclassifiedto KA SEHF L BEEEH 2
profit or loss HHB
Changes in fair value of equity BAARBERAEME2E KR
instruments at fair value through R RETIRE 2 AR
other comprehensive income B & & 491 -
Item that may be reclassified HESTHEHFIEZE
subsequently to profit or loss BxmzHEHE
Exchange differences on translation REFIINEBYBREZ
of financial statements of foreign ME X =28
operations (16,064) 13,512
Other comprehensive income FRAHMEZEK SR
for the year (15,573) 18,512
Total comprehensive income FRAE2EKEHEAE
for the year 17,063 14,700
Profit/(loss) for the year LTATEMRERBRN
attributable to: (EB#8):
Owners of the Company FiN/NISIE = RN 20,730 4,883
Non-controlling interests ey 11,906 (3,695)
32,636 1,188
EREREERRAR 95
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEEEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = F—NF=H=1+—HI-FZ

2019 2018
—E-AF —ZE—-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR FT ARBTFT
Total comprehensive income MTATELEZE KSR
attributable to: 485
Owners of the Company KRABIHA A 5,157 18,395
Non-controlling interests I 15 I #E 2 11,906 (3,695)
17,063 14,700
Earnings per share for profit FARDBAEBAENL
attributable to the owners of the B ZEREF
Company during the year (AR % 7)
(in RMB cents)
- Basic and diluted —EXREE 11 0.84 0.20
96 . Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE B ESIR O R

As at 31 March 2019 R=F—AF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M AR FTT AR BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENRE® 13 70,846 67,697
Investment properties KEME 14 547,379 552,984
Intangibles WA B 15 15,705 11,400
Interests in joint ventures NELShEZRER 17 - 184,265
Interest in an associate MNEtE NE 2R 18 4,797 4,358
Other financial assets Htoph&E 19 - 28,357
Financial assets at fair value through BAnrEREME2E K
other comprehensive income TR 2 & mEE 19 33,422 -
Financial assets at fair value through ERARBEBREBERINEZ
profit or loss TREE 20 - 7,690
Pledged deposits BEHEEEFER 25 5,500 5,500
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE 28 12,552 11,514
690,201 873,765
Current assets REEE
Properties held under development FE Y E 21 2,183,059 1,664,440
Properties held for sale FEYyE 22 248,582 243,761
Accounts receivable JE U BR X 23 - 321
Prepayments and other receivables T8 7 5RIE K E b fE I EOIR 24 180,499 268,271
Tax recoverable Al 3R [B] 7 18 20,346 17,557
Financial assets at fair value through BEAnBERBERIEZ
profit or loss TRt EE 20 12,655 =
Pledged deposits B\ F TR 25 210,899 224,882
Cash and bank balances NE RIBITHES 25 279,841 222,147
3,135,881 2,641,379
Current liabilities RnBEE
Accounts payable FE 5 BR 3K 26 38,485 52,115
Accruals, receipts in advance and fEEtZE Bl RER
other payables H fih B~ 2| 26 384,136 510,689
Contract liabilities EHBEE 6 424,475 -
Provision for tax Fi 18 B 126,798 123,565
Bank and other loans RITREAME R 27 688,733 458,884
1,662,627 1,145,253
Net current assets REBEEFEHE 1,473,254 1,496,126
Total assets less current liabilities #EERTH & & 2,163,455 2,369,891
EREREERRAR 97
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E BRI R

As at 31 March 2019 R=F—NF=A=+—H

2019 2018
—E-NE —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

it ARE TR AR®TFT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank and other loans RITREMERK 27 476,500 684,167
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEBE 28 84,773 83,618
561,273 767,785
Net assets BEE 1,602,182 1,602,106
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to KAREBEAEMLMESR
the Company’s owners
Share capital & A< 29 20,735 20,735
Reserves 1 30 1,329,776 1,345,606
1,350,511 1,366,341
Non-controlling interests FERER 251,671 235,765
Total equity EXER 1,602,182 1,602,106
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
PR I 32 A g
Director Director
EF EF
98 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

mERRBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 i ZE=F—NF=FA=+—HI F&E

ARAREAELESR
Non-
Share Share Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium® reserve” reserve” profits* interests equity
RE  ROEE ARG EXEG  BREN FBRES  BRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AR¥TT AEEFT AREFZ NEETT ANEETT
(Note 30())  (Note 301ii)
(Htson) (W 3t300)
At 1 April 2017 RZB—+tEWA-H 20,735 565,212 76,232 1,070 706,545 227,460 1,597,254
Transaction with owners HBEFAZXS
Capital contribution by FERERTE
non-controling interests = = = = = = 12,000 12,000
Profit for the year FRET = - - - 4,883 (3,699) 1,188
Exchange differences on RESIERUE
translation of financial RERZELZES
statements of foreign
operations - - - 13,612 - - 13,512
Total comprehensive income FAZENZEE
for the year - - - 13,512 4,883 (3,699) 14,700
Dividend paid to owners of the BERARAEFA
Company k& - - - - (21,848) - (21,848)
Transfer to statutory reserves EREETRE - - 1,260 - (1,260) = S
At 31 March 2018 RZE-NE
ZA=+-H 20,735 565,212 77,492 14,582 688,320 235,765 1,602,106
| EBEREEERAR 99
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KRAREAREESR
Fair value
through other
comprehensive Non-
Share Share  Statutory income  Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
BARER
Et2m
& 5
REx  ROEE* EERG WaEE ERfE BRER ai FEREE EREE
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBFL ARBFR AREFR AREFT AREFRT AREFIZ AREFRZ AREFRT AREFR
(Note 30(i)) (Note 30(ii))  (Note 30(iii)
(WE300) (#E300) (B 300i)
At 1 April 2018 WoE-NE
mA-A 20,735 565,212 77,492 - 14,562 688,320 1,366,341 235,765 1,602,106
Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BEREMBE BB
BERUER - - - 4,074 - (3,697) 31 - 317
20,735 565,212 77,492 4,074 14,582 684,623 1,366,718 235,765 1,602,483
Transaction with owners HEEAIXF
Capital contribution by FERESTE
non-controling interests - - - - - - - 3,000 3,000
Avising from acquisition of KERBARESE
subsidiary - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
- - - - - - - 4,000 4,000
Profit for the year FERRH - - - - - 20,730 20,730 11,906 32,636
Changes in fair value of equity RERZERER
instruments at fair value through 2 % B+ E M IR iE
other comprehensive income IEZRRERY - - - 491 - - 491 - 491
Exchange differences on BERNEBEE
translation of financial BERIELER
statements of foreign
operations - - - - (16,064) - (16,064) - (16,064)
Total comprehensive income FREARZEHE
for the year = = = 491 (16064) 20,730 5,157 11,906 17,063
Dividend paid to owners of the BERERRIEEAL
Company & - - - - - (21,364) (21,364) - (21,364)
Transfer to statutory reserves BRIITEE - - 5,509 - - (5,599) - - -
At 31 March 2019 Rog-hE
ZA=+-H 20,735 565,212 83,091 4,565 (1,482) 678,390 1,350,511 251,671 1,602,182

& The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,329, 776,000 *

BZERBEBAEHARK1,329,776,000T (= F — )14 :

A K #1,845,606,0007T) it AR ZFE—ANF=H=+1—
HAGEEMBRARZ EEA -

in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019 (2018:
RMB1,345,606,000).

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited I\
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

2019 2018
—®¥-hE —T-N\&
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR¥ T ARETFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RE EZHFELBRERE
Profit before income tax K BT 18 %4 BT 4 A 67,928 41,302
Adjustments for: HTHIEEELFAE:
Interest income FE WA 6 (11,171) (9,200)
Interest expense B X 7 5,320 5,113
Amortisation of intangibles B EEHE 8 800 600
Depreciation of property, plant and mME-BERRERE
equipment 8 2,517 2,855
Loss on disposal of property, plantand HEME  -WE L&KHEZ
equipment & 18 8 - 91
Impairment loss on other financial HttemEE 2 REERE
assets 8 - 360
Loss allowance of other receivables H fih B UL ZXIE 2 & 1B B A 8 260 -
Share of result of an associate JEAG B & N A ¥ A (439) 1,315
Share of results of joint ventures EEEELEEE 1,193 501
Net fair value gain on financial assets R QAR ERIBRIIE 2
at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZAAE
W 58 6 (4,965) (620)
Net fair value gain on investment REMEZ AAERS
properties R 6 (17,861) (14,327)
Operating profit before working capital & & & & & ) f 2 &K &
changes i ) 43,582 27,900
Increase in properties held under AEmYERSEDE
development and properties N
held for sale (31,022) (98,840)
Decrease in accounts receivable JE Wt BR BRI A 321 1,203
Increase in prepayments and other T8 15 0 OIE KO M fE W RRIR
receivables bl (160,175) (175,932)
Increase in restricted bank balances PR %l 4R 17 45 82 18 0 (64,521) -
Decrease in accounts payable & 15 BR ZUR 4 (13,630) (27,782)
Increase in accruals, receipts in ExzE FEWZHER
advance and other payables E b e R IE K&
and contract liabilities S4B EEm 295,241 45,5637
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEERES(FTA)
operations R4 69,796 (227,824)
Interest received 2 F B 11,171 9,200
Income tax paid BB (34,731) (19,430)
Net cash generated from/(used in) A E B AT E (BT )
operating activities B FE 46,236 (238,054)
EREREERRAR 101

2018/19 F 3




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

%Afﬁﬁiﬁ%%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M 7 AR FT ARETFIT
Cash flows from investing activities R ETFEFELR SR E
Purchase of property, plant and BEVE BELKE
equipment (6,851) (14,773)
Proceed from disposal of property, HeEdE . JFﬁ B &%
plant and equipment BT 18 3 T 296 5
Proceeds from sale of investment &R ,éf % ESSiRCE QL
properties 26,248 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net WEE KT B A Al /F 58 (2,965) -
Purchase of other financial assets BEHEMESREE - (21,890)
Purchase of financial assets at fairvalue B EIZ A A BN AW 2 E
through other comprehensive income I 45 51 B 10 & R & & (500) -
Proceed from disposal of other financial tlj EHMEEEMS
assets X IH - 1,800
Decrease in structured bank balances T% 14 4R 1 TT & 8O - 1,500
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits E 17 ZOR 9/ (#1n) 13,983 (8,824)
Advance to a joint venture mAeEDERR = 2)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEESL"(BAH)
investing activities B FE 30,211 (42,184)
Cash flows from financing activities BEFEFELR SR E
Dividend paid to owners of the BENARREREARE
Company (21,848) (21,848)
Proceeds from new borrowings Fil Ft BEEZE 381,270 571,604
Repayments of borrowings EBEEE (373,743) (249,287)
Capital contribution by non-controlling  FE#E R #E 251 &
interests 3,000 —
Interest paid 2 1 F (72,555) (62,055)
Net cash (used in)/generated from & E B (BT )BT E £
financing activities B FRE (83,876) 238,414
Net decrease in cash and cash RBeRESEEBYRD
equivalents =g (7,429) (41,824)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net MR &2 F5E 602 (421)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNReLBEEEEY
beginning of the year 222,147 264,392
Cash and cash equivalents FERESRESEEY
at end of the year 25 215,320 222,147
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRReSEEYHEH
and cash equivalents: o
Cash and bank balances e MIR1T 4 8 279,841 222,147
Less: restricted bank balances WX R B ER 1T 4 82 (64,521) =
215,320 222,147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements on pages
95 to 240 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2019 were approved
for issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on
26 June 2019.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
—RER
BEAEREBRERAR(ERARA DR E ——
F-—AAAREBREEZE - LN\ —FRaF%HE
BREFMKYAEREAEREETLAA AR
7 5= it % = & {57 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda & K X & 2 = &
EEMBUREBNELW S EEEI7-39%R
A EPOBEIISE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%A%ﬁﬁEWH

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

2.

—NFZA=1—HILFE

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants which are relevant to the Group’s
operations and effective for its financial statements
for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2018.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Amendments to HKAS 28,

2014-2016 Cycle Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40
HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures, clarifying that a
Venture Capital organisation’s permissible election to
measure its associates or joint ventures at fair value is
made separately for each associate or joint venture.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group is not a
venture capital organisation.

1 04 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing together
all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: (1) classification and measurement; (2)
impairment and (3) hedge accounting. The adoption
of HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has resulted in
changes in accounting policies of the Group and the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Classification and measurement of
financial instruments

(i)

The following table summarised the impact, net
of tax, of transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening
balance of reserves and retained profits as of
1 April 2018:

Retained profits

%Aﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

Retained profits as at 31 March 2018

Increase in expected credit losses (‘ECLSs”)
in other receivables

Restated retained profits as at 1 April 2018

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”) reserve

FVOCI reserve as at 31 March 2018

Reclassify investments from available-for-sale
at cost to FVOCI

Restated FVOCI reserve as at 1 April 2018

2. EirEE(H)
ERMBRELEANFIE-SMIE
EAUKREENFIFRN _ET—NEFE— A —
B A BHAZEEHBRARE S LR E
VFEEMTE - EREFE G I A
Az AZAAE:- WD BERTE QB E:
rRHregst BT —NF—A—BERH
EAMBRELEFIOFRCERNAEES R
REREEUERERERZSCEELEEFH -
(i) 2BITAZZ7EBRFIE

TERBABEZE BV ERE LR FOR
RZE-—N\NENA—BYEEELRERES
FzBodesr s B(BIIE):

RMB’000

BE&HA AR TFT

R-ZE-NF=ZA=+-8Z

B 1F s A 688,320

HbEWRE2BEHEEREIR

([FEHEERFE] LN (3,697)

RZE—NFWMWA—HBHZ

KB BT % A 684,623

BRAREREMZEKIFY R

(THEAAREREMZEWEFTER] RMB’000

- L AR T

R=F-—N\E=A=+-HZ

BARBEREMEZEKREINNEZ

&% 1% -

B ERIEKANEY R AT E

EoBERAAEREMLEZEA

I 35 51 BR 4,074

R=Z-N\FHA—BZEES

BEARBEREMEZEWKENEZ

&% 1 4,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

106

Classification and measurement of
financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements
for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except
for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), where the
amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of
financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it eliminates the previous HKAS 39 categories
for financial assets of held-to-maturity financial
assets, loans and receivables and available-for-
sale financial assets. The adoption of HKFRS
9 has no material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies related to financial liabilities
and derivative financial instruments. The impact
of HKFRS 9 on the Group’s classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain accounts
receivable (that the accounts receivable do not
contain a significant financing component in
accordance with HKFRS 15), an entity shall,
at initial recognition, measure a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVTPL, transaction costs. A
financial asset is classified as: (i) financial
assets at amortised cost (“amortised cost”);
(i) FVOCI; or (i) FVTPL (as defined in above).
The classification of financial assets under
HKFRS 9 is generally based on two criteria: (i)
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and (i) its contractual cash
flow characteristics (the “solely payments of
principal and interest” criterion, also known as
“SPPI criterion”). Under HKFRS 9, embedded
derivatives is no longer required to be separated
from a host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole for
the classification.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement of
financial instruments (Continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost
if it meets both of the following conditions and
it has not been designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

- The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it
meets both of the following conditions and it
has not been designated as at FVTPL:

- It is held within a business model whose
objective is to achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets; and

- The contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. All other
financial assets not classified at amortised cost
or FVOCI as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group may
irrevocably designate a financial asset that
otherwise meets the requirements to be
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise
arise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁ‘a

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

108

Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

The following accounting policies would be

applied to the Group’s financial assets as

follows:

FVTPL FVTPL is subsequently
measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest
income are recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortised cost are
subsequently measured
using the effective
interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and
losses and impairment
are recognised in
profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit
or loss.

Amortised cost

FVOCI (equity
instruments)

Equity investments at
fair value through other
comprehensive income
are measured at fair
value. Dividend income
is recognised in profit
or loss unless the
dividend income clearly
represents a recovery
of part of the cost of
the investments. Other
net gains and losses
are recognised in other
comprehensive income
and are not reclassified
to profit or loss.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

2. EFEX(HE)
ERAMBREENFIR-THMI AH)

Classification and measurement of () 2BTAZZERE(E)
financial instruments (Continued)
As of 1 April 2018, certain unquoted equity RZZE-—NFNA—B HFTRBERE
investments were reclassified from available- KERUHBEESREEEN »ERR
for-sale financial assets to FVOCI. These AREREMEZERKREIER - HERKE
unquoted equity instruments have no quoted RETARETRMB LI ERE - XE
price in an active market. The Group intends BEEZSRABEREREERIRE
to hold the unquoted equity investments for 2Rl AEBERHXERBHIE
long term strategic purposes. In addition, the ETERABERERERAAERE M
Group has designated such unquoted equity 2EHURINE - RZE-NFHEA—AH"
instruments at the date of initial application EAIZEBREERRREAR®4074,000
as measured at FVOCI. As at 1 April 2018, TZHAZEBEHF ABRTVERAABERE
the difference between the previous carrying HEERZI R FEH -
amount and the fair value of RMB4,074,000 has
been included in the opening FVOCI reserve.
The following table summarises the original TEBAAREBR=-_ZT—-NFWOA—A
measurement categories under HKAS 39 and EHIRMEERBEE B EA FE305H
the new measurement categories under HKFRS ZRFAERRNRBBEESM B RS XL
9 for each class of the Group’s financial assets FBORZFF 2R
as at 1 April 2018:
Original New Carrying amount  Carrying amount
classification classification under HKAS 39 as under HKFRS 9
Financial assets under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018 at 1 April 2018
BEEEET BEEENERE
% B 55395 ERIEo5%
BEEEEEN BEEENERS R-ZE-N\& R-ZE-NE
SREE $E30K 2 RER EREOR2HEN MA-AZKEEE MA-BZKRAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Derivatives Held-for-trading FVTPL 7,690 7,690
PTETE REXFRR BRRARBERBHRIIE
Unquoted equity investments Available-for-sale FVOCI 28,357 32,431
AEERERE AfEE BROAERAEMZE
W 5 51) B
Accounts and other receivables Loans and Amortised cost 27,480 23,783
receivables
JE U AR 3R % L i FE M 3R OB R R EN KA BER AR
Pledged deposits Loans and Amortised cost 230,382 230,382
receivables
[RE:EiREEN ER R E MR E BHAA
Cash and bank balances Loans and Amortised cost 222,147 222,147
receivables
Be RBRITEH ERRENKE BER AR

EREREEARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

110

Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing
the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“ECLs model”. HKFRS 9 requires the Group
to recognised ECLs for accounts receivable,
financial assets at amortised cost, contract
assets and debt investment at FVOCI earlier
than HKAS 39. Cash and cash equivalents are
subject to ECLs model but the impairment is
immaterial for the current period.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for accounts receivables using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. The 12-months
ECLs is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. However, when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs. When determining whether
the credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on
the Group’s historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
in default when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in
full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or
(2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

The maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

Presentation of ECLs

Loss allowances for financial assets measured
at amortised cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt
investment at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
recognised in OCI, instead of reducing the
carrying amount of the assets.

Impact of ECLs

As mentioned above, the Group applies the
HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECLs which recognises lifetime ECLs for all
accounts receivable. To measure the ECLs,
accounts receivable have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. Applying the ECLs model results
in immaterial impairment on 1 April 2018 and
for the year ended 31 March 2019.

All of the Group’s other debt investments at
amortised cost are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised
during the period was therefore limited to 12
months ECLs. Applying the ECLs model results
in loss allowances of RMB3,697,000 on 1
April 2018. The loss allowances increased for
RMB260,000 for other receivables during the
year ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iii) Hedge accounting

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no
impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply hedge accounting in its hedging

relationships.

(iv) Transition

The Group has applied the transitional provision
in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS 9 was generally
adopted without restating comparative
information. The reclassifications and the
adjustments arising from the new ECLs rules
are therefore not reflected in the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, but are
recognised in the statement of financial position
on 1 April 2018. This mean that differences in
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption
of HKFRS 9 are recognised in retained profits
and reserves as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly,
the information presented for 2018 does not
reflect the requirements of HKFRS 9 but rather

those of HKAS 39.

The following assessments have been made
on the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of initial application of

HKFRS 9 (the “DIA”):

- The determination of the business model
within which a financial asset is held; and

= The designation of certain investments in
equity investments not held for trading as

at FVOCI.

If an investment in a debt investment had
low credit risk at the DIA, then the Group
has assumed that the credit risk on the asset
had not increased significantly since its initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
steps model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method without practical expedients.
The Group has recognised the cumulative effect of
initially applying HKFRS 15 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at the date of
initial application (that is 1 April 2018). As a result,
the financial information presented for 2018 has not
been restated.

The transition to HKFRS 15 had no impact on the
opening balance of retained profits.

The following table summarised the impact of
adopting HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019. There was no material impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
or consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁ‘a

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED) S EEE)
HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with ERYBREENFISE-RBEEFAHNE
Customers (Continued) (#%)
Impact on the consolidated statement of financial HRZE-—NF=ZA=T—H2BEUWBRR
position as of 31 March 2019: rewE
Amount
prepared
under
previous Increase/
HKFRS 15 HKFRS (decrease)
BEUT
wHEzEHE
EBU® KA Z
wEEA EEBU® # i,
£155% & EA O &)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT ARKETT
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities mBEE
Contract liabilities SHEaE 424 475 - 424 475
Accruals, receipts in advance and FEEHEIE - TR 1451 /TA
other payables Ko H Aty FE A 3R 384,136 808,611 (424,475)
Total current liabilities B A ERS 1,662,627 1,662,627 -
Total Liabilities B EA 2,223,900 2,223,900 -
Details of the new significant accounting policies and NTEINFTERETBR2AFBREELAEH
the nature of the changes to previous accounting EEEMERE AN ST BRE ST HEE
policies in relation to the Group’s various goods and
services are set out below:
Revenue recognition R KA
Sales of properties L Ei N
Customers obtain control of the properties when the EERYERINEBRIWFFIG Y 326 - U
properties are delivered to and have been accepted. AMBFBUMERER AHNRNREK LI
Revenue is thus recognised when the customers BERAERHEZEMEY R - — A B —1E
accept the properties. There is no other goods or BHEE-
services agreed to be provided in the contract and
in practice. There is generally only one performance
obligation.
114 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Contract liability

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue.

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
recognised its contract liabilities under accruals,
receipts in advance and other payables as receipts
in advance from customers in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Upon the adoption
of HKFRS 15, reclassifications have been made from
accruals, receipts in advance and other payables to
contract liabilities.

As of 1 April 2018, an increase in contract liabilities
of approximately RMB335,549,000 and a decrease
in accruals, receipts in advance and other payables
of approximately RMB335,549,000 were recognised.

Amendments HKFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications
on identification of performance obligations;
application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group had
not previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this first year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2.

116

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment Property
- Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from
investment properties there must be a change in use
and provides guidance on making this determination.
The clarification states that a change of use will
occur when a property meets, or ceases to meet,
the definition of investment property and there is
supporting evidence that a change has occurred. The
amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence
in the standard as a non-exhaustive list, thereby
allowing for other forms of evidence to support a
transfer.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the clarified treatment
is consistent with the manner in which the Group has
previously assessed transfers.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 - Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining
the date of the transaction for determining an
exchange rate to use for transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign
currency and the recognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability. The Interpretations
specifies that the date of the transaction for the
purpose of determining the exchange rate to use
on initial recognition of the related asset, expense
or income (or part thereof) is the date on which the
entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group has not
paid or received advance consideration in a foreign
currency.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

2.

EREEE)
ERETEANEORNET A -ERREWX

ZEFTBREREMVENEARBLYAY LB
BN UYHRFLBEBEERMIES - ZEE
I WMENAXTBHAREVEZIER
REEBRERARAEGNE ANERAAENE - %
EATEZERNPHNERBEEENENE RIS

== 3= g8

BRE AN HMEANBRIEIIEAEE-

HREBEFRNEEEAKE LA FHERNS
A—F BEAZFETHLEFTUBERERRLE

By 48R
B

ER(EBRYERERBZEEG)REH 25 -
HERERENKE

ZRBERABTERR Y RANE WA
NRENXZNEZMEER S B UL RE
RFEBEELFERAERMES -ZBRE
R ETERAEREBEE FAXHKA(K
ETPHO)MERCERZXSBEHRERD
RERXNIBBEANKEBEENFEEREE
SFEBEAEZR -

RRAKEYEANE LB MBARE -
WERAZFZETHEEFMBRRLIBEZE -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 i ZE=F—NF=FA=+—HI F&E

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

The following new and amended HKFRSs which
are potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group:

HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 28

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Lease'

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation’

Long-term Interests in Associate
or Joint Venture'

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Business Combinations'

Amendments to HKFRS 11,
Joint Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS 12,
Income Taxes'

Amendments to HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs'

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Assoclate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material?

and HKAS 8
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The
effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early
application of the amendments of the amendments
continues to be permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2.

118

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will
supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and related
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets
and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its
right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease
payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on
the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an
interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value
basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or
not to exercise an option to terminate the lease. This
accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified
as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

The total operating lease commitment of the Group
in respect of rented properties as at 31 March 2019
amounted to approximately RMB673,000. The
directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 16
would not result in significant impact on the Group’s
result but expect that the above operating lease
commitments will be recognised as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in the Group’s financial
statements.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting
for income taxes.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments (Continued)

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.
The entity shall also assume the tax authority will
examine amounts that it has a right to examine and
have full knowledge of all related information when
making those examinations. If the entity determines
it is probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are
met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKAS 28

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI”) in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment in
the associates or joint ventures and stipulates that
HKFRS 9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment
losses guidance within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
3 which clarifies that when a joint operator of a
business obtains control over a joint operation, this
is a business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be
remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

2.

120

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation which
is a business and subsequently obtains joint control
of the joint operation, the previously held equity
interest should not be remeasured to its acquisition
date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit
or loss, other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle - Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
use or sale would become part of the funds an
entity borrows generally and therefore included in
the general pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 - Definition of a
Business

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the
definition of outputs to focus on goods or services
provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the
amendments provide guidance to assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 - Definition
of Material

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions made by the primary users.

Save as discussed above, other than HKFRS 16,
all new standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations issued but not effective are not likely to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

2.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

EREEE)
ERMBREEAEIFR-XB2ER

ERMBREERNEIR Z2EITLABEBTEHH
EE - UWREBRIMNES - ZEBITBFARASE
BN -—HESEHNEE VEELBE &
BRAR-—BEEBRE MMELAEHPK KR
MEENEEXRER EBEABRTVKELM
THRARARBRE - ZBITBCHETHEHS
SHREETARNRBEBIEFEEGS RS
WARE BREHBINRENRANERZSR
BHARUTEXRENENEESERERM - % &
ANERERENEEEE EERNEPREH
WEmERE REUZXAFEHEENE
fi, A o b S - 18 BT 75 48 1 A BE FT {4 PT ER 15 /Y
BREEEEANNES LHEIAEEFTER
AER AHEARSEN -—EEINEERS
TEREBETECTME-

EREEAFIRREREH ER TSR
BITE-EAKEZESR
EAEHERFIRRBRESF ERER W
BEATABEAUBETHER - FEERIHA
MER BRRAXEWMENK IS EIEB
EXE-RBEVBEHRENIERRBEREZ
EMBHRERFENRE EHBERN-%ZF
EHTREBERNERBANRENNOMEEHIRE -
MEERRALEN A B BEHEVEFTEFH
EEHORE AEBEMNBEAN

fREXPIATmESN RBEEMBERE ERFE16
5% 51 IR =

B 5 1 {1 i 5K 4 2 #) B 7 37 B
RBETRRBTATRYAREZ AN
BEEEALE -

EREREEARAF

al]q21
A\ 2018/19 F iR '




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties, financial assets at
FVTPL and financial assets at FVOCI which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgment of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (note 3.3) made
up to 31 March each year.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 32 HEEEREKEHGE

combination (Continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition
date fair value. The Group’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

124

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of the
following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%Aﬂﬂﬁiﬁimff%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESTHTHEHREGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.4 Associates 3.4 BEE QT

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity
method whereby they are initially recognised
at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount
are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition change in the associates decisions
of except that losses in excess of the Group’s
interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good
those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The
investor’s share in the associate’s profits
and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred
they are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above
the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included
in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in associates are carried
at cost less impairment losses, if any. The
results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

126

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities
of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed under
the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the Group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

- Joint operations: where the Group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in
joint arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

= The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint ventures’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5

3.6

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interest in joint
operations by recognising its share of assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses in accordance
with its contractually conferred rights and
obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

128

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and
are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Revenue recognition (accounting policies

37 WARRB=ZZE-N\NFNA—BLER

applied from 1 April 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
goods or service may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the goods or
service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received
and consumed simultaneously by the
customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

° does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers
over time, revenue is recognised over the
period of the contract by reference to the
progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7 Revenue recognition (accounting policies

130

applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the customer a
significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

For revenue from sale of properties and pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties in the ordinary course of business,
customers obtain control of the properties when
the properties are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised when
the customers accept the properties. There
is no other goods or services agreed to be
provided in the contract and in practice. There
is generally only one performance obligation.
Payments are usually received in advance and
recognised as contract liabilities. HKFRS 15 did
not result in significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES®# BEBE(E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.8 Revenue recognition (accounting policies 38 WARR(EEZE=ZFE-NF=ZA=+—8H

applied until 31 March 2018)

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of properties, rendering of services and the use
by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers.
Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of
the legal title or the passing of possession to
the buyer or a completion certificate by the
relevant government authorities, whichever is
the later. Deposits and instalments received
from customers prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in current liabilities as
receipts in advance.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9 Property, plant and equipment

132

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvement 25.0%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the financial statements until they
are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%A%ﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Investment properties

3.10 REM %

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation. These include land held
for a currently undetermined future use and
property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which
it arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair
value, any difference between fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying
amount is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Investment properties (Continued)

134

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and investments in subsidiaries,
associates and a joint venture to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or
an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

3.12

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset or cash generating unit, discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or cash generating unit.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain within
the lessor are accounted for as operating
lease. Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in the accounting period
in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.12

3.13

136

Leases (Continued)

Leasehold interests in land are up-front
payments to acquire the land use right. The
payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

For leasehold interest in land included in
properties held under development and
properties held for sale, the amortisation of
prepaid land lease is capitalised as part of the
building costs during the development period
but charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for completed
properties. Other amortisation of prepaid land
lease is expensed.

Certain properties leased out under operating
leases are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as investment
properties. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised on a straight-line-basis
over the lease term. The recognition of rental
income is set out in notes 3.7 and 3.8.

Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018)

(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is an accounts
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely
when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories which the Group classifies its
debt instruments into:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interestincome, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

138

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVTPL: Financial assets at FVTPL include
financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition
at FVTPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value.
Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding
the criteria for debt instruments to be
classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading,
the Group could irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment
basis. Equity investments at FVOCI are
measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend income clearly represents
a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit
or loss. All other equity instruments are
classified as FVTPL, whereby changes in
fair value, dividends and interest income
are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for ECLs on accounts receivable, and
financial assets measured at amortised
cost. The ECLs are measured on either
of the following bases: (1) 12 months
ECLs: these are the ECLs that result
from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date: and (2)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result
from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

140

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for accounts receivable using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-months
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based
on the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort.
This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

S significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a
default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

S it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)
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(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based
on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVTPL are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities (Continued)

(iv)

v)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including accounts payable, accruals and
other payables and bank and other loans.
The related interest expense is recognised
in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied from 1 April 2018) (Continued)
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(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at FVTPL
is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contact at the higher
of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured
in accordance with principles of the
accounting policy set out in 3.13 (ii) the
amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the
principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial
asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer
meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018)

(i)

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for
financial assets are set out below.

- Financial assets at FVTPL

- Financial assets are classified into
loans and receivables

- Financial assets are classified as
available-for-sales financial assets

Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition
depending on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date. All
financial assets are recognised when,
and only when, the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised
on trade date. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at
fair value, plus, in the case of financial
assets not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction
costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows
from the receivables/investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

146

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL includes
financial assets held for trading and
financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments or financial
guarantee contracts.

The Group has designated contingent
consideration arising from acquisition of
associate as financial assets at FVTPL
upon initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category
are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

LLoans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less
any impairment losses. Amortised cost
is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

At each reporting date, loans and
receivables are reviewed to determine
whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of
individual financial assets includes
observable data that come to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of
the debtor; a breach of contract,
such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

(b) it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation;

(c) significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtors; and

(d) asignificant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its costs.

Loss events in respect of a group of
financial assets include observable data
indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets.
Such observable data includes but
not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group
and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets
in the group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)
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(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss of the period in which
the impairment occurs. In relation to
accounts and notes receivables, a
provision for impairment is made when
there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor) that
the Group will not be able to collect all of
the amounts due under the original terms
of the invoice. Except for accounts and
other receivables, the carrying amount of
loans and receivables is directly reduced
by any identified amount of impairment.
The carrying amount of account and
other receivables is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. When any
part of account and other receivables is
determined as uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised at
the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are designated as available-
for-sale or are not included in other
categories of financial assets. Subsequent
to initial recognition, these assets are
carried at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses.

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the
amount of the loss is removed from equity
and recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)
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(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

Any impairment losses on available-for-
sale debt investments are subsequently
reversed in profit or loss if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment
that is carried at cost, the amount of
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount
of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss is not reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include
accounts and other payables and bank
loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policy on
borrowing costs (note 3.21).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(ii)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in respective carrying amount is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Bank loans

Bank loans are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank loans are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the loans using
the effective interest method. Bank loans
are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting date.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are
recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies
applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)
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(iii)

(iv)

Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Share capital is determined using the
nominal value of shares that have been
issued.

Share premium includes any premiums
received on the issuance of shares over
the par value. Any transaction costs
associated with the issuance of shares
are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the
extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
is initially recognised as deferred income
within accounts and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in
profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEei HE#EE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14 Financial Instruments (accounting policies

B4 EeMmITAE(EZE=E—N\E=/A=+—H

applied until 31 March 2018) (Continued)

(iv) Financial guarantee contracts
(Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is
amortised in profit or loss over the term
of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if
and when it becomes probable that the
holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the
amount of that claim on the Group is
expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.

3.15 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which are
held for future sale are included in current assets
and comprise land held under operating lease
(note 3.12) and aggregate cost of development,
materials and supplies, wages, and other
expenses (“development costs”). Properties
held under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties.
Fixed overheads are indirect costs which
remain relatively constant regardless of the size
or volume of the development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15

3.16

154

Properties held under development
(Continued)

On completion, the properties are transferred
to properties held for sale. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Accounting for income taxes

317 i B 2SR E

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference
arises from initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

156

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties
at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%A%ﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FESBEMEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

3.17 FiEH 2 &t K2 (H)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

(b)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities
are presented in net; and

(c) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

158

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which is
available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits (Continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

3.21

160

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the higher of the amount that
would be recognised in a comparable provision
as described above and the amount initially
recognised less any accumulated amortisation,
if appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
asset for its intended use or sale are completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.22

3.23

3.24

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability
when they are approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to financial statements.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared and consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss
on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an
asset are deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life
of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)

(i) Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The amortisation
expense is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses.

Copyright
Customer relationships

15 years
10 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.24 Intangible assets (Other than goodwill)
(Continued)

(i)

Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are
tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment
by comparing their carrying amounts with
their recoverable amounts (see note 3.11).

If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease to the extent of
its revaluation surplus.

3.25 Related parties

162

(@)

A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

() has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25 Related parties (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing, and controlling the
activities of the Group or the Company,
directly or indirectly, including any
directors (whether executive or otherwise)
of the Group or the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

()  The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(vij  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

() that person’s children and spouse
or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or
that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

3.26 Segment reporting

164

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties of the Group were
stated at fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy. The fair value of the
investment properties is determined by a firm of
independently qualified professional surveyors
and the fair value of investment properties as
at the reporting dates and properties held for
sale upon transfer to investment properties are
set out in notes 14 and 22 respectively. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

166

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of accounts and other receivables
by determining future cash flows. This estimate
is based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. A considerable
amount of judgment is required in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates. Management will
reassess the provision at the reporting date.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will affect
the carrying value of receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of properties held for
sale and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value
of properties held for sale and properties held
under development by using prevailing market
data such as most recent sale transactions
and valuation of the projects in its existing
partially completed state of construction taking
into account cost of work done, and cost to
completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales) and
the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s properties held under development and
properties held for sale as at 31 March 2019
were approximately RMB2,183,059,000 (2018:
RMB1,664,440,000) and RMB248,582,000
(2018: RMB243,761,000) respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s

accounting policies
Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the buyer
obtains control of the completed property;
otherwise, revenue is recognised over time
when the Group’s performance do not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

Due to the contractual restrictions with the
customer, the Group shall not change or
substitute the property unit or redirect the
property unit for another use and thus the
property unit does not have an alternative use
to the Group. However, it requires management
to exercise significant judgement to determine
whether there is an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date,
which depends on the terms of sales and
purchase agreement and the interpretation of
the applicable laws that apply to the contract.
The Group has obtained legal counsel opinion
regarding the enforceability of the right to
payment for sales and purchase agreements.
Management uses judgments, based on legal
counsel opinion, to classify sales and purchase
agreements into those with right to payment
for performance completed to date and those
without the right.

The Group believes that its recognition basis of
sales as set out in note 3.7 is appropriate and
is the current practice in the PRC.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s

168

accounting policies (Continued)
Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision of
taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in periods in which such
determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of this tax varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the
Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with any local tax authorities in the
PRC. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of the land
appreciation and its related LAT. The Group
recognised LAT based on management’s best
estimates according to the understanding of
the tax rules.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and
is identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors have determined that the Group has only
one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the business of sale
and lease of properties which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment,
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in Jiangxi Province, the PRC,
which considered that the operation base of the
Group is domiciled in the PRC, as one geographical
location and therefore, no analysis of geographical
information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed
in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 March 2019 and 2018.

%A%ﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA HEftWAURHEMKERER
GAINS AND LOSSES
The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers FRAXAEBERERIERNERFAHKA - E
recognised at a point in time, other income and other YA AR B R BB AT
gains and losses recognised during the year are as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE-)N\HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FT
Revenue N
Sale of properties held for sale HEFEYE 384,282 134,082
Other income and other gains HWAUREMIEREEB
and losses
Exchange gain, net PE 5 = % 58 188 4,479
Government grants* T & Bh 1,146 7,791
Net fair value gain on investment KEMERGFEMEERE =S
properties and properties held for WEWMEZ AR BERZEFE
sale upon transfer to investment (HtaE14)
properties (note 14) 17,861 14,327
Net fair value gain on financial assets BEAnBEREBERIEZ M
at FVTPL (note 20) BEZAARERZFRE
(Kt #%20) 4,965 620
Interest income B WA
- from bank deposits - KXBERITEX 11,171 9,089
— from structured bank balances -REEBHRTERS - 111
11,171 9,200
Rental income HE KA 23,847 22,515
Sundry income 1B A 4,504 4,064
63,682 62,996
* The Group received unconditional discretionary grants - AEFRBREXREHEBATE R THEENE L FTET
from the relevant PRC government authorities in support RERXEBEHNEMKRMEBEEDE -
of enterprise operating in specified industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6.

GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides information about
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

WA - Efb U A B R H At W KB 18 ()

TERRHEEEPANNEGHNEENEHR -

31 March 1 April

2019 2018

—E-NF —ET-)\#F

=A=+-—H mA—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Fr AR FT

Contract liabilities aHaE 424,475 335,549

Contract liabilities mainly relate to the deposits
received from customers for sales of properties.
RMB303,083,000 of the contract liabilities as of
1 April 2018 were recognised as revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2019 from acceptance of
properties by customers and the contract liabilities
as at 31 March 2019 was arising from the advance
considerations received from customers.

As at 31 March 2019, contract liabilities or the
aggregated amount of the deposits received from
the remaining performance obligations under the
Group’s existing contracts was RMB424,475,000.
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from the acceptance of
properties by customers. The Group will recognise
the expected revenue in future, which is expected to
occur in the next 1 to 24 months.

EHEGBETEHEREEDERTPKRNES
FH - RZE—N\FUNA—HEAEHNEBARK
303,083,000t ERABEHEZE_TE—NLF=ZA=+
—BLEFERERERPBREDEHKRA - MR Z
T- N F=ZA=Z+—BMEHNEaBEREREFRF
I ER B TE R AE -

RZE-NF=ZA=Z=+—H &HNEBEBEHRE
AEBBRBAYNRBE TRENETURINZ SR
A ANRMA24475,0007C° Wk & FBIETEHI A 1%
EFBRUYEREEZNEBA - AEEBERAE
BOEFTRARIZ24E A B E)ERBHKA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = F—NF=H=1+—HI-FZ

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WEKK

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARM T

Interest charges on financial REB#EREIEz2@MAE

liabilities stated at amortised cost: ZRERX:
Bank loans |ITE N 72,555 62,055
Other loans HiBE R 907 =
73,462 62,055
Less: amount capitalised in properties W EBEHERNEEARAES

held under development MEZ 2T (68,142) (66,942)
5,320 5,113

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 5.96% (2018: 6.07%) per annum for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 8. KRABHAER
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FT
Profit before income tax is arrived at M AT % R T B (GEA)
after charging/(crediting): AT B TE% =R
Auditor’s remuneration % RN B & 907 841
Cost of properties held for sale BRERAIZ2FEMENRAK
recognised as expense 308,730 86,330
Amortisation of intangibles (note 15) EREEBHEWE15) 800 600
Depreciation (note 13(b)) & (Wi 13b) 2,517 2,855
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE BMEMXREBEZER
plant and equipments - 91
Impairment loss on other financial assets H fth & g & & ~ (5 & 18
(note 19) (Kia£19) = 360
Operating lease charge in respect of THEREF I EEHERS
land and buildings 334 2,537
Outgoings in respect of investment HERNKEMEMEEZ
properties that generated rental HeEWABBH 2 RX
income during the year 128 329
Loss allowance of other receivables Hih W R IEEH 2 BB B E 260 -
Employee costs, including Directors’ BEXAK(BIEEEWNE)
emoluments (note 12) (Hfz12)
— Wages and salaries -IE&k¥F® 26,228 28,596
- Retirement benefit scheme - RRBAE B R E R
contributions defined contribution |
plans 3,690 3,086
Less: amount capitalised in properties BCEBEWERNEIEARER
held under development Sk (3,579) (5,296)
26,339 26,386
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

INCOME TAX EXPENSE Fri& BB X
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARM T
Current tax — the PRC ENEA % 1§ —
Current year KEEZ
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) -EMEH(LE
FREBl) 19,752 4,550
- LAT -+ H I ER 15,423 30,838
35,175 35,388
Deferred income tax (note 28) EEFT BB (M F28) 117 4,726
Total income tax expense FreBEXEsE 35,292 40,114

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25%
(2018: 25%)).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2018: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred upon
transfer of property ownership. There are certain
exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

1 74 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group had no estimated assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

FrEHAX (&)
FENSREF ARG ERE N L16.6% (=
Z—)\F 165%) T H -BHRAKEE R ZM E
FEAVTEEEAELERERFEMMMGTERB
WA MY EBIELBAENGRAEE -

RERABREXAEMCGHAXESH RN ZHIK
wmr

Profit before income tax

Tax on profit before income tax,
calculated at the rates applicable to
profit in the jurisdiction concerned

Tax effect of non-taxable income

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses

Provision of LAT for the year

Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable

Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss
Tax effect of withholding tax

Income tax expense

B P 15 B A i 7

BRATGHANENBIE  BE
R ARG N @A
BMEGE

BEARRBRAZHEBETE

TAHMBA ZRAZE

FRALWBETREE

ENETHMBER IR
IR RATE

AERRBEBIREAZE

BHRcRBREE

AT B X

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR T
67,928 41,302
16,982 10,326
(1,662) (1,131)
3,656 4,074
15,423 30,838
(3,855) (7,710)
3,219 1,556
1,529 2,161
35,292 40,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

10. DIVIDENDS 10. B E
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR FT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior B E—FEZRERE®RKRO.0
year at HK$0.01 per ordinary shares BT XA R KRB B 21,364 21,848

11.

176

On 30 July 2018, the directors declared a first and
final dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share (tax not
applicable), amounting to HK$24,640,000 (equivalent
to RMB21,364,000) for the year ended 31 March
2018, and formal approved by the shareholders was
obtained at the annual general meeting held on 30
July 2018.

The directors do not recommend the payment of the
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019.

EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of RMB20,730,000
(2018: RMB4,883,000) and the weighted average
member of ordinary shares of 2,464,000,000 (2018:
2,464,000,000) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EE5FM T EEaFMALIRSREERE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR B <
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(a) Directors’ emoluments @ EEMS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the BELITRIEEERAKGIEER 2K
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements EABEBECESEMHS T :
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are
as follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
A1 BHEMN
we REREA  BERL TEBR @it

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARE¥Tn ARETT ARETR

Year ended 31 March 2019 B2-8-h1%5=A=1-18

LEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng hE%HE 163 - - 19 182
Mr. Wong Lui TIELE 554 121 170 15 860
Ms. Gao Lan BEXL 139 - - 16 155
Non-executive director FHTEF
Ms. Chan Heung Ling Rkt 739 21 123 - 1,139

Independent non-executive directors BV #H77E %

Mr. Lee Man To PRELE 154 - - - 154
Mr. Xie Gang FREIEE 103 - - = 103
Ms. Zhang Juan (resigned on RERL(R=F-N%
31 July 2018) tH=T-A§F) 34 - - - 34
Mr. He Dingding (appointed on BIThER-FE-N#
1 August 2018) NA—HEZH) 68 - - - 68
1,954 398 293 50 2,695
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EE5FM T EEaFMALTIRSREERE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR < (&)
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESME(F)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
Ge 24 BRBEH
e REMER REEL i85 @i

RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 RMBI000  RMB'000
ARBTTL ARETE ARETT  ARETT ARKTX

Year ended 31 March 2018 HE-E-\FZHAZt+-H

LEE
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Shi Feng Fé%k 156 - - 19 175
Mr. Wong Lui AIREE 550 178 46 15 789
Ms. Gao Lan BRLT 132 - - 16 148
Non-executive director FHTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling Rk &t 733 181 61 - 975

Independent non-executive directors BV F# /7% E

Mr. Lee Man To FRERL 153 - - - 153
Mr. Xie Gang BREE 102 = - - 102
Ms. Zhang Juan REXT 102 - - - 102

1,928 359 107 50 2,444
There is no arrangement under which a director FA MEEEHNELIREREAAMS
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments ZEHR(ZE-NEF |

during the year (2018: nil).

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer BEEENRARRABZERERITE ML
of the Company and his emolument disclosed XFBEELHE s N BEAEERER I
above includes those of services rendered by TEARERE S -

him as the Chief Executive Officer.
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12. DIRECTORS’

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMUNERATION, FIVE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include two (2018: two) directors,
whose emoluments are included in the
disclosures above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2018: three) highest paid
individuals, whose emoluments fell within the
salary band of nil to HK$1,000,000, for the
year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as
follows:

12.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

E=ZFM IEBSFHMATIRSREERE

< (&)

(b)

TEREHFMAL
AEEREESFHALTEERA(ZE
—N\F WMBEF HMERN LEXZR
B HE-_Z-NAFR-_ZFT-N\F=ZA=
T-RAEFE #RT=R2(CZCF-N\F:=
H)EmFHALTZHEFEENF T
% 1,000,000 7T 2 @) a0 T -

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FoT AR TFT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & - 288 & H 38 7 696 815

Discretionary bonuses B 1% 16 41 265 268
Retirement benefit scheme RAK R R EF &) 5

contributions 38 43

999 1,126

No emolument was paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2018: Nil).

Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members
of non-director senior management were within
the following bands:

(c)

FR AEERERNEFNESIES H M
ATXFHEMMESERMAKNARE
B ZRABERAECTE-N\F &) -

EREEEME
ENKENIEETSREEZEKE 2 B
TEEMT

2019 2018

—E-NF —F-N\F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 7% 7T 4 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. X BERR®E

Computers

and other Motor Leasehold

equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total

R
itk RE BF HENERE @Gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB 000 RMB’000
ANREEFT AREFT AREFRL AREFT AREFIL
At 1 April 2017 R-ZE-+t5WmA-H
Cost AR 5,867 6,075 56,434 147 68,523
Accumulated depreciation 2:NE (4,660) 4,873) (2,790) (37) (12,360)
Net carrying amount REEE 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
Yearended 31 March 2018  HZ-Z-N£=B=+-AH
LEE
Opening net carrying amount BOEEFE 1,207 1,202 53,644 110 56,163
Additions nE 3,077 599 - 11,097 14,773
Depreciation & (657) (539) (1,423) (489) (3,108)
Disposal HE (70) (26) - - (96)
Exchange realignment ExAE = (35) = = (35
Closing net carrying amount ¥ REE A F & 3,557 1,201 52,221 10,718 67,697
At 31 March 2018 and R-B-NE=A=+-AR
1 April 2018 “E-\§¥mA-H
Cost KA 8,818 6,379 56,434 11,244 82,875
Accumulated depreciation 2FNE (5,261) (5,178) (4,213) (526) (15,178)
Net carrying amount REFE 3,557 1,201 52,221 10,718 67,697
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

% BB KRS GE

(CONTINUED)
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings  improvement Total
EfR
BT RE BT HENEEE o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFL AREFT ARETR AREFT ARETZR
Yearended 31 March2019  HZ-Z-h¥=B=1-H
L5E
Opening net carrying amount BOEEEE 3,557 1,201 52,221 10,718 67,697
Additions nE 6,851 - - - 6,851
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FHEDA
(note 37) (H##37) 2 - - - 2
Depreciation nE (1,418) (314) (1,423) (255) (3,410)
Disposal L& (115) (181) - - (296)
Exchange realignment BEHAE - 2 - - 2
Closing net carrying amount SR ERE EE 8,877 708 50,798 10,463 70,846
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=ZF=1-H
Cost B, 7 15,538 5,018 56,434 11,244 88,234
Accumulated depreciation RiHE (6,661) (4,310) (5,636) (781) (17,388)
Net carrying amount EHFE 8,877 708 50,798 10,463 70,846

At 31 March 2019, the Group’s certain buildings
of approximately RMB50,798,000 (2018:
RMB52,221,000) were pledged for bank loans (note
27) of the Group.

RZE—NAFZAZ+—H AEEHARE
50,798,000t (= & — A\ F : A R ¥52,221,000
TMIZETEFDIRAEE ZRTE R =
27)fEHE # o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14,

13. W% - WER®REGE

(CONTINUED)
Notes: it
(a)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. (8 FEEBBEZEFMIRFE-
(b)  Depreciation charges have been included in: (b) HEHZEIA:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\#F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Consolidated statement of financial position SAMBERAR
— capitalised in properties held under -BERbERFAERYE
development 893 253
Consolidated statement of comprehensive SGAETERHFR
income
- selling and distribution expenses - HERDHEEH 32 35
— administrative expenses -EEER 2,485 2,820
2,517 2,855
3,410 3,108
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYZE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEFT
At beginning of the year F 7] 552,984 536,754
Transfer from properties held for sale BFEYEER 5,523 5,129
Net fair value change credited to the SFAGZEEERERZ
consolidated statement of N BEEEFRE
comprehensive income 15,120 11,101
Disposal iR (26,248) =
At end of the year F R 547,379 552,984
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 20483 to 2047 (2018: from 2043 to 2047). As
at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group,
the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2019, investment properties
of approximately RMB489,319,000 (2018:
RMB507,626,000) were pledged against bank loans
of the Group (note 27). As at 31 March 2018, building
ownership certificates of the Group’s investment
properties of approximately RMB34,074,000 were
placed with the bank as custody (note 27).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 32).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, properties
held for sale and with the carrying value of
approximately RMB2,782,000 (2018: RMB1,903,000)
(note 22) were transferred to investment properties
respectively as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental, rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business of the Group. The fair value
of these properties upon transfer to investment
properties was approximately RMB5,523,000
(2018: RMB5,129,000). The total net fair value
gain of investment properties approximately of
RMB17,861,000 (2018: RMB14,327,000) was
credited to profit or loss for the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group
entered into sale and purchase agreement to sell
certain investment properly at a consideration of
approximately RMB26,248,000. The investment
property has been handed over to the customer
during the year.

14.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

REWXE(E)
REMEERUNTBEZ XS HE
HR _ZTO=F2_FTMOELFZ2HR(ZFT N
F:_TMN=FE_TOLFZMEER R
E-NFR-_ZF-N\F=ZA=+t—B X&£H
ETREVMERADGEEMAREE A&
BEzBYTBERBERRLS AEEERERRF
FEMEREMIBLZZBRIARNRFEARNA
AMABRMERREDE -

RZEBE-AFEF=ZA=Z=+—B BEYWEH
A R #489,319,000t( =T — NF: AR
507,626,0007C) H1EA XS B 2 RITE R 2 K
B2 RZE—-—NF=ZA=+—8"
REEBREYVENEFEMNBEEIETNARE
34,074,000 E TR B ITR BRE (M :E27) -

REMEDHRE FALHEHE TR IEREE (K
F32) °

HE-_Z-NhE=A=+—BLEER - E@
BEHABARE278200TL(ZZE—NF: AR
#1,903,00070) (M ad22) 2 FEMEERBRE K
EME RAAZEWEDREBEFANHEE=F
Uz EeHERHERDES MIERELEE
HEEBEBREBPLE - ZTEBERLEME
IMEARBELH ABARMK,S523000m(=ZFE —
NE: AR ¥5129,0007T) - 348 AR
17,861,0007L( = & — A\ F : A R #14,327,000
TIZHEMERAERZDFFARFE 2B
HERR-

HE-_ZTZ-—NWEF=ZA=+—BILEE AE£H
FVBEERMBUNLEETREME RENAE
AR 26,248,000t - I EMEE R F AR R
FEPE

EREREEARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

14.

184

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWE(H)
The fair value of the investment properties at 31 KEMER_Z-—NEFR_ZT-—NF=A=T
March 2019 and 2018 was revalued by Jones Lang —BZAnEBHAREEEEEYEMREL
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a ENBRCHBER cBYUEGEREERNEZA/
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors THEBTEETERERNERARETEN
who have the recent experience in the location and HE - HEDUNEELREZAKE BREWE
category of property being valued, which was based BEREREBERANBRETHE Y2 EHE
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale MBZAELEREER S WA B R Y ER
of the property interests in their existing state with ERMEEMNE HERAEMAFBITE2EZR
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by EHBEEABREDN U R AKAEKE
making reference to comparable sales transactions AREBEHBEEHRENMERE RERKME L
as available in the relevant market while appropriate AREzHERAZSE UHHEZATERE
adjustments and analysis are considered to the FRAETBEEZE BHERAKRBEEZE
differences in location, size and other characters A ERERICUEEMSZEE-
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking into
account the net rental income derived from its existing
leases and/or achievable in the existing market with
due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the leases, which have been then capitalised
to determine the market value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate.
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 WEYMELZ AR BERFIRLEERAARETNE -
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of FNRFERAABHEHZEREAIN AT o
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FUEB(EIREEERIRE)
fair value) 552,984 536,754
Transfer from properties held for sale SRER-R7/IE4 R 5,523 5,129
Disposal == (26,248) =
Change in revaluation of investment HEYMEEHEEBTA
properties included in other income H b g A 15,120 11,101
Closing balance (level 3 recurring FRESR(FEIREEERIRE)
fair value) 547,379 552,984
Change in unrealised gains or losses MR =—ZA=1+—BABEE
for the year included in profit or loss for 5t A #H 2 F N & & I8 =
assets held at 31 March (note 6) NEEEE (M F6) 17,861 14,327

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

14. REWE(R)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the significant unobservable

TRINREEEATFABNERTABREE A

inputs used in the valuation model. HIE -
Fair Range of
value Significant unobservable  Relationship of unobservable
Properties hierarchy  Valuation technique unobservable inputs inputs  Inputs to fair value
EXAFTTEER TUEER TUBRBARE
nE RAEER MHERN BARE ABBZEE HUDAENHE
Commercial offices in the PRC 3 Direct comparison Discount on quality of 3.9%  The higher the discount, the lower
approach the property (2018: 11.9%) the fair value
ERNLBE BEENBE WERERZE 39% HEHR RAGHE
(Z2-N\F:11.9%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/ premium (17.3)%-4.2%  The higher the discount, the
approach onquality of the (2018 (17.7)%-2.9%) lower the fair value; the higher the
property premium, the higher the fair value
PEZEREL EREBA ESE- At Ve (17.3%-42% HEBE AAESE &E
% E (Z2-N\#: BE ARESS
(17.7)% - 2.9%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.0%-4.5%  The higher the term yield, the lower
(2018: 2.0%-4.5%) the fair value
PR LON: BB HX 20%-45% MHEHEEHES RAAEME
(Z2-N\&:
2.0% - 4.5%)
Reversionary yield 2.5%-5.0%  The higher the reversionary yield,
(2018: 2.5%-5.0%) the lower the fair value
kEKHX 25%-50% HHUHZHR DAEHE

There were no changes to the valuation techniques

during the year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not

differ from their actual use.

(Z2-N%:
2.5%-5.0%)

FABERMEERZS -

AAEFENERLLEDEZES REERE

/////

EEEREEAERAR
2018/19 F 3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

15. INTANGIBLES 15. B EE

186

Customer
Copy right relationships Total
hix & EFBE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FE T FE T FE T
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—+tHFMA—H
Cost jDaN - _ _
Accumulated amortisation 255 - - -
Net carrying amount EREZEE - _ _
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-_Z—-N\F=A
=+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount YRR FE = = -
Additions mE 12,000 - 12,000
Amortisation 5 (600) - (600)
Closing net carrying amount HABEEFEE 11,400 - 11,400
At 31 March 2018 and RZE—-NE
1 April 2018 =A=+-—-HBER
—ZEZ-N\FWmA—H
Cost B AR 12,000 - 12,000
Accumulated Amortisation s X (600) - (600)
Net carrying amount REFE 11,400 - 11,400
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z—-NF=A
=E+—HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount YR mFE 11,400 - 11,400
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 15) Ut g — I B 2 8 (K 7 15) - 5,105 5,105
Amortisation 5 (800) - (800)
Closing net carrying amount HABEEFAE 10,600 5,105 15,705
At 31 March 2019 R=ZZF-h#F
=A=+—8H
Cost B AR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation 2 =t # 3 (1,400) - (1,400)
Net carrying amount BR M E B 10,600 5,105 15,705

. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. RTB QB 2 X

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2019, were as follows:

(@)

R-E—AE=A=+—B FEWHEALQ

A(EEBERAERARZFHBHRIET

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment and share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
BETRAR
ML/ H T EERRE/
NAIER REXHE afER B BE TEEH
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI’)
Sino Harbour Property Holdings RERNES 127 A5 2100 REER
Limited ((REBEZEER))
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
Sino Harbour Bio Technology RBRAES 1271 BA 2100 REER
Holdings Group Limited
Sinotech International Holdings BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Limited
EVERERERLA AERAES 127 B 2100 REER
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Investment holding
EEBRAA BE 10,0007 7T ARZ100 REER
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Investment holding
RHEEREERAA Bk 100 7T BA2100 BREZR
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IRENAEHERERRLR HE 25,000,000% 7 BHR2100 EHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property ~ PRC RMB100,000,000 S 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BANAASNERHEREARAGF DHE A K #100,000,000 7 BHZ100 FHERE
Nanchang Liyang Decoration PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Interior design and
Limited (“Nanchang Liyang’) decoration
(note (i)
HEMEREHIRERLA B A K #5,000,000 70 BRZ100 EARFREE
(HEBBM# )

EREREEARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16. R & 2 8 2 # & (%)

(@) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ RZFE-AF=ZA=+—H TEWEX
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 AEBEARABERABDZHBHINWMT : (F)
March 2019, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment and share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
ERTRAR
FRMAL/ KT EBRRA/
DNEAER REEBY dfE A HE BE TEEE
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(“Nanchang Dingxun’)
HESAEXARAA o B A K #100,000,000 7 BAZ5 RHERE
(Bagal)
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd.
EYTEEEAEXBERAA h A R 24,500,000 BAZ5 RHERE
((#TRE])
Sino Harbour Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BEERAERAA Bk 1R BA2100 BREZR
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Limited
PEREEREEARAA R 100% 7T AH2100 KREER
Sino Harbour Development and Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
Investment Limited
EBERREERDA ) 1T BA2100 EEER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate PRC RMB379,092,000 - 100%  Property development
Co., Limited (2018:
RMB370,575,000)
MMAEBRESXER LA B AR %379,092,0007C BAZ100 BHERE
(Z2-N\%F:
A K #370,575,0007T)
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 50%  Property development
(“Jiangxi Ganghong”) (note 17)
TEAEXEXARAA o B A K #100,000,000 7 AR50 BHERE
(CIEBR (M E17)
1 88 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited :‘-,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2019, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of

incorporation/

establishment and
Company name operation

EMA LR
NAEE REXHLH

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

16. MK 2 7z # & ()
@ R-ZF-NF=A=+—-H FEBHBEX
A(EBRARRARDZFERHIIMT : ()

Issued and fully

paid ordinary
share capital/ Principal
registered capital Directly Indirectly activities

BETRAR

EBRRA/
dfE A B BE IEER

Capital Manager Investment Limited BV

Capital Manager Investment Limited ~ X B R Z B &

Sino Harbour Bio Technology Hong Kong
Limited
ERENHMRBERAF BE

Sinotech Digital Company Limited Hong Kong
EMBBEAERAA BE

Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited PRC

IEEBECEERAA B

Shanghai Han Yun Information PRC
Technology Limited

TEBREEERMARRR h

Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology PRC

Limited
IEEAMBRAERAT &
Jiangxi Mengma Makerspace PRC
Technology Limited

TEZERAZRMRERRA &
Jiangxi Hanxun Technology Limited ~ PRC

TEERMBRERLA T

50,000 ordinary S 100%  Investment holding
shares of US$1 each
50,000 &R 1% 7T BHZ100 REER
VEBR
HK$1 - 100%  Dormant
BT AAZ100 EEEX
HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
1R BAZ100 REER
RMB4,500,000 - 100%  Corporate and
investment
management
AR %4,500,0007 BRZ100 HERKREER
RMB5,000,000 > 80% Information technology
development
AR #5,000,0007 BHZ80 {5 RBMAE
RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
A K #10,000,0007 BAZ100 REER
RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
A R #10,000,0007C BAZ100 EEER
RMB2,000,000 > 80%  Wholesales &
household products
AR #2,000,0007 BAZ280 RERAMBE

aenREEARAT [ | 189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

16.
(a)

190

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2019, were as follows: (Continued)

16. RKE A 7 2% = (F)
@ RZE-—NAEF=ZA=+—8B ZEWNBA

A(ZEERERRRZHFBHEIMT : (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment and share capital/ Principal
Company name operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
ERTREAR
FMAL/ BT EBRRA/
DNAER REEWY dfE A HE MiE TEEE
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Transfer and
Limited consultation services
EREBENRMERAF B A K #10,000,0007 BAZ90 ENRFARE
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC RMB60,000,000 = 75%  Pharmaceutical
Technology Company Limited inspection
HIEABERKBERAA B A K %60,000,000 70 BAZTS EmiH
Zhejiang Sino Harbour Bio PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Technology Limited
MIERENRMARA A o B AR %10,000,000 70 ARZ100 EEEK
Irvine Pharmaceutical Technology PRC RMB3,000,000 S 75%  Pharmaceutical
Co. Limited (“Irvine”) (ii) inspection
MM RBERRERDA E AR %3,000,0007 BAZTS EmRH
(I3 1) i
Jiangxi Ganghua Medical PRC RMB10,000,000 = 51%  Oral medical
Management Co,. Limited (i) management
IREEBREEAR DA mE A K #10,000,0007 BAZSl PNREEREER
Notes: Kt -
(i On 19 June 2014, equity interests in Nanchang (i) RZFE—WENA+NE FEFBREZH

(i)

Liyang held by the Group were transferred to
Nanchang Gangrui Trading Company Limited,
which held on behalf of the Group under trust
agreement dated 19 June 2014.

These companies were newly incorporated or
acquired during the year ended 31 March 2019.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16. R M & 2 7 2 % &= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial b) TXHIN —"ZFXEBHAEEMSBEEK
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary L EBEREECWBARREAE &A
that has a non-controlling interests which is 2B ERBME -

material to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position BHERREERHE
As at 31 March
R=BA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ANR®FT

Current B
Assets B E 778,142 1,011,692
Liabilities BfE (285,576) (429,481)
Total net current assets ABEEFEARE 492,566 582,211
Non-current E1 |
Assets B E 67 100
Liabilities a8E = (121,000)
Total net non-current liabilities (RBEBEERE 67 (120,900)
Net assets EEFE 492,633 461,311
Accumulated non-controlling AFtFERER

interests 237,427 223,332

EEREREEARAT [ 191
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16. R M & 2 & 2 % &= (&)

(b) Set out below are the summarised financial b) TXHIN " ZFXEEBHAEEMSBEEK
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary L EBEREECWBARREAE &A
that has a non-controlling interests which is LB ERBEE - (8)

material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive TEHBRERBE
income

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=t+-HLEE

2019 2018
—®-nE Z—T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®TFT

Revenue A 345,703 17,931
Profit/(loss) before income tax B P15 %5 B B (5 18) 57,209 (3,563)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 H W %%, (E8) & % 31,322 (3,563)
Profit/(loss) allocated to a DR TFHEERER 2R

non-controlling interest (E48) 14,095 (1,603)

Dividends paid to a non-controlling X THERER KRS
interest = -

192 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16. R M & 2 7 2 % &= (&)

()

Set out below are the summarised financial (b)
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary
that has a non-controlling interests which is

material to the Group. (Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

TXHI—REBHAEEMEBE X
ZEBEEREaZMNBARME SR
ZHBEMBE - (B)

BERERBE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FTT ARBTF T
Cash flows from operating KRETEFMELEEESRE
activities
Cash generated from/(used in) S TEATESE (AT )
operations B2 29,468 (117,677)
Interest received 2 W F & 2,133 3,937
Income tax refunded/(paid) BRE/(BEMTER 4,339 (18,337)
Net cash generated from/(used in) e & OF B pr EE (BT )
operating activities B FE 35,940 (132,077)
Cash flows from investing BRETHMEERESERE
activities
Purchase of property, plants and BEDE BEREZE
equipment (16) (25)
Increase in pledged bank deposits 2 R 1777 ZRIE (1,661) (2,472)
Net cash used in investing activities REZTEHFHE S FHE (1,677) (2,497)
Cash flows from financing MEETHMEERESERE
activities
Proceeds from new borrowings HMEEMRGSERA - 160,000
Repayments of borrowings BEREE (132,000) (38,000)
Net cash (used in)/generated from #ETE (BT H) BT E %
financing activities B FEE (132,000) 122,000
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESEEBYRD
equivalents b (97,737) (12,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYNReABEEEY
beginning of the year 184,449 197,023
Cash and cash equivalent at the FRESRELSEEY
end of the year 86,712 184,449
BEREZEREEERAT 193
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBE|E Ilﬁﬂ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2=

17.

—NFZA=1—HILFE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. REELEER
2019
—E-hE
RMB’000
ARMFT

2018
—E-N\F

RMB’000
AR®FT

Unlisted investment, at cost
Share of post-acquisition loss

Amount due from joint ventures

Under HKFRS 11,

FEMERE BKA -
o5 W 1R B 18 -

these joint arrangements are
classified as joint ventures and have been included
in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. As at 31 March 2019 and 2018, the
Group had interest in the following joint ventures:

50,000
(6,168)

43,832

140,433

184,265

@f%%%%ﬁiﬁW%ﬁ$
EBA“Aﬁﬁﬁ%%
% o A

Issued and fully

SR AGREER
—NWER-_T-NF=ZA=+—8"
ZK’*IELAT/\A E R/ R R Eo

SZERERH

X =T A &
%

paid ordinary Percentage
share capital/ of equity
Place of Principal activities and registered interests held
Company name establishment place of operation capital by the Group

BETR
EHEEER rEEREEF
NCIEE FX 3L i B TEEBREEHY A EMEX BREBD L
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co.  PRC Property development, RMB100,000,000 =
Ltd. (“Jiangxi Ganghong”) PRC (2018: 50%)
IAEREXRRAA f & FEHERZE HE A R #100,000,000 7T -
aicp:: 33 (Z2-N\F:
50%)
Sino Grace Holdings Limited Hong Kong General trading, HK$2 50%
Hong Kong (2018: 50%)
EREEARRAA e —REH BE 2T 50%
(ZE-N\F:
50%)

194 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited ‘
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi
HongKelong entered into a designated operating
agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which
subject to the fulfiiment of certain conditions,
Jiangxi HongKelLong Industrial Limited (T73%
BEEAERAA) (“Jiangxi HongKeLong”), which
held the remaining 50% equity interests in Jiangxi
Ganghong, designate all the rights and responsibility
of the management, operation and financing of the
Yichun Elderly Apartment undeveloped project
(the “Undeveloped Project”) to the Group and
all the future costs and revenues in relation to the
Undeveloped Project will belong to the Group with a
compensation of RMB244,000,000 payable by the
Group to Jiangxi HongKelLong. As at 31 March 2018,
deposit of RMB122,000,000 was paid to Jiangxi
HongKelong and the ownership of all assets and
liabilities of the Undeveloped Project were remained
held by Jiangxi Ganghong as certain conditions under
the Agreement had not been fulfilled.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, remaining
RMB122,000,000 were paid by the Group to Jiangxi
HongKelong and all conditions under the Agreement
had been fulfilled. The Agreement became effective
and all assets and liabilities of the Undeveloped
Project are beneficially owned by the Group.

The contractual arrangement on the Undeveloped
Project is determined by the directors of the Company
to be acquisition of assets rather than as business
combination because the assets acquired did not
constitute a business as defined under HKFRS 3
(revised) “Business Combination”. The acquisition
accounted as purchase of properties held under
development and Jiangxi Ganghong ceased to be a
joint venture of the Group after the completion date.

17.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

REELEZESH)

RZFBE-—N\F=ZA=Z+H AEEETIALET
BREEERAB(GIBEHRER] HAHIHBKR
B T50% 0% #E) ] 3 — 19 8 & & & 2 ([ 3
B OB SETHROGEREZ IALKRRE
BEEHREEEFABARAEBEE(AMBER])
NERE KERBMENFTAEEILETZRT
REBE AAFEERKRMABRANRKAB
BRASEE AEEARIAETERBEAR
#044,000,000 c R—E—NE=A=+—H "
BERIA SRR NIES AR 122,000,000
T MEBRZBERETEREREEN KA
HEMBEERABBENMAEDHIAB RS
ﬁo

E-hNhF=ZA=Z+—BLEFE £5H
AL 7R E N R AR 122,000,000
CMBZMENERGEEEER -ZH&®EE
BoMARBBEEMBEERBERAEH
sHEH o

o HF o (D B
eI
i

:
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ARBIEEHARERENGNLHETRE
ERBMIZBEH RARMUBEEYLE
BREAVBRSEREIREEER [XHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁ‘a

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ##ZE =F—hF=H=+—HIFZ

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. RegbxziEa (@&
(CONTINUED)
The aggregate amounts relating to Jiangxi Ganghong, UTHEEBIAARX(HEAREBENERX
which is considered as a material joint venture of EEPERBERASEEHEZE_Z—/\F=H
the Group, that have been included in the Group’s = ‘|’ HEFERNGEMBRR)NETEHT
consolidated financial statements for the year ended TS TS RN EBEEHRE-

31 March 2018 as extracted from relating financial
statements of Jiangxi Ganghong are set out below:

2018
—B-N%
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Results of Jiangxi Ganghong as a joint venture SIFE &R (EAXEB S Y D ¥)
of the Group for the year ended 31 March BE=FA=1+t—RHLFENEE
Income WA =
Expenses =3 (1,000)
Loss for the year FAEE (1,000)
Group’s share of result of a joint venture forthe year "R EFEE AR EE EB(E A E D EEE (500)
Group’s accumulated share of result of a joint AEBERFTELHEELEES
venture (6,168)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=ZA=Z+—HHWEERESR
Non-current assets FERBEE -
Current assets MEEE 278,693
Current liabilities mE B & (191,029)
Net assets EEFE 87,664
Group’s share of net assets of a joint venture AEBELMEEPENEEFE 43,832
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and nHeHaFE(EMNERLEMER
other payables and provisions) FRIE M BN (191,029)
196 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited |
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(CONTINUED)

%A%ﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

REELEZESH)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRETASETREBASEATENGE G
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not XNV BEREE -
individually material:
2019 2018
—E-hE C—T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Frx ARB T
Share of loss and total comprehensive FARMAEELENERE
income of a joint venture for the year KEEW AL —* 1
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREGETPENES
Group’s interest in a joint venture FERHE 2B —* 1

* Represented the amount less than RMB1,000

At 31 March 2018, certain properties held under
development of Jiangxi Ganghong amounting to
approximately RMB146,253,000 were pledged
against bank loans of the ultimate holding company
and a fellow subsidiary of Jiangxi HongKeLong.

Except for above, at 31 March 2019 and 2018,
neither contingent liabilities nor capital commitments
are shared by the Group.

At 31 March 2018, amount due from Jiangxi
Ganghong was unsecured, interest free and not
repayable within 12 months from the reporting date.

* HLRARKL,0007T .2 %88

RZE-—NF=ZA=Z=+—HB TIAEBHOAER
# 146,258,000t 2 & T E R P W E Ty 5T fa %
M;%_ZE—ZM AR E—RRAZXKEB QAR
TEREERR-

L FEN R_E-NAFR-_ZF-NF=H
SR AKBAIEREIXRBERE N K
= o

RZE-—NF=ZA=Z+—8 BRIFAEREK
BEDhAEER 2 RBEARBREABRETZ
@A RNER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. R E N A 2
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF T AREFT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 4,639 4,200
Goodwill on acquisition WEREA B2 158 158
4,797 4,358
Detall of the associate is as follows: BERNRFREOT
Percentage
Paid-up of equity
Place of Principal activities and registered interest held
Name establishment place of operation capital by the Group
ERRZ rEEREH
=E B SL it B TEFHREXEMY i ER BERD
Zhejiang Davi Pharmaceutical Co.,,  PRC Research and development, US$6,180,104 30%
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Davi”) manufacturing and sale
of pharmaceutical
products, PRC
HMIAKRERERRAA el RERER RERHE 6,180,104% T 30%
(MMIKRABD BEEm PH
In November 2015, the Group entered into a RZE—EHEF+— B AEBEFTZ—HREW
subscription agreement (“Subscription Agreement’) Z(RBHEBURENTLI KA LE XK
to subscribe for 30% equity interests of the enlarged RZ30%BE- M IXKBEE=-FEHESHE
registered capital of Zhejiang Davi. Zhejiang Davi was RAR(IEHNEZEHRE -
wholly owned by a third party, Smartway Trading
Limited (“Smartway”).
The Group had paid up 30% equity interests of BHE_ZT—-—R"EF=-HA=1+T—HBLFE L&
Zhejiang Davi with a consideration of RMB11,273,000 ERBERBHZEBARSUREBEARE
in accordance with the Subscription Agreement by 11,273,000 7T 88 & #1 ) I K & 2 30% % #& -
cash during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19




18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)

Under the Subscription Agreement, Smartway would
irrevocably guarantee the Group that the net profit
after income tax expense per annum from Zhejiang
Davi should not be less than RMB7,000,000,
RMB9,000,000, or RMB11,000,000 for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2016, 2017
and 2018 (collectively “Guaranteed Periods”)
respectively; or the total net profit after income tax
expense should not be less than RMB27,000,000 for
the Guaranteed Periods (collectively “Guaranteed
Profit”). Contingent consideration (“Davi
Contingent Consideration”) represented amount
to be received by the Group if Zhejiang Davi fails
to met the Guaranteed Profit and were recognised
at financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
during the year. At the acquisition date, the fair value
of Davi Contingent Consideration arrangement was
estimated by independent valuer.

The fair value of Davi Contingent Consideration on the
acquisition date was approximately RMB3,483,000.
As at 31 March 2019, the fair value of Davi Contingent
Consideration to be RMB8,805,000 (2018:
RMB6,107,000) (note 20).

The Group was also granted the right to resell entire
equity interests to Smartway at a consideration
equivalent to the net investment cost paid by the
Group plus a 13% premium amount per annum and
net of any dividend received during the Guaranteed
Periods. The fair value of the right to resell on the
acquisition date was estimated by an independent
valuer as approximately RMB1,295,000. As at 31
March 2019, the fair value of the right to resell was
estimated by an independent valuer as approximately
RMB2,750,000 (2018: RMB1,583,000) (note 20).

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had a commitment of
approximately RMB9,127,000 (2018: RMB9,127,000)
in relation to capital injection to Zhejiang Davi.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group provided corporate
guarantees for bank borrowings amounted to for
RMB3,500,000 of a related party for Zhejiang Davi.

18.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

REEATR ZER(E)

BERBEHH SEABTUIROHERERERAES
—E-RF - ZE—+ttFRKZZE—-NF+=A
T HE=ZBAFESF(BBIRIFHHEE
ESFUR-NIRNAESKRAISHRAIERZA
o8 AE LR ARK7000000T AR
9,000,000 sk A R # 11,000,000 : 3¢ A 1R &
HMBRAEHAZEAENEBIFEIRARE
27,000,000 c (BB RBERA]) - HAKREBE(K
ARARAREDEMITIIAABRZTERBENB
MAEEBERZABIRAFTFERRAE AR
BERERINEreBREE-RKBESE XA
SARBLEZ AR ERBL B ERMGE -

AABIARREBERREBHNAABEHARE
3,483,000 R ZFTE—hLhF=ZA=+—H" K
BRARENQARE A ARKS805000T(=
T — N\F: AR#6,107,0007T) (M 3% 20) °

REETERBEULASERAKRASEEMIZN
ZFREXRANEFI13%aESBITNBRE
HEWFENRBEZREEE2BRETEH -
RWEBBH SEEMNQAABELCELHAEMG
A ABAREA120500T - R_FE—NLF=ZA
=+—HB BEEMNQARBELE G EMIGE
B ARE2750,00T(ZFE—N\F: ARK
1,583,000 7T ) (Fff £ 20) °

RZE—NEFE=ZA=Z=+—"H A&EEHEEH
MMTIRKAETE 2 EZENAEANREI127,0007T
—E—)N\F: AR¥9,127,0007T) °

RZE—NF=ZA=Z=F+—8B AEBRHIK
B R E ZRTEE ARS,500,0005T
HABER-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED)  18. B & A 8 = # % ()
FBEENIABZBERAUBEHRERBEEHNEAE
BnRelBREcBEENIRAHEALRSE
BrEERBERR) RBBEHINOT :

The aggregate amounts relating to Zhejiang Davi,
which is considered as a material associate of the
Group, that have been included in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements as extracted from
relating financial statements of the Zhejiang Davi are
set out below:

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®FT ARM T
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March REZBA=+—HZEEK
=R
Current assets mEEE 64,182 58,091
Non-current assets EMBEE 32,797 35,470
Current liabilities mEBEE (81,517) (79,563)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE = -
Net assets BEFHE 15,462 13,998
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest AEBRBELATRER
in an associate: B8R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership N E B BT B RE B 30% 30%
Group’s share of net assets of an associate 7~ & & fE (5 — & Bt & A 7
BEEFE 4,639 4,200
Goodwill on acquisition WEmEEZEHE 158 158
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 4,797 4,358
Other disclosures HihipEEE
For period from date of acquisition KWEBEHE=A=+—H
to 31 March Z B
Revenue A 20,147 14,560
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive wm A (e k2w ks
income 4 1,464 (4,384)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/FINANCIAL

ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

HtEMEE RAOAEREMZE KRG

2019 2018
—E-hF —E—-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARBFT
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE

Unlisted equity investments, at cost KA ETRERE  ZKAK - 28,357

Equity instruments measured RAAEREMLZE KSR

at FvoCl JIRRFGFENRETLTR

Unlisted equity investments REMBRERE 33,422 -

At 31 March 2019, within financial assets at FVOCI,
other financial assets of balance of approximately
RMB20,000,000 (2018: RMB19,890,000) represented
carrying amount of 5.24% of equity interest in Jiangxi
Longyu Medicine Co., Limited (“Longyu Medicine”)
and other unlisted shares held by the Group. On
28 September 2017, the Group entered into the
subscription agreement (the “Longyu Subscription
Agreement”) to subscribe for the shares of
Longyu Medicine. The aggregate consideration
for the subscription was RMB19,890,000 and the
subscription was completed in January 2018. Shares
of Longyu Medicine are traded in National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in PRC.

Under the Longyu Subscription Agreement, the
controlling shareholder of Longyu Medicine would
irrevocably guarantee the Group that the net profit
after income tax expense of Longyu Medicine for
the year ended 31 December 2018 should not be
less than RMB25,000,000 (“Longyu Guaranteed
Profit”). Contingent consideration (“Longyu
Contingent Consideration”) represented amount
to be received by the Group if Longyu Medicine fails
to meet the Longyu Guaranteed Profit and were
recognised at financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss during the year.

As at 31 March 2019, the fair value of the Longyu
Contingent Consideration was RMB1,100,000 (note
20).

RZE—NAFZAZ+—"H RELQAAEBBRE
tmerEEEENEREEY EthemMEE
“Ear g A R#20,000,000t (ZE—N\F: AR
#:19,800,000 T) I A FE E R B R A A
(R BHE |S24%RERAEEFT A HE M IE
TR ONEEE R_E—+EHLA =+ N
A AEEHITUREDZ((EFRABHEDR
BREFEERMD RBEFTENEREAARE
19,800,000t MR EFBE R T — \F —
Bk EFEERNPERE2EFRNEERMD
EHERREE -

REETRABGZ ETBEZZERBREKTA
WO ASERE ETEERBE_F—
NFT_A=+-"BLEFENKRMAEHMAXRK
e e AR 25,000,000 7T (88 F 1R &
BRD HARBIEFIAAREDEMNET
BEARERETRELZN BB AKEEZ K2R
RERAFEER/ERIABRERIIKZE
MEE-

RZZE-—NE=ZA=Z+—"H EFHAREN
NAr1E A ANRE1,100,000 7T (M 5£20) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/FINANCIAL 19. Htt ¢ MEE RZRAAERHEMC2EKE
ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER RS R EE(|)
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
Prior to 1 April 2018, the unlisted investments of the RZE—NFHOA—HA - AEEFELMEE
Group are designated as available-for-sale financial WETANHILECHEEAYEE T A
assets and have no fixed maturity date and coupon HEMAE BN ARREINERE - ZEREE
rate and was stated at cost less impairment. These ERMBYEMSERE EFECTHEIREE
investments do not have a quoted market price LRBEZ2EEEERE ARR/RBEE_ZE-—NF=
in an active market. The directors have assessed AZ+-—BLEFEEEHREEBEBHOARK
the financial assets for objective evidence of 360,000 7T °
impairment and concluded that the impairment loss
of approximately RMB360,000 was made for the year
ended 31 March 2018.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, the RZE-—NFEHA—ABEMNEBTHHREER
unlisted investments of the Group was irrevocably FORE BHRAEERARZEREBRB M
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these E XAEENFLITRECAAREMETER
investments to be strategic in nature. BEAnEREMEERZEIER-
Fair value of the equity instruments has been BETENRAAECEWFISOFMETHE -
measured as described in note 35(f).
20. FINANCIALASSETSATFAIRVALUETHROUGH 20. BAREREHIRZEHMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2019 2018
ZE-NF —E—-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T T AR FT
Davi Contingent Consideration RNEXARE
— at fair value (note 18) - R {EHE18) 8,805 6,107
Derivative financial instruments fTEE®MIEA
— unlisted put option (note 18) -JEEMRIGEAREN Z18) 2,750 1,583
Longyu Contingent Consideration EFHARE
— at fair value (note 19) - R EHFE19) 1,100 -
12,655 7,690
For more detailed information in relation to the fair BENLTEBRAABEAE T SHMER &
value measurement of the items above, please refer 2 B M 5E35(f) °
to note 35(f).
202 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited ‘
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22.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%Aﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁﬁi

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. B & $# %
2019 2018
—E-hF —ET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
Leasehold interests in land T HE RN 1,319,489 918,712
Development costs R AN 656,652 561,217
Finance costs capitalised N = i 206,918 184,511
2,183,059 1,664,440
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC iiﬂ HEESUNTE HEHR _THMOF
and have lease terms expiring from 2044 to 2079 ZEtENFzEER(ZE-NF:ZE N
(2018: 2044 to 2079). At 31 March 2019, certain @iiigtﬂ@ CTRZE-—NAFZ=ZA=ZT
properties held under development of approximately — B - HAR®771,385000L(ZF—\F: A
RMB771,385,000 (2018: RMB1,069,425,000) were R #1,069,425,0007t) 2 & THEFWEED T
pledged against bank loans of the Group (note 27). R AEDRAKEEZRITERPE27) -
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 22, FEWME
Properties held for sale included property interests FEMELEETR L 2 WEES BEH

in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2080 (2018: 2043 to 2080). As at 31
March 2019, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB40,066,000 (2018:
RMB36,922,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2019, properties
held for sale with carrying value of RMB2,782,000
(2018: RMB1,903,000) were transferred to investment
properties as these properties were under operating
lease arrangements with third parties during the year
to earn rental (note 14).

At 31 March 2019, certain properties held for
sale of approximately RMB66,789,000 (2018:
RMB109,047,000) were pledged against bank
loans of the Group (note 27). As at 31 March
2018, the building ownership certificates of the
Group’s properties held for sale of approximately
RMB42,243,000 were placed with the bank as
custody (note 27).

= _

R=—Z W= ii—f/\fizﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁﬂ:a
NF: ZEN=ZFE_ZENTF) - R _FT—H
F=A=+—B tHHEHERR z%«‘”’%ﬁ%%
HREEEL A AR®AL0,066,000T(=ZF— N
F: AR ¥36,922,0007T) °

HE-_ZTZ—NAF=ZA=Z+—BLFER - E@
BEAEAR®278200T(ZFE—N\F: ARK
1,903000L) 2 F EMXEBREREYE R
AAZEWEDNRBEFRNEE=ZFFILZ2KEE
MEZHBRIAS (M E14) -

RZE—-—NLF=ZA=Z+—H H AR
66,789,000 (= ZF — N\ & : A R % 109,047,000
NG THEBEELEERELASERTE
FEEF (M E27) R —NF=ZA=Z+—
H ASBGTEVENEEMAEZIENOAR
¥ 42,243,0007C B 7 LR R 17 R B R E (K &
27) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

23.

24,

204

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23. EWERK
The aging analysis of accounts receivable, based I A E B Sk B AR AR E 2 B R AR E
on invoice date that were neither individually nor ZEHHMFEZCRESTAT
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AR FT
Less than 3 months LR =@ A - 321
Receivables that were past due but not impaired ERmERBECERRBEEETELERA
relate to a number of independent buyers. Based on B-RBEBATLR ESRAHREEERL
past experience, the Directors considered that no BMEREIREHDER AT 2EHKE - B it
impairment allowance is required as there has not EmEEHRBERS-
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group and the Company recognised impairment REBRARARRENZEIISRI4TEHE
loss based on the accounting policy stated in note FTECK RN EEE -
3.13 and 3.14.
PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24, ENRERAEMERKIE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
Prepayments T8 fF 3k EH 153,019 241,111
Other receivables (note) H b & W FIE (B 7E) 27,480 27,160
180,499 268,271

Note:

As at 31 March 2019, other receivables included amounts of
approximately RMB280,000 (2018: RMB280,000) due from
Zhejiang Davi. The amount was unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

None of the other receivables is either past due or impaired.
The other receivables related to counterparties for which there
was no recent history of default.

The Group recognises loss allowance for other receivables
for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 respectively
based on the accounting policies stated in notes 3.13 and
3.14 respectively. Further details of the Group’s credit policy
and credit risk arising from other receivables are set out in
note 35(b).

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

KRR B E KR AT 4R

25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 25. B # # &7 X

BALANCES
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o &t AR¥ T ARBT T
Cash and bank deposits BWe MIRITHFER 496,240 452,529
Less: VAR
Deposit pledged against MR AERRT
banking facilities granted to B & i TR
the mortgagees (a) (40,265) (46,732)
Deposit pledged for bank loans MIBITEFIEEH
SN (b) (176,134) (183,650)
Deposit restricted for construction EETERGH
works e (64,521) -
Cash and cash equivalents for the REEBRERERMS
purpose of the consolidated WEReRREEEBY
statement of cash flows 215,320 222,147
Notes: M &% -
(a)  The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security (a) XM F33HTEF M FHME TRITERIERRF

in the PRC as detailed in note 33. These banks
provided mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition
of properties from the Group. The pledge will last for the
period from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans

By e ZERTAKBAERY X E X
EHREEEN BERKAEREERESABHEY
REZRRTEEFEHEAHLEN  BFHAHT
HRYREZXERTEENMFEE ABBELR -

to the date when the certificates for housing ownership
are granted to the property purchasers. Such charges
will be released upon the certificates are granted to the
property purchasers.

(b) The bank deposits of approximately HK$199,157,000
(equivalent to RMB170,634,000) (2018:
RMB178,150,000) and RMB5,500,000 (2018: —/VF: AR #¥178,150,0007T) & A & 5,500,000
RMBS5,500,000) were pledged against bank loans due to 7%( — T —\4F: AR ¥5500,0007T)H) 3R 7T 77
be settled within twelve months and over twelve months DB BEHET —BHARAR =A% I A4
respectively after the reporting period (note 27) as at 31 EZRITBEN(WFE27)(EE I - Z S 750 89 B BX
March 2019. The effective interest rates of these deposits FIE 7> F0.35[ 2220 (= F—/\F : 0.35[E £1.75
were ranging from 0.35% to 2.20% (2018: 0.35% to [E) o
1.75%).

b)) R = —NWNF=ZHA=+—H HARK
199,157,000t (18 & R A K # 170,634,000T) (= &

EREREEARAF

E 205
A\ 2018/19 F iR '




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

25. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK 25. EE#RERUKRE & &R 174 8k (&)
BALANCES (CONTINUED)
At 31 March 2019, approximately RMB308,165,000 RZZTE—-— A F=ZARAR=Z+—H' B AR
(2018: RMB438,082,000) were cash deposited with #308,165,000t( = & — N F: A R ¥
banks or other financial institutions in the PRC. These 438,082,000L) R FERN P BB RITH HE b &
balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is not BMEENRS ZEEBRUARBHE - AR
freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under the BB B LBEAINE - RZ T B INEE B E
PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and IR G EERNEEERTE AKEAE
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of BRABENERBETHIEZHTNRITHEAR
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted R RSN o
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.
26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS 26. EMNRM B RE BAURRERHEMEN
IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES M E
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt it AR¥EFIT ARBTF T
Accounts payable FE 5 BR X (a) 38,485 52,115
Accruals, receipts in advance and Ei R E -FEAKRFER
other payables Hfh B R\
Receipts in advance TE MK IB (b) - 335,549
Accruals and other payables FE 5T 308 R E M FE A
WA () 384,136 175,140
384,136 510,689
Notes: Bt -
(a)  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice (8 ENEAZBZEZAHAEZERESTUOT -
date, is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARM T AREFT
Less than 3 months PR =M@A 15,030 3,455
3-6 months —@BA=EX@EA 2,277 2,512
6 months—1 year ANEAE—F 813 23,227
More than 1 year —F 20,365 22,921
38,485 52,115
206 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited |
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e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

26. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS,RECEIPTS 26. RN B RE BAURERAEMENS

IN ADVANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES FIE (&)

(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) Bt it (48)

(b)  Upon adoption of HKFRS 15, an opening adjustment (b) REREEHERE 5%/5//%15% # BER= z —
was made on 1 April 2018 to reclassify sales deposits NFOR—BELHBTHE KEBYFHEEK
and installments received from customers in relation to %?/5 W) HE RS R DB AW HE]E
property sales from “receipts in advance” to “contract HDBERIEHWEE] -
liabilities”.

(c)  Accrued construction cost and other project-related © RZ-ZFE-NF=ZA=1+-— \5 CETAEF ERA
expenses were included in accruals and other payables it JEE 5% JH B JE at BB AR AKX R A R A A B
amounted to approximately RMB273,910,000 as at 31 X KA B #273910000t (= F —NF: AR
March 2019 (2018: RMB70,987,000). The amount was 70,987,0007T ) ° & &t 7 H J5 1R 15 16 B9 1% 7% 91X
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements REAEEHE AR#EE AR AR BRE N
and project progress and was not due for payment as
at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2019, other payables included an amount R-ZFB-NF=ZA=+—H EMENKXEESSE
of approximately RMB490,000 (2018: RMB490,000), #)A B #490,0007T (= F — /U4 : A K #490,0007T)
which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing Property ENMIARRFEMERNZFFRA A HE AT
Development Limited (IFARSFEMEMEHR D) S S ‘/WE ANTES B 249% % B ZEELN
which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s subsidiary, KEERRBER  BERERELRGF AR 2 EE -
Leping City. These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand in cash.
As at 31 March 2018, other payables included an amount R-ZFE-NF=ZA=+—H EMENKXEESSE
of approximately RMB2,461,000, which was payable to ) A B # 2,461,000 7T JE 17 )T 79 H 5 [E 69 350 R -
Jiangxi HongKeLong.
27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS 27. RTREMBER
2019 2018
—E-NEF ZE—)N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M i AR®FT ARMFT
Bank loans — secured RITE N - B K HE (a) 1,149,233 1,143,051
Other loan - unsecured HthE R - EmEM (b) 16,000 -
1,165,233 1,143,051
| EBZEREBRARAT 207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBE|E Ilﬁﬂ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ##ZE =F—hF=H=+—HIFZ

27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 27.

The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and

other loans is as follows:

RITRHEMER
RITMEMERZETBEI> BT

X ()

2019 2018
—E2-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AR BT
Current 7B
Portion of bank and other loans due for AR —FRNEHEZE
repayment within one year or on demand  #Z ESREE 2 BT &
HEMmERBS 688,733 458,884
Non-current 3!5 RE
Portion of bank and other loans due for ER—FREBEEZ
repayment after one year HITREMERTH 476,500 684,167
Total borrowings HmEE 1,165,233 1,143,051
The Group’s bank and other loans are repayable as AEBEEEZRITREMERNOT
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fo AR TFIT
Within one year or on demand —FARHIEEK 688,733 458,884
In the second year —F RN 103,675 408,292
In the third to fifth year RE=ZZEZEFERFR 372,825 103,675
More than five years AFMNUE - 172,200
476,500 684,167
Total borrowings BMEE 1,165,233 1,143,051
Notes: Bt st -
(a)  Asat 31 March 2019, the effective interest rates of the @ RZ-ZFE—-NF=ZA=Z+—H FEBHEHKHFRT
Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 2.20% ERXERFIE R FEF220%F10.66%(=F —
to 10.55% (2018: 2.20% to 7.50%) per annum. /1 F :220%F7.60%) °
(b)  As at 31 March 2019, the effective interest rate of the ) R-ZF—NF=ZA=Z+—H FEHEHRHFAM
Group’s unsecured other loans were ranging from 4.6% EAERFIER FEFL16%Z29% °

to 9% per annum.

208

. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited ‘




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

27. BOTREMBERE)

AEERTIREMERZZEEEHATEET

loans are denominated in the following currencies: B :
2019 2018
—®-NE —ZT-)N\fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Frx AR FT
RMB AR 959,167 943,640
HK$ T 206,066 199,411
1,165,233 1,143,051

As at 31 March 2019, the outstanding balances of
bank and other loans in HK$ was HK$241,013,000
(2018: HK$249,263,000).

As at 31 March 2019, bank loans were:

()  secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB50,798,000
(2018: RMB52,221,000) (note 13);

(i)  secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB489,319,000 (2018:
RMB507,626,000) (note 14);

(i) secured by the Group’s properties held
under development of approximately
RMB771,385,000 (2018: RMB1,069,425,000)
(note 21);

(iv) secured by the Group’s properties held for
sale of approximately RMB66,789,000 (2018:
RMB109,047,000) (note 22);

(v) secured by the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately RMB176,134,000 (2018:
RMB1883,650,000) (note 25);

(vi) secured by entire present and future issued
share capital of certain subsidiaries of the
Group; and

(vi) guaranteed by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Group, a non-controlling
shareholder of Nanchang Dingxun, Mr. Wong
Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong”), the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company and
an independent third party.

RZZE-—NAFE=ZA=Z=+—"H BITIEEMHLER
Z RN FRIE B JTET B A241,013,00008 T (=
Z — )\ £ : 249,263,000/ L) °

RZZE-AE=ZA=+—8B RITEXK:

i) HAEEVE BREAIKBHARE
50,798,000t( — & — N\ F: A R &

52,221,000 7T) {E # 8 (B 32 13)

iy AAEBEIKEDHELY ARKL89,319,000
T(ZE—/\F: AR ¥507,626,0007T)1E
AR (KT 5E14) 5

(i) AAEEREPYWEDHARET771,385,000
T(ZZE—NF: AR ¥1,069,425,0007T)
EH | (M sE21)

vy, AAEEFEMELY AR 66,789,000 7T
(ZZ—NF: AR¥109,047,0007T) E K
1 (B 3£ 22) ¢

(v) BAAEBIFEITERLY ARKE176,134,000
T(ZZE—NF: AR ¥183,650,0007T) 1E
| E25)

vi BAEEETHBARANMBEREA LK
KEBTHRAERR K

Vi) BRARARAEEETHEBRAR @S
SR - BEERRREIMKELETESR
) ARABRRREER —RBILFE=
TR

EEZREEERAT [ | 200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

27. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED) 27. BITRAEMERGE
Other than above, as at 31 March 2018, bank loans B EXRiEN RZFE—-—NE=ZA=+—
of the Group were placed with building ownership H AEBEMNRTEREEAEBRREME
certificates of the Group’s investment properties REFEENENEEMAERIEESNNARE
and properties held for sales of approximately 34,074,000 7T (Mt 3£ 14) & A R % 42,243,000 7T (Fit
RMB34,074,000 (note 14) and RMB42,243,000 (note FE22) A o
22) respectively as custody.
28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. EERBEEE(BE)
At 31 March 2019, deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RZZT—hhF=Z=A=+—H EERBEBEE
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2018: 25%). The (BE)UAMRE2%(ZF — N\ F:25%) 1B &
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising B -HEREBEAZECHREELEE (AR)
from temporary differences are as follows: 2T
Deferred tax
Deferred tax liabilities in
assets in Deferred tax respect of fair
respect assets in value change
of provision respect of investment
for LAT of tax losses properties Total
HREWE
g ER EREBR ARELE
BEREZ EBZEE FBZEL
BEEHEEE HEEE REER @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At 1 April 2017 RZFE—+FWA—H 12,658 - (80,036) (67,378)
Deferred tax charged to REZENKR CBRERE
the profit or loss (note 9)  (#f39) (1,144) - (3,582) (4,726)
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=ZA=+—H
1 April 2018 EZE-NFHA—-H 11,514 - (83,618) (72,104)
Deferred tax charged tothe R IEREMNB 2 ETHE
profit or loss (note 9) (Bfi#9) (1,346) 2,384 (1,155) (117
At 31 March 2019 R-ZB-NE=A=+-H 10,168 2,384 (84,773) (72,221)
210 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 28. BEZLHREEE (&%) (&)
(CONTINUED)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried BEEREEERMAES 2 BIBBE TUER -
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax ML EBRRERT G EIR 2B @B IAE
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. MaErBR - RZE-—NAFRZF-NF=ZA=
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses T—H AEBYESAABERNIBEEEAE
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31 HEEEARRERBBA -
March 2019 and 2018.
Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends ADERTHHEREEZREDIRENMH 5%
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2019, BB R R _E—NF=ZA=+—H &
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately MBARARSDEBINEHACEREZELS T
RMB24,538,000 (2018: RMB27,861,000) in respect AR #490,766,000t( —Z F — N F: AR
of aggregate amount of temporary difference #557212000 L) 2 EEHRIBEBENHNARK
of approximately RMB490,766,000 (2018: 24,538,0007t( = & — A\ F : A K ¥27,861,000
RMB557,212,000) associated with undistributed TIMARTUER BREAESEBEREESNZS
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised. MEARACKRERE BEBEZEAHITIGRN
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in ARBRELD RHEERZEEERRELER
respect of these differences because the Group is HAaRA-
in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Number of
Notes shares RMB’000
Kt &F BRBEBE AREBTT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BT E0.017%8 Tz @Ak
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—ttFMA—AH -
and 2019 —E-NFRZIZ-NAF
=A=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERTEABR:
At 1 April 2017, 31 March 2018 RZE—+FWMWA—A8-
and 2019 —E-NFRZZE-NF
—=A=+—H 2,464,000,000 20,735

During the year ended 31 March 2018 and 2019,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

REBEZE-ZTE-—NFRZZTE-NF=ZA=+—H
EFE ARAKREEFANMNBEARHMEREE -
HEXKBBOARBERLETES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 ##ZE =F—hF=H=+—HIFZ

30. RESERVES 30. 1

212

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves
are as follows:

() Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue
of shares of the Company at premium.

(ii) Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined
under the PRC accounting regulation, to a
statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. The transfer of this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividend to
the subsidiaries’ equity owners. The statutory
reserve is non-distributable other than upon the
liquidation of the subsidiaries.

(iii) FVOCI reserve

Balance represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

30. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 30. f#15 (@)
The Company ¥ NN
Share Retained
premium profits Total
% 14 % 8 2 E B =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT AREFT
At 1 April 2017 R-ZZE—+tFWUA—H 565,212 22,869 588,081
Profit for the year and total FRBEMNEFAZE KR
comprehensive income for FE-C
the year - 21,056 21,056
Dividend paid to owners of the St TR R BIEF A 2
Company [@=N - (21,848) (21,848)
At 31 March 2018 and RZE—-—NF=A=+—H
1 April 2018 rF—Z—-—NFEW™A—H 565,212 22,077 587,289
Profit for the year and total FRBMEFAZE KRS
comprehensive income for 4azm
the year - 18,812 18,812
Dividend paid to owners of the St TR QA T HE A A Z K2
Company - (21,364) (21,364)
At 31 March 2019 R-ZEB—-hhE=ZHA=+—H 565,212 19,525 584,737
BEREZEREEERAT 213
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

31.

32.

214

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 31. BEXREIE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial RZEWERREMITSFAEERN AEB#®
statements, the Group had the following outstanding BUATRITHRE RARE -
capital commitments:
2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
Contracted but not provided for in BERECETNEXREHE
respect of
- properties held under development - AEBZHAERYE
of the Group 166,614 68,030
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 32, REHEERIE
(a)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease @ AEEREDERBIAUNELEESE
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases MARRRBERZZERAEBRENOT
in respect of its properties as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTF T
Not later than one year —F R 3,778 4,142
Later than one year and not later —F FETBBAE
than five years 2,642 4,806
Later than five years FEFU 789 766
7,209 9,714

The Group leases out its investment properties
and properties held for sales which run for initial
periods of one to sixteen years, without option
to renew the lease terms at the respective expiry
dates. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals.

The Company does not have any operating
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)  The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of properties as follows:

32.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

ReEBMEAEE

b) AEERYERETARELEZHEEM
RARZINzZEBERLBNAT :

2019 2018

—E-AF ZE-)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTF T AR®FT

Not later than one year —F R 452 14
Later than one year and not later —FUEETBBAF

than five years 221 -

673 14

The Group leases properties under operating
lease arrangements which run for initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew
the lease terms at the expiry date. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2019, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB57,888,000 (2018:
RMB834,739,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession
of the relevant properties; or (i) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties.
No provision for the Group’s obligation under the
guarantees has been made as the directors considered
that it was not probable that the repayments of the
loans would be default.

33.

AEBEREBELEHELTHHEENE 02
FHRA—FE=F YA XEWEHEE
BrE -HESELARES -

MBER
AEBEERETHREMNERLHRIBEN
THERZFEREEREER- R _F N
FZA=1T-—"B EREZERBEOR/RARE
57,888,000 7L (=& — /\ FF : A K ¥ 834,739,000
TO) c ZFERERERUTRPEREH L L )
HEWEMARZB(—RNEZEEFRED X
B-—BIMERREME  RMVWEEREBRSE
EXR -HREFRR/TARARTERER
At W A AEENERETFELREE -

EREREEARAF 215
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g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

34.

216

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following material related party transactions:

34.

BETXS
RREMERREMBOMBEZIRS RER
SN AREBEETATERBEIRS

Group
&
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K &# AR¥ T AR Fr
Car park rental expense charged by T 5] A + Y 8L 7 {5 B 35
e W
— A non-executive director -—HRIFHITES (@) 45 51
Rental expense charged by THARIWER 2 HE
I &
— A related company - —MBEERA (b) 308 -
Sales of property, plant and MT3RRIEEME
equipment to BB K& #
— A related company - —MEERQA (b) 182 -
Decoration services provided to ERRINGE R
Bk 7%
— A related company - —HEERQA (b) 2,321 -

Notes:

As the annual amount of the above respective transaction
are less than HK$3,000,000, the continuing connected
transaction contemplated thereunder Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

(a) During years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018, Ms. Chan
Heung Ling (“Ms. Chan”), a non-executive director of
the Company, has entered into an agreement of car park
rental for HK$60,000 per year. Such rental agreement
was terminated in July 2018.

(b) Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan has beneficial interests in these
related companies.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain highest paid employees, are
disclosed in note 12.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a
variety of financial risks which comprise market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Group currently does not have any written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the
board of directors meets periodically and cooperates
closely with key management to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial
assets for speculative purposes. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed to be
described below.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks,
bank and other loans which bore interests at
fixed and floating interest rates. Bank and other
loans arranged at variable rates and fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The interest rate and repayment terms of the
borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period are disclosed in note 27.

Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB2,174,000
(2018: RMB2,017,000) respectively.

35.

%Aﬁﬂﬁiﬁiﬁffﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #ZE = F—AF=H=+—HILFE

HMEEBREEBERBE

BiE

By

AEBEBSAERAZZRBEYBERAR
mERARBREIERREMNXEAR) FEA

BEARBECRB AEB 2 ERERREESE
BERT /™S 2 A BB ME /EI%%$
SR BREZE ETﬂ%%%E?ﬁoK%
EESTEEAAXIAREREREK RES -
AmM - EFerHEFes: THFIFEEEA
EEREE UDTEHERBUERERE®E
B 5 R g o

AEBYEEEARBRSERZSMEEESR -
AEEfMESYCRIEMBGRRBHALAT -

(@ F =@
NMEEBRESRIAZAAEXRREESR
BERMSMNXEHMER RS2 AR - K
EEBMAREER SREERNLETR
MBNEEH 2 TE - AEB 2N XER
I%XE&IEM%&E@ﬂ¥H Z

TR - RITREMER LFBH R
&Imﬂ@ﬁEZﬁ”&ﬁ{fﬁ K

%ﬁ%”ﬁ%ﬁiﬁimbg*utﬂ JSE/NI
BENEXRB RBREHRHREEZEE
AR REBIERBEERWT27 -

FZEHBE

filh FI| & 5 4 038 hn, R 4 10018 X 25 M B
ﬁﬁmﬁiﬁhT“ AKEBFRNYIEZ R
FEBERZMNDBE MBI HARE
2,174,000c(=ZZ — \F : AR ¥2,017,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mERBRE Bﬁa

For the year ended 31 March 2019 #Z—=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

218

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity (Continued)

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the next twelve-month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
has been prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 33.

In respect of accounts and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

The following table provides information about
the Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs
for accounts receivable as at 1 April 2018 and
31 March 2019:

35.

(b)

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

BEEBEEEERBEKGE)

FERRE
AEEREEREFEPNESREERRZ
TR EESRRFEEERERGE A%
BOERBRBEEEFESE ARAEKHE
ErsEEBRLRYERTIARAD R
FPERBRABINEBERAREZR Eit
ERBHMERFELENBERBEILAE
BrRAEFHEEFELE-—FTRD -

TRBIR-E-—NEMA—BR-F
—hEZAZ+-BAKEEREEM
B MK O I R FE B K T 4 S B
&8

More than
1-30 days 31-60 days 61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due
B 5 B 5 5 i
B 58 1-30 A 31-60 A 61-90H #iB90 R
Expected loss JEHIEIE X
rate (%) (%) 0.5% 1% 2% 4% 8%

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives
of the receivables. Applying the ECL model
results in immaterial impairment for all accounts
receivable on 1 April 2018 and for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The Group measures loss allowances for other
receivables, bank balances and pledged deposits
at an amount equal to lifetime 12 months ECLs.
The credit risk on other receivables is limited
because the counterparties have no historical
default record and the directors expect that
the general economic conditions will not
significantly change for the 12 months after the
reporting date. Applying the ECL model results
in loss allowances of RMB3,697,000 on 1 April
2018. As at 31 March 2019, the gross carrying
amount of other receivables is approximately
RMB30,437,000 and the loss allowances
increased by RMB260,000 for other receivables
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

BHEBERXNERBELFEREBRAK
B2 ERBEXEELRAE URKRKE
2R EEEMNR - B AR AR
AEEHERFENEAGFFHEERR
ZEANER - ERAYEEBRRAS
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BB E DK e

AEEBEZEERZHI2EAEREERS
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EEBTEROBEREEG HMOBERFIED
EERBRER RARYFHFILEBETE
Wetr MEBRHRSBEHBHERI2EANRN
BERLERIAITIEBEERNE - FHAEH
EEEFEERRERR -_ZT—N\FMOA—
BREEREE R ARKS697,0007T KX =
T-—AF=ZA=Z+—8B EMEKRKEHN
BREEELY A AR ®K30,437,0007T + M &
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

220

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged
deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings. Based on
the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for
bank balances and pledged deposits.

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective
evidence of impairment (see note 3.14). At
31 March 2018, no impairment provision was
made according to the Group’s assessment.

The Group’s cash and bank balances, pledged
deposits and structured bank balances are
mainly balances with state-owned banks in the
PRC and a reputable bank in Hong Kong. As at
31 March 2019, the Group had approximately
82% bank balances placed with two banks in
the PRC.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of other receivables during the year
is as follows:

Balance at 31 March 2018 under HKAS 39

Impact of initial application of HKFRS 9

Adjusted balance at 1 April 2018

Impairment losses recognised during the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

Origination of new other receivables net of
those settled resulted in an increase in overall
loss allowance.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of accounts and other receivables,
the Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics.

The Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries.
The credit risk on these financial assets of the
Company is limited because the counterparties
have no historical default record and the
directors expect that the general economic
conditions will not significantly change for the
12 months after the reporting date.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried
out in RMB which is the functional currency
of most of the group entities. Exposures to
currency exchange rates arise from certain of
the Group’s cash and bank balances, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, other
receivables, other payables and bank loans
which are denominated in HK$, and US$.
The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency
risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arises.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c)

222

Foreign currency risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk exposure

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign currency risk from
bank balances and bank loans denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of
the Company and its subsidiaries.

35.

BEEBREEEERBERGE)

(c)

S5 =L B (D

4t & &

TRHFIN TR REBHBKE ANE B
BE(BEARAREMBAR ZHEEEIHN)
FIMEZ SRITRBRBITERZINER K -

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR FT
Bank deposits denominated in LWTHE®BEEZRITHER
- HK$ -BTT - 20,451
- US$ -E7T 3 3
Bank loans denominated in UNTHEEINBEZRITER
- HK$ - - (199,410)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s loss for the year in
response to a 5% appreciation in respective
foreign currencies against the Group’s
functional currencies. There is no impact on
other components of consolidated equity in
response to the general increase in the following
foreign currency rates.

I8 BR B AT

FTRETRAEE AMNERAREY
1) e 8 % FHES% S - A 5 B IR 2 B4
2H U THNEEE LR A N2 A
BB LM E -

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT AR TF T
Effect on profit for the year and HENRMNEBFRANzEE
retained profits
- HK$ - > (8,948)

A weakening of the above foreign currencies
against RMB at each reporting date would
have had the equal but opposite effect to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated
with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The
Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect
of settlement of financial liabilities, including
accounts and other payables and bank and
other loans, and its financial obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the entity can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on
the scheduled repayment dates.

35.

(d)

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

BEEBEEEERBEKGE)

REBE SRR
NBETEREASERARERTES
AUARNE I HEHBEREETUNEERE
ZeMBBEZEERR AEERENS S
BEE(REEMNERREE BN RER
RITLEMETONRBITEMBEE
UEpEREREEEMEAHYRPESR
2 B o

PEREEBZRESARTEER HFE
RESFESUAENEBRRREHF R A&
BrBRERATHEZNHLERRTDE
TR NEREERARR S HHERLE
REIZoRMBBRET O ARRE KM
BNEEBMEBREHZRBESFER -

TREHTENIHMBEITAEBRAZE
REBE - NRRPBEEZEBRCITNKRM

BRERE-

LER JERRTE2ERBTREZ
BEREEGRZEMERMNET  ZOW
BTN ERARS EEGEERN A E
BER BERBUEREAXNZERHBEZ
Rerd BHEMRTEEZIHAD
MTERBEERARARR -

EBEREEERAT
ANV 2018/19 F

223




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES  35.

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

224

BEEBREEEERBERGE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) d) #"EESEREGE)

On demand Total Total
or within More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
R—FR —FlE RERBE FEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFI

At 31 March 2019 R-ZE-NF
=Z=A=+-—-H
Accounts payable B BR 30 38,485 - 38,485 38,485
Accruals and other A FEREAM
payables & 1B 384,136 - 384,136 384,136
Bank and other loans RITREMER 764,409 549,569 1,313,978 1,165,233
1,187,030 549,569 1,736,599 1,587,854
Financial guarantee BEEL 2T BER:
issued:
Maximum amount BEeEREE
guaranteed 57,888 - 57,888 -
At 31 March 2018 R-ZFE-NF=A
=t+-—8H
Accounts payable JE 1< BR 3R 52,115 - 52,115 52,115
Accruals and other JE&TFRIE R A b
payables FE A 2 IE 175,140 - 175,140 175,140
Bank loans RITER 235,036 1,104,351 1,339,387 1,143,051
462,291 1,104,351 1,566,642 1,370,306
Financial guarantee BHELZTBER:
issued:
Maximum amount EREREE
guaranteed 834,739 - 834,739 -

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, the Company’s
held no material financial liabilities and the
Company ensure that it maintains sufficient
financial support from Group’s subsidiaries to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

226

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used
in measuring the fair value of these financial
assets and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

° Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based
on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in
its entirety is based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to the fair value measurement.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)

35.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position are grouped
into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

)

Notes

Wit ARETT ARBETT ARERTT ARETT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

BEEBEEEERBEKGE)

REBRRRER 2D RETEE

SIS R ND /N

Level 1
E—&

rER
DPEAEONTAABERER:
Level 2 Level 3
EZR E=ZH
RMB’000  RMB’000

RMB’000

Total
5t
RMB’000

Year ended 31 March 2019

Assets

Davi Contingent
Consideration

Unlisted put option

Longyu Contingent
Consideration

Financial assets at FVOCI

- Unlisted equity investments

Year ended 31 March 2018

Assets

Davi Contingent Consideration

Unlisted put option

RBEIARE

I £ Rh B (i)
EFAAKE

BOREREAM
EHEKEIIRA
ETRMEE

-RETBRERE

RBEIARE (M
I £ ROk B (i)

There were no transfers between levels during

the year.

- = 8,805 8,805
- - 2,750 2,750
- - 1,100 1,100
= - 33,422 33,422
- - 6,107 6,107
- = 1,583 1,583
FRANEF BT EE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = F—NF=H=1+—HI-FZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTOBJECTIVES 35. I EREE B E R BXK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

~

(f)  Fair value measurements recognised in the N RBBRREXBRAZIAIAEFE(E

statement of financial position (Continued)

Reconciliation for financial instruments carried REERTITBREREAKB(E=ZF)EAQ
at fair value based on significant unobservable nEIMNENEMIAENHEKEWOT

inputs (Level 3) are as follows:

Davi Contingent Consideration ABEARE
2019 2018
ZE-NF ZE-NHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR FT
At the beginning of the year R E A 6,107 6,625
Total gains or losses: sk B8 B & -
— in profit or loss -RER 2,698 (518)
At the end of the year RER 8,805 6,107
Unlisted put option FETRLTEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AR FT
At the beginning of the year REH 1,583 445
Total gains or losses: s sk E 18 48 &R
— in profit or loss -RiEH 1,167 1,138
At the end of the year RER 2,750 1,583
228 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTOBJECTIVES 35. I EREE B E R BXK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)  Fair value measurements recognised in the N REBRRRBR 2D AETEE
statement of financial position (Continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried BREEATTERGAHSB(E=ZRER
at fair value based on significant unobservable AEINENeR TAEMNEENAT - (&)

inputs (Level 3) are as follows: (Continued)

Longyu Contingent Consideration EFEARLE
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBT T

At the beginning of the year R E A = -
Total gains or losses: sk B8 B & -
— in profit or loss -RER 1,100 -
At the end of the year RE R 1,100 -
Unlisted equity investments AETRERE
2019 2018
—E-AF ZE-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARB T
At the beginning of the year R FE 1) = -
Transfer from available-for-sale EERAEHELESREE
financial assets 28,357 -
Initial adoption of HKFRS 9 BEXARMNBENBRE
AR E 5 4,074 -
Additions NE 500 -
Total gains or losses: I s ok 18 48 & -
- in other comprehensive income -REMZ2E K= 491 =
At the end of the year RER 33,422 =
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(f)

periods.

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. R % E & B2 B & & BUX (8)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value measurements recognised in the  RHBERRRBERE 2D AETEGE
statement of financial position (Continued)
The methods and valuation techniques used ARFTEAREZFERMGEF M EMN
for the purpose of measuring fair value are TR AR AR L I A o B o
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
(i) Davi Contingent Consideration (i) ABEARLE
The fair value of Davi Contingent REXRREBEZAAEH—"REBE L
Consideration has been determined by a HEXEGBEBMTEE KRAXAREBE
firm of independent professional valuer. EYCHEEFBEFELHEME20-
Details please see note 20 for disclosures
of the measurement of Davi Contingent
Consideration.
The fair value of the Davi Contingent ABRIRARELZHEZIAABEBARE
Consideration arrangement of 8,805000( =& — \NF: AR
RMB8,805,000 (2018: RMB6,107,000) 6,107,0007T) J5 ¥ A I8 & i £ 86 IR &
was estimated by applying the discounted HEEFFESH -2 A BRI ER
cash flow method. The fair value estimates B3 R151% (= F — \ F :16.2%)
are based on a discount rate of 15.1% FECOUTEBRENINABEEEIBEA
(2018: 16.2%) and assumed results of R #5,629,000c(ZZE — \F: B&
loss of RMB5,629,000 in Zhejiang Davi ARCRHEBEEENTERENARYK
(2018: assumed probability adjusted 2,726,0007T & & F 49 A R % 3,750,000
results ranging from loss of approximately L) ZERE=-BARBEFE-
RMB2,726,000 to profit of approximately BEZuafzEZ A8 REA:
RMB3,750,000). This is a level 3 fair value
measurement. The key unobservable
assumptions in calculating this profit are:
Range
& F
2019
—E-NF
Assumptions: B :
Discount rate B IR =& 15.1%

230

Assuming all other variables is held
constant; an increase in discount rate by
1% each year would decrease the Davi
Contingent Consideration by a further
RMB58,000.
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For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. ¥ EMEE B R KX (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(f)  Fair value measurements recognised in the N REBRRRBR 2D AETEE
statement of financial position (Continued)
(i) Unlisted put option (i) FLHREEE
The fair value of the unlisted put option has FLETROGBBEZIAANEER —RE
been determined by a firm of independent VEEXBEMTERER BB
professional valuer by using a binomial HEERMNET -
option pricing model.
Significant unobservable inputs included: FERABR 2B ABBE B
2019 2018
—E-h#F —E-NF
Equity value fix # (& & RMB12,900,000 RMB19,400,000
A R #12,900,000 T A X % 19,400,000 7T
Expected dividend yield TEHAR B X Nil Nil
z =
Annual risk free rate EmEREE X 2.28% 3.39%
Average expected volatility SE 15 78 2R R U8 44% 34%
Expected term T8 B HA IR 0.75 years 1.75 years
0.75F 1.754F
Increase in the average expected volatility, e FHFEE R EIG N TEAHARR ;R TR
expected terms and expected dividend MR EEFEMIELETREGHAE
yield would increase the fair value of the N fE -
unlisted put option.
Increase in the equity value and annual i #E B E & ER R F B X8R
risk-free rate would decrease the fair DELETREMEZARE
value of the unlisted put option.
(i) Longyu Contingent Consideration (i) EEFHZLARE

The fair value of Longyu Contingent
Consideration has been determined by a
firm of independent professional valuer.
Details please see note 20 for disclosures
of the measurement of Longyu Contingent
Consideration.

ETHAAREBEZAAEA —RBY
EXEEMTEE -EFHAKRER
BZHEFBFELHEME20-

EEEREEAERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

232

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)

(iiij Longyu Contingent Consideration

(Continued)

The fair value of the Longyu Contingent
Consideration arrangement of
RMB1,100,000 was estimated by applying
the discounted cash flow method. The fair
value estimates are based on a discount
rate of 11% and assumed results of
profit of RMB23,166,000. This is a
level 3 fair value measurement. The key
unobservable assumptions in calculating
this profit are:

35.

BEEBREEEERBERGE)

N REBKRERBRZ2AETEE

(iii)

FEFEHANXEE)

EFAARELTHZIAABARKE
1,100,000 T 73 A IR € /it = 8 /=
HEFESH AR BEME T ERE
BE1%:TE ITREBEEZFIAR
#23,166,000 T > W BB =R A i A
HAEAEZEMNsEETTEHRER

oy .
AX A -

Range
L
2019
—Z-NF
Assumptions: B
Discount rate gL 38 = 11%

Assuming all other variables is held
constant; an increase in discount rate by
1% each year would decrease the Longyu
Contingent Consideration by a further
RMB2,000.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
. ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (Continued)
(iv) Unlisted equity investments
The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using market approach of
comparable companies adjusted for lack
of marketability discount.

Significant unobservable input:

35.

)

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

BEEBEEEERBEKGE)

REBRRRER 2D RETEE

AETRERE
AETERETAEZAARABEEAAL
RAMBEEE ARRZHHRE
AT EELAE-

(iv)

FTETABERZBAHE

2019
—®—n%F

Discount for lack of marketability

The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. As at 31 March 2019, it
is estimated that with all other variables
held constant, a decrease/increase in the
discount for lack of marketability by 5%
would have increased/decreased the fair
value of unlisted equity instruments by
RMB434,000.

There were no changes in valuation
techniques during the period.

R 5 R B TR

25%

ARABEFELARZ WiE KBTI E
R Rl - R—_E—HLhEFE=ZA=7
—H MEFFEEMEERET
BoWBREZmMEBERBUETERRL
#AN5% - K EWRRHE T A E NS
B AR 434,000 7T ©

HANGERSYESH -

EEEREEAERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g b e

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENTOBJECTIVES 35. I EREE B E R BXK (&)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9 TRMEERAEERENSIZBE
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities LWTheRtEHEeMBMRARZE/mE
included in the consolidated statements of ErNBEBEANUREMAZIER

financial position and the headings in which
they are included are as follows:

2019 2018
—®-AE  -EF-N\%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

Financial assets TRMEE
Financial assets measured at fairvalue AL BEHEZ SR EE
Financial assets at FVTPL BEARERERIIERZ
SRMEE 12,655 7,690
Financial assets at FVOCI RAAEREME2E KR
IRz e REE 33,422 =
46,077 7,690
Financial assets measured at BREHENATEZ
amortised cost TRMEE
Other receivables H b g R IA 27,480 =
Pledged deposits EEBER 216,399 =
Cash and bank balances HERBTES 279,841 -
Loans and receivables B3k MR E
Accounts receivable JE Lt B 5K - 321
Other receivables H 4 & W R IE - 27,160
Pledged deposits BEEAEFER - 230,382
Cash and bank balances Re RRTER - 222,147
523,720 480,010
Available-for-sale investments, at cost A AR R A A] (&£ 48 & - 28,357
569,797 516,057
Financial liabilities cHEE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BEENAFEZ2HAR
Accounts payable JE £ BR 3% 38,485 52,115
Other payables and accruals E b fE S I8 R EET A 384,136 175,140
Bank and other loans RITREMER 1,165,233 1,143,051
1,587,854 1,370,306
At the end of reporting period, the carrying RMEBR ERNERTIEN R R E
values of loans and receivables, financial assets KA EZEREERSRAGBEZER
and financial liabilities at amortised costs are EEEARBEES -

approximate their fair value.

234 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited ‘
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%A%ﬁﬁ§W%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 i ZE=F—NF=FA=+—HI F&E
36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 36. EXER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are: REEEREEARAZBEER:
()  To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as (i) Z’E BAEEBELE 2N WEERE
a going concern, so that it continues to provide =mEFA AT REB R R
returns and benefits for stakeholders;
(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth; i) TEAEECRBRERER: R
and
(i) To provide capital for the purpose of (i) REERNNEBAEEZEREER S -
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages AEBERBETHRIRNERELERER AW
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure REBEEEAEBRRESZEREDSR - I
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration the EEAEBRRECTERE $ B~ IR
future capital requirements of the Group and capital BREFEN BAKLEReRE BAEXR
efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability, 2 K T8 ORI K BE 1 IR & % = o N&EE B B &
projected operating cash flows, projected capital M AmIERRE R
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt
any formal dividend policy.
Management regards total equity as capital. The ERERREZRLERBELRA RZ_TE—NF=
amount of capital as at 31 March 2019 amounted A E‘i'— = N )| F%J\E”Héﬁ 602 182,000
to approximately RMB1,602,182,000 (2018: T(ZZE—\F: AR ¥1,602,106,0007T) © &
RMB1,602,106,000), which the management HE K % BEFAXRAXRE .# Bﬁ 1R &
considers as optimal having considered the projected ® /52 RRZE2EBRRE - RZ2Z—NF &
capital expenditures and the projected strategic ZE-NF=ZA=1+T—HZE®BF %ﬁ HER
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity TR
ratio at 31 March 2019 and 2018 were as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARM T AR®FT

Accounts payable FE 5 BR 5K 38,485 52,115
Accruals, receipts in advance and fEEt B - T8 Hﬂl KIE R

other payables H fth & T 5T 384,136 510,689
Contract liabilities EHEaE 424,475 -
Bank and other loans ﬁE TEREMER 1,165,233 1,143,051
2,012,329 1,705,855

Less: Cash and bank balances BB MIBITES (279,841) (222,147)

Pledged deposits BEHEER (216,399) (230,382)

Net debts & 7% 5 &1 1,516,089 1,253,326
Equity = 1,602,182 1,602,106
Net debts to equity ratio B FEYERL X 95% 78%

EEZREEERAT | | 235
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

37. BUSINESS ACQUISITION

Irvine

On 19 January 2019, the Group through a 75% held
subsidiary, acquired 100% of the equity interest of
Irvine, a company whose principal activity is provision
of medical technology research and development.
The acquisition was made with the aims to expand
the Group’s business. The transactions was satisfied
in form of cash of RMB3,000,000.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of

37. ¥BEH

Irvine

RZE-—NLF-—ATILhB X&EEBESR
75% 1 = 1 [T B A 7 WL BE Irvine & B AR 7 - Irvine
FTEXEBHAREBERINME - WEEEEKX
REBE® - X HUHRE ARMS000,0007T

fit o

WEBEBITRKRBEHNARNEERBENR

the acquiree as at the date of acquisition were: 1A :
RMB’000
AR FT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) M- -BERKHEHZEIZ) 2
Intangibles (Note 15) mEEMZ15) 5,105
Prepayments and other receivables T8 < I8 K M fE W R IE 10
Cash and bank balances B & RIR1T 4 % 35
Accruals and other payables FE&H SR I8 R E b FE S FIE (152)
Other loans HihE X (1,000)
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR HE = (1,000)
Fair value of net assets acquired BEWBEFEEAAE 3,000
Cash consideration paid ENReNRE (3,000
Goodwill FEES -

Cash flow: BeheE:

Cash payment bR A NN 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERERSEAREEEY (35)
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition WHEEANR S MHFE 2,965

The acquisition-related costs were immaterial,
and have been expensed and are included in
administrative expenses.
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37.

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS ACQUISITION (CONTINUED)
Irvine (Continued)

There was no contribution to the Group’s revenue
for the period between the date of acquisition and
the end of the reporting period. Included in the profit
for the year is a loss of approximately RMB11,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
Irvine.

Had the combination been taken place on 1 April
2018, the Group would have no revenue and net loss
of RMB43,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019
respectively. These pro forma information are for
illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily an
indication of revenue and result of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 April 2019, nor
are they intended to be a projection of future results.

NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

37.

38.

e MR R

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

XK A6 (&)

Irvine (£&)

RUWEBPRERERARPH TEEEAEEE
UL A o F R % F B FE Irvine B 4 58 9 3 15 FE (5
R E B4 AR 11,0007T °

WeEMR _—_ZE-—NFOA-RAET AEER
BE_FT-NLFZA=+t—"HLFEEERA
R#EFFBHER AR®K43000T - ZEHEEH
EBHRFA YV ERRBRRBER - —
NFOA-HBHEZRAKRBERERETHKRAR
REXE A TRFERKREXEWIEAR -

RERERMEE

@ ReLRFEVEHE:

2019 2018
—E2-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR FT
Cash and cash equivalents for the MEERERERME B
purpose of consolidated statements IR & RKIRLEEY
of cash flows 215,320 222,147
ERZREEERAT | | 237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

’%%A

M BHRER Bﬁ%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # 2=

—NFZA=1—HILFE

38. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH 38. B & it & & Mf & ()
FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) BMEGBMELENAGEEHE:
activities:
Dividend Bank and
payable other loans
RIT &
FE AR B H B
(note 27)
(Kt z#27)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBTF T
At 1 April 2017 RZZE—+FMHA—H S 832,823
Changes from cash flows: ReEne#
Proceeds from new bank loans ISR ITER 2B NIA = 571,604
Repayment of bank loans EERITEXR - (249,287)
Interest paid 2AFE = (62,055)
2017 dividend paid ENZZE—t+EKRE (21,848) -
Total changes from financing MERSTE=EZHLE
cash flows (21,848) 260,262
Other changes: H i #8):
Interest expenses B R X = 5,113
Exchange difference &N =% S (12,089)
Capitalised borrowing costs EERELBEERKAR = 56,942
2017 final dividend declared BEEER_ZE—tFRERE 21,848 =
Total other changes Hih & 21,848 49,966
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-NE=ZA=+—H S 1,143,051
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B RRME

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B2 = E—NF=H=1+—HIFZ

38. NOTES SUPPORTING STATEMENT OF CASH 38. R& M B R M & (&)

FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities: (Continued)

b) BERDMELENAGBHER: (F)

Dividend Bank and
payable other loans
RITR
EMARE HihBX
(note 27)
(Kt 3£ 27)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AR¥TFT
At 1 April 2018 R_TE—-NFWEA—H S 1,143,051
Changes from cash flows: ReEne#
Proceeds from new bank and other ¥ TR EMER 2
loans Fr 18 53R S 381,270
Repayment of bank and other loans &R TR HEME R - (373,743)
Interest paid =ENRPE S (72,555)
2018 dividend paid BENZZE-NFRE (21,848) =
Total changes from financing MERSR=ELHEE
cash flows (21,848) (65,028)
Other changes: H b &g
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — KB R A - 1,000
Interest expenses A B X - 5,320
Exchange difference [E N = %8 484 13,655
Capitalised borrowing costs EERLBERKR - 68,142
Interest payable FE 1 F) B - (907)
2018 final dividend declared EER_ZTE-N\FRERE 21,364 -
Total other changes Hth & 8) 18 &8 21,848 87,210
At 31 March 2019 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H - 1,165,233
BEREZEREEERAT 239
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BiZ = F—NF=HA=+—HI-FZ

39. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF 39. #ZR 2 & MK ikR &K
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M it AR¥FoT AR TF L
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG X 16 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables 78 < 3 18 & H th fiE Ik
IE 341 235
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NG S| 327,643 330,414
Cash and bank balances & MR 1T 4 5 183 70
328,167 330,719
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FE 5t R 3E K H b FE
g 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN EENGIE @] 8,083 8,083
8,147 8,147
Net current assets RBEEFE 320,020 322,572
Total assets less current liabilities R EER A D E & 605,472 608,024
Net assets EEFE 605,472 608,024
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to the KAREBEAELMESR
Company’s owners
Share capital B& 72X 29 20,735 20,735
Reserves i 15 30 584,737 587,289
Total equity AR 605,472 608,024
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
BR M 22 A&
Director Director
£ o
40. EVENT AFTER THE END OF REPORTING 40. HR&EH#E E1E
PERIOD
Except for those disclosed in elsewhere in this report, BRABREMBENEMML AN R2F—NF
there is no material subsequent event undertaken “AZt+ " BE® ARASAEBEITEHRLES
by the Company or the Group after 31 March 2019. ANEIEEIH -
240 Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited |
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHRE

Year ended 31 March
BEZ=A=+t—-HILEE

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—hF —ZZET-—RE —E—+F —ET-NFE ZE-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFrT ARETFT AREFT AREFT AR¥Trx
Revenue g A 500,874 597,023 693,512 134,082 384,282
Profit before income tax B B 15 B B 144,447 122,848 122,964 41,302 67,928
Income tax expenses FTERiA X (64,574 (29,743) (49,290) (40,114 (35,292)
Profit for the year F R R 89,873 93,105 73,674 1,188 32,636
Attributable to: T AT
Owners of the Company KAREE A 92,926 94,966 52,364 4,883 20,730
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR B = (3,053) (1,861) 21,310 (3,695) 11,906
89,873 93,105 73,674 1,188 32,636
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS,EQUITY ANDLIABILITIES #“K&a¥E #EZRhE8E
As at 31 March
R=A=+-—-H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E—hF ZZE—-RE —E—+F —ZT-NFE ZE-HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ANREFr AREFT AREFT AREFT AR¥Trx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE 695,669 911,771 817,209 873,765 690,201
Current assets RBEE 3,076,132 2,484,435 2,350,437 2,641,379 3,135,881
Total assets MEE 3,771,801 3,396,206 3,167,646 3,515,144 3,826,082
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES # xR A&
Total equity BB 1,397,949 1,523,746 1,597,254 1,602,106 1,602,182
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 534,411 520,909 684,601 767,785 561,273
Current liabilities FEAE 1,839,441 1,351,551 885,791 1,145,253 1,662,627
Total liabilities mAR _...2.8r38%2 1872460 1570892 1,913,038 2,223,900
Total equity and liabilities EakaEes 3,771,801 3,396,206 3,167,646 3,515,144 3,826,082
ERAEREESRART 241
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B HE

242

represents equity attributable to the Company’s owners divided
by number of Shares in issue as at the end of the year.

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIO TERKE R 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-1F ZE-R¥ ZT-+tF CZT-N\F ZB-h¥
Gross profit margin (%) FFI=(%) 27.1 13.4 19.3 33.4 17.9
Net profit margin (%) R = (%) 17.9 15.6 10.6 0.9 8.5
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BREGEL X%
(Hat1) 48.2 37.1 42.4 59.9 61.7
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) mEL K (F) (K aF2) 1.7 1.84 2.7 2.3 1.89
Earnings per share REMAEES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (B #3) 7.7 3.9 2.1 0.2 0.8
Net asset value per share ARERERAEA
attributable to owners of EEERFEE
the Company (RMB) (Note 4) (ANRE) (K it4) 1.0 1.1 0.6 0.6 0.6
Notes: B &t -
Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank 1 : B A B B (& 1 F X 5 B (8 77 B 50 44 58) J6 16 BF 15 #7 17 3¢
loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity. BT E -
Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total 2 : GBI KGR B EEHLBERUBEZ LR FERG TE A E
current liabilities as at the end of the year. AEEE o
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the 3: #HREAXBFEZLXFERNLRGREREAENML D F R
profit attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted KEEFANEBFTEBERMETFHREF;E -
average number of Shares in issue during the year.
According to the ordinary resolution approved by the RER-ZFE—NFLtAZF+ NABTZREAFASE
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of BREMEEBRAER R_E-—XFNA+=ZH &
1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant #£1,232,000,000 B8 37 A% 1R 15 AT J% 25 77 E P 35 6 &5 77 < AT
to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The weighted average BETR=ZFE—NFNA+ZBZHK#E BiFAEHE=
number of Shares for the purposes of calculating basic FE—+tF=ZA=+—HIFEFRELXZFZ ZBERN
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 had 1T 1 BB W 5 B F2,464,000,000% (Bt & = F — N F
been retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (for ZH=4—HIEFJE :2446,338,798 %) °
the year ended 31 March 2016: 2,446,338,798 Shares) after
completion of the bonus issue on 12 August 2016.
Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company 4 : AR GIHBEAEGFRFEELELR LG HE A ML
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
VIRES

Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RE/ER
EHERE BEER A58 RHRI
W 3 (F5X) (Frk) E8 HEREE A8
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BHINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 2 No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, R C 80,521 R: 1,711 R: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Honggu Tan Central District, C: 445 16 September 2073
Nanchang City, Jiangxi G: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
mELATE-H TEIREMETAAR RRZEt=E B®I
fOBAAARE168% ANATREER
CRZZm=F
NATRBER
Various office units of Sino Harbour -~ No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C 80,521 G:281  C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang Honggu ~ Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BELALEERIATEDD hEIREREMAAR CR-EM=% BRI
ETETREN ORIAKE 15685 RATARER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City ~ No. 888 Huang Jia HuWest ~ C 719,548 G:6,174  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 56%  Completed
Zone 1 - Low rise residential Road, Nanchang Economic
annexed with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEEREMIAE-EEAT PEIREEETHALY CR-ZR-% B%I
EFHE RIERHERER M K685 RATNBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City ~ No. 888 Huang JiaHuWest R, C 719,648 R:1,358  R: Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zone 2 - Part A - Town house Road, Nanchang Economic G:676  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEERANEN AR -ABR TEIEEHETRHEAE RIZBtZE BRI
-ERANE R %R R K4 R688% EATNBER
CRZZRZF
TATNBER
| EBEREEARAT 243
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Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RU/BR
EHERE BEER A5E  RHAI
% 3 (F5 ) (Frk) E8 LEREZ AE
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINE(H)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City ~ No. 888 Huang Jia HuWest ~ C 719,648 (:1,830  C: Expiring on 18 May 2052 55%  Completed
Zone 3 - High rise residential Road, Nanchang Economic
annexed with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEEBIENCAE-SEAT PEIREEETHALY CR-FR-% BRI
BRH% RIFEERF %6085 RATNBER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 1 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R C 190,763 R:203  R:Expiring on 31 January 2080 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, G:1,925 G Expiring on 31 January 2050
the PRC
BHEEER-B HEIREANTREAE RIZENEE BRI
766% -A=t-BER
CR-ZHZE
-A=ZT-BER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, R C 190,753 R: 935  R:Expiring on 31 January 2080 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province, G: 7,062  G: Expiring on 31 January 2050
the PRC
BNEXER-H REIEEENTEEAE RAZTNTE BT
766 -A=ZT-BER
CR-ZHEE
-A=t-HER
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 1 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R C 607,084 R: 23490  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, G:126  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BN -5 HEIREEAETRNE RIZELLE B#I
HF R 8299% ZAZTORER
CR-EMLE
ZRAZThBER
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,084 R: 30,840 R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District,
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BRI _8 HAIREEETRNE RIZELtE BRI
BB AE299% ZAZTABER
. ' A 5 o |
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VIRES

Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RU/BR
EHERE BEER A5E  RHAI
% 3 (F5 ) (Frk) E8 HEREE HE
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINE(H)
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City ~ No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West R 719,648 R:4,798 R Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zong 2, Part B - Town house Road, Nanchang Economic
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEER N AERE A -ER TAIREEETHELE R BRI
ik RAEEEZ AR RATNBER
888%
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
REmz
Sino Harbour ® Wu Lin Hui Southwest junction of C 20,482 (: 81,285 C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Q20Y2019
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
ER R HE TERIEANTEER CR-TAME ZE-NF
ETILERREAERD MARBER FERT
Sino Harbour * Guan Lan No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R C 607,084 R: 288,529  R:Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, (G:5,108  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BREVEE HAIREEETRNE RI-ZLLF i E
BB AE299% ZAZTABER
CR-EmtE
ZAZThBER
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Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RE/ER
EHERE BEER A58 RHRI
W 3 (F5 ) (Frk) E8 HEREZ RE
FUTURE PROJECTS
AREE
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City ~ No. 888 Huang JiaHuWest R, C 719,648 R: 746,425  R: Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Under planning
Zone 4-13 Road, Nanchang Economic (: 156,472 C: Expiring on 18 May 2042
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
HEERIESN- 1348 WEIRABETHELR RAZELZF e
RAEEEZ AR RATNBER
838% CR-ZM-%F
RATNRER
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 3-6 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R G 607,084 R, C: 763,401  R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BEEHRI =218 HEIREEETAMNE RIAZSLLF tae
HEAB299% ZAZTORER
CRZEMtE
ZAZThBER
Leping Project Hushan Meiyuan Reclamation R, C 333,341 R, C: 394,800  R:Expiring on 17 June 2074 51%  Under planning
Farm, Leping City, C: Expiring on 17 June 2044
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
4R HEIEEETH RIZZLRE itEe
RUBERER AATTEER
CRZZEME
AATTHER
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VIRES

Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RU/BR
EHERE BEER A5E  RHAI
% 3 (F5 ) (Frk) E8 LEREZ AE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
REREENR
Levels 1 and 2 of Block 2, Units No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A C: 4,652 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
02 to 06 on Level 1 of Block 6, Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Unit 105 and Level 1 of Block 7 of Nanchang City,
Sino Harbour Kaixuan Centeranda ~ Jiangxi Province, the PRC
3-storey kindergarten of Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
BELASIE_E-R_E" TEIEEHETAAR AR CRZZM=% BRI
AE-ERENRE BLELAKE1568% ARTARBER
ERIEPOLE-EI05ER
~E-EROEE
Various retail units on Levels 1-4 and ~ No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A (C:25880  C:Expiring on 100%  Completed
various office units on Levels 6-24 Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
of Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center, Nanchang City,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Jiangxi Province, the PRC
GEAANERARBLI4E REIALHETAAE TER CRZZR=% BAT
ATEEERBRC-UE fLBAIAKE15685 NATARER
ETRTREN
Various retall units on Levels and 2~ No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A C: 4,381 C: Expiring on 29 March 2047 100%  Completed
of Blocks 1t0 3, 6, 7, 9,10, 11,12 Yuanzhou District,
and 35 to 37 of Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
Yichun Royal Lake City the PRC
BEEUBNE1ZE3-6-7-9-100 PEIREEATRME TR CHRZTMtE B%I
1 12RBEITEE-R-E  HEAB20% ZAZTABER

ATRERS
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Site Areain Effective  Expected
respect of Entire  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type  Project (sq.m.) GFA (sq.m.) ~ Tenure Interest  Date
EEEEN RU/BR
EHERE BEER A5E  RHAI
% 3 (F5 ) (Frk) E8 HEREE HE
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HARBEEZNE
Various retail units on Levels 14, No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A G:6,909  C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang City,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEUAIRERIARTUI4E PEIRLHETLAE iR CR-ZREZ% BAT
ATREERRBR%E fOBAAARE1568% ARTARER
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R: 166 R: Expiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Bulding of Minshi Garden  Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
LEREBEBETL1502E TEIREREATEMR TER RRZEANESRER BRI
L 7 5 285
R:  Residential R %
C:  Commercial and other C: BERAAM
CY: Calendar year cy. EBF

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on [ Z/Z & E & K [FE5H % T A B 77 B R E 1 |8 4 & & 14 &1
the best estimate by the management. These figures may change as i1 E 157 o 32 F 21K A] pE & T8 F # JZ i Z B) -
the projects progress.
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